








IFB 7-1904 - OC Streetcar Construction Project 
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Spec Section

Drawing/ 

Attachment
Page Number(s) Paragraph (s)

1 Book 1A

Cover Page, 

Page 4,

Page 7

Section I, Subsection E-3a states that questions must be received by 5:00 

pm on January 3, 2018.  The Book 1A cover sheet states that the 

Questions/Approved Equal Submittal date is January 10, 2018.  Subsection E-

4 also states that inquiries received after January 10, 2018 will not be 

responded to.

This deadline is too soon for a number of reasons.  The four sections of Book 

1 contain over 10,000 pages to review.  Multiple subcontractors and suppliers 

for the MSF building, systems and civil trades also need time to review the 

same documents, it is not just the prime contractors.  Many of these 

subcontractors and suppliers are small business DBEs that are shut down for 

the holidays and focusing their estimating efforts on projects bidding sooner.  

Without an extension to this deadline, they may either decide not to bid this 

project or to place un-needed contingency in their pricing for items that are 

unclear.

For the reasons stated above, we feel that a more reasonable deadline for 

questions and approved equals would be February 12, 2018, which is three 

weeks before the bid date.

Please confirm the deadline for clarification and approved equal requests.

Addendum No. 4 to the IFB extended the due date for questions to February 

28, 2018

2 Book 1C
OCS

Drawings

OCS drawing U-OCSN54 shows the OCS through the Yard and Maintenance 

Facility. The drawing has a callout for a Y/038 and Y/037 but neither of those 

callouts are listed in the Pole and Foundation Installation Schedule.

Please provide some information as to what Y/038 and Y/037 are supposed 

to be.

Y/038 and Y/037 are inside the maintenance shop.  See details on drawing 

Z-DD36.

3
OCS

Drawings

OCS drawings U-OCSN19, U-OCSN20 and U-OSCN-54 all show the new 

OCS construction for the WYE Turnback Track.  Bid Item 19, Construct WYE 

Track (Optional), indicates that OCTA may choose to eliminate this bid item 

which includes the OCS for the WYE Track.

Please provide a drawing that shows what is to be constructed (e.g. track, 

foundations, etc.) if OCTA chooses to eliminate Bid Item 19 so that we may 

bid accurately.

Bid Item 19 includes track TB-1 and TB-2, Special Trackwork Items 19 (20M 

Turnout), 20 (No 5 Equilateral Turnout), and 21 (20M Turnout) per drawing 

TG13, OCS Poles and Foundations Y/026 and Y/027 per drawing U-

OCSN54, and OCS wire above track TB-1 and TB-2.  If Optional Bid Item 

19 is eliminated, a CCO would be written to add straight track to replace 

Special Trackwork Items 19 and 21, and to add paving to replace track TB-1 

and TB-2.
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4
Special Condition 

53.3

Special Condition 53.3, Measurement and Payment describes what is 

included in each bid item for payment.

Please confirm that Bid Item 47, Traction Power Infrastructure  pays for all 

items outside the actual TPSS Buildings and Bid Item 48, Traction Power 

Substation, pays for all items inside the TPSS buildings including the building 

enclosures.

Yes, Bid Item 47 is for items outside of the TPSS Buildings. SC53, Item 47 

(b) has been deleted in Addendum No. 5.

5 Z-TN01 & Z-TD02
Please confirm that double restraining rails are required within the MSF Yard 

in curves of less than 100 ft radius.
Yes, confirmed as shown on TD29 and TD30. 

6 Book 1C, Book 2
Z-TN01, TA18, 

TA19, & TA20

Bid Form, Pg 5 

Item

18

Please confirm that the two turnouts that lead to the yard, within the WBT  

(PS 585+72.32 & PS 594+12.28) are to be included in the Yard Track Item, 

Item 18.

The turnouts referenced shall be paid for in Item 18, Yard Track. 

7 Book 1C, Book 2 Z-TN01

Bid Form, Pg 5 

Item

19

Please confirm that all three turnouts shown in the WYE Turnback Track are 

to be included in the WYE Track Item, Item 19.
Confirmed, these shall be paid for in Item 19 Construct WYE Track

8 Book 1C, Book 2 TA18 & TA20

Bid Form, Pg 6 

Item

41

Please note that the Special Trackwork Schedule, TG13, identifies the 

Crossover at EBT PS 195+69.24 as two individual Turnouts, for which there 

is no Bid Item.

Please confirm that the two crossovers to be included in the 190' Radius 

Single Crossover Item, Item 41, are; the 14 ft track centers crossover at EBT 

PS 184+74.64, and the 24 ft track centers crossover at EBT PS 195+69.24.

Correct.  Sheet TG13 will be revised in an upcoming Addendum.  

9 Book 1C TA74 & TG13 Is the turnout at YL PS 16+76.42 to be encapsulated?

Turnout at YL PS 16+76.42 does not need to be encapsulated.  Drawing 

TG13 will be revised in an future Addendum to remove the encapsulation 

requirement of this turnout. 

10 Book 2

Bid Form, Pg 6 

Item

37

Please identify the scope and location of the work to be included in Item 37.

This item was referencing work that has now been incorporated into item 38. 

 Item 37 will be deleted from the Schedule of Quantities and Prices. The Bid 

Form will be revised in a future Addendum.

11 Book 2

Bid Form, Pg 6 

Item

38 & 42

The quantity in Item 38 seems to be overstated. Please confirm that the 

quantity in Item 38 is to include the DF on the Bridges as well as the DF on 

the 9"- 13.5" slab from the Begin Track DF to the Westminster Bridge,  and 

not include the TF of the DF Double Crossover that is included in Item 42.

If confirmed; please correct the quantity in Item 38.

Please explain the reference to 8" slab in the Item 38 description.

Item 38 will be modified to Track, Direct Fixation Track Slab all thicknesses, 

and includes direct fixation on bridge decks. This does not include limits of 

special trackwork which should be included in their appropriate pay items. 

 Quantities will be updated appropriately. 
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12 Book 1A, Book 2
IFB Pages 75-77,

IFB 20-27

The bid forms require bidders to submit a DBE Participation Commitment(s) 

Form and Bidders List.    Bidders are also encouraged to submit Good Faith 

Efforts.

Section 4.2 of the IFB (page 75) states that the Bidders List must be included 

with the bid submission.

Primes will be receiving hundreds of quotes from subcontractors and 

suppliers for this project.  It is unrealistic to expect primes to receive 

competitive quotes and submit information for every quote received and 

documentation of good faith efforts at bid time.  For this reason, other 

agencies such as Caltrans extend the deadline for DBE Good Faith Effort 

documentation and other forms such as the bidders list to 4:00 PM on the 5th 

working day after the bid opening.

Please consider a similar deadline for this project.

Good Faith Efforts, DBE Participation Commitment letters and Bidders Lists 

must be received by the AUTHORITY no later than 4:00 pm on the 2nd 

business day after bid opening if they are not submitted with the bid.

13 Book 1C TD05

TD05 in Vol 1 of Book 1C shows a reinforced concrete curb wall and a 

reinforced concrete slab beneath the DF plinths.  We are assuming this is 

paid for under bid item  60 - Retaining Walls and not bid item 35 - Track, 

Embedded Track.

Please Confirm.

DF track and upturned curb should be paid as part of Item 38.

14 Book 1C NS01, NS02

NS01 and NS02 in Vol 3 of Book 1C show 4" Asphalt beneath the ballasted 

track. We are assuming this work is paid for under bid item 60 - Retaining 

Walls and not bid item 36 - Track, Ballasted Track.

Please Confirm.

The Asphalt cap beneath the ballasted track is paid for under Item 36 Track, 

Ballast Track  

15

IFP 7-1904 Cover 

& IFP 7-1904

Contract

Sec I Instruction 

to Bidders 

(F)Submission of 

Bid (1) Date and 

Time

Bid Submittal Date: “Bids must be submitted at or before 11:00 a.m., March 

5, 2018” – We respectfully request moving the bid submission date to a 

Tuesday, Wednesday or Thursday as Monday's can lead to issues with 

coordination of subcontractors and suppliers based on past experience and 

the amount of documentation that is required with this bid package and DBE 

information at time of bid.

Bid due date changed to Friday, April 27th via Addendum No. 3

16

IFP 7-1904 Cover 

& IFP 7-1904

Contract

Sec I Instruction 

to Bidders (E) 

Clarifications of 

Specifications 

and Approved 

Equals (4) 

Authority 

Responses

Per the contract documents "Inquiries received after 5:00 p.m. on January 10, 

2018, will not be responded to." however the bid submission date is more 

than 7-weeks past this date. In an effort to avoid post project award issues 

and due to the timing of this bid request for proposal, we respectfully request 

that this date be moved to 3-weeks of bid opening to allow for a full 

evaluation of all contract documents.

Addendum No. 4 to the IFB extends the due date for questions to February 

28, 2018
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17
IFB 7-1904 

Contract

Sec I Instruction 

to Bidders (E) 

Clarifications of 

Specifications 

and Approved 

Equals (3) 

Submitting 

Request (a)

sc
Addendum No. 4 to the IFB extends the due date for questions to February 

28, 2018

18

IFB 7-1904 

Contract

DBE Participation 

Commitment(s) 

Form PDBE 

INFORMATION - 

GOOD FAITH 

EFFORT

Sec II Instruction 

to Bidding Forms 

(K) Disadvantage 

Business 

Enterprise

DBE Participation 

Commitment(s) 

Form Bidders List

DBE Information 

– Good Faith 

Efforts

Per the contract documents all DBE Good Faith Effort and DBE Participation 

Comments are due at time of bid. We are respectfully requesting a 96 hour 

extension to accurately compile the data and reduce the potential protest that 

may occur due to minor errors. This documentation typically is not complete 

in it's entirety and/or in a timely manner during the bid closing period.

Good Faith Efforts, DBE Participation Commitment letters and Bidders Lists 

must be received by the AUTHORITY no later than 4:00 pm on the 2nd 

business day after bid opening if they are not submitted with the bid.

19
Prequalification 

Documents

Will the Authority release all submitted prequalified subcontractors for use by 

all prime contractors use during the project bidding period?

No, the AUTHORITY will only release the names of prequalified prime 

contractors.

20
Prequalification 

Documents

Will the Authority allow the use of alternate prequalified subcontractors which 

were prequalified with other prime contractors post bid award to construct the 

project?

No.

21

IFB 7-1904

General 

Conditions

GC-9 Hazardous 

Materials

Please clarify if the Authority will be identified as the generator and sign all 

manifest for all pre-existing hazardous waste encountered on the project?

In addition, please clarify if the Authority will maintain a hazardous waste 

agreement through the project duration in order to expeditiously remove all 

such waste encountered and minimize potential delays?

The AUTHORITY or cities, will be identified as generator for and sign 

manifests for pre-existing hazardous waste encountered within the project 

limits.  The Contract Special Conditions will be revised to provide specific 

information for AUTHORITY or cities Hazardous Waste representatives.   
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22

IFB 7-1904 

Contract and GC-

41

Sec I Instruction 

to Bidders (E) 

Clarifications of 

Specifications 

and Approved 

Equals (3) 

Submitting 

Request (a)

AND

GC-41 Product 

Options, Supplier 

Approval, and 

Substitutions

Per the contract documents, all requests for approved equals, clarifications of 

specification, or request must be in writing and must be received by the 

Authority no later than 5:00 p.m., on January 3, 2018." and "As required by 

California Public Code such request shall be made within thirty-five (35) 

calendar days from date of notice to proceed with Construction in order to 

receive consideration, unless submission of a request is agreed to by the 

Authority." We respectfully request that these 2 requirements are modified to 

allow the contractor to provide alternative materials, within a respectable time 

period prior to the start of said work, throughout the contract duration. In 

addition, these two sections are contradicting and require clarification on 

which statement will be considered to set precedence during the bidding 

period.

The IFB provides for two distinct timeframes and processes for product 

substitution. During the bidding period, if the bidder wishes to 

receive AUTHORITY's approval of substitution(s) prior to submission of bid, 

then the bidder should adhere to the deadline indicated by the AUTHORITY. 

Postaward requests are covered in GC-41. No change in requirements.  

23
IFB 7-1904 Bid 

Book

Bid Form Page 2, 

Item Number (12)

Per the contract documents the "Bid will be in effect for 180 calendar days 

after the bid closing date." Please clarify when the Authority will issue LNTP 

and NTP. In addition, please clarify the timeline for on-site work activated to 

commence.

Per Addendum No. 3, the bid opening is scheduled for 4/27/18.  OCTA 

Board Approval to Award is anticipated for 6/25/18.  The Limited Notice to 

Proceed described in Special Condition (SC) 4.2.1 is expected to be issued 

in August 2018. There are several items described in SC 4.2.2 that must be 

submitted and approved prior to OCTA issuing the Notice to Proceed with 

Construction.  As stated in SC 4.2.2, it is OCTA's intent to issue it within 60 

days.

24

General 

Conditions Article 

11

Article 11 

Insurance, (A)

Article 11.A, indicates that any self-insured retention above $50K must be 

approved by the Authority. Please modify this section to remove the self-

insured maximum limit.

No, the requirement will remain. Approvals for self-insurance will be 

promptly considered.

25

General 

Conditions Article 

11

Article 11 

Insurance, (A) 

Item Number (1)

Article 11.A.1. General Liability states the following: limits of $5,000,000 

occurrence / $20,000,000 aggregate. Please clarify that this can be meet 

through a combination of primary and excess insurance as it is not 

commercially available as a primary policy.

Yes, the limits can be met with a combination of primary and excess 

insurance.
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26

General 

Conditions Article 

11

Article 11 

Insurance, (A) 

Item Number (1)

Article 11.A.1. General Liability states the following: b. Indicates the policy not 

exclude coverage for inverse condemnation. We are respectfully requesting 

that this portion of the requirements are removed from the contract 

requirements as it is not applicable to coverage of property damage and non-

typical for general liability coverage as this is not commercially available.

This is not a standard exclusion under commercial general liability. No 

change.

27

General 

Conditions Article 

11

Article 11 

Insurance, (A) 

Item Number (1) 

(a)

Article 11.A.1.(a) states the following:  (a) the workers comp and employers 

liability exclusion should only apply to the policyholder. We respectfully 

request this section be removed from the requirements, as described below it 

is not needed.

1. The Work Comp exclusion is written so it only applies to the  insured under 

a workers' compensation, disability benefits or unemployment compensation 

law or any similar law. That will not be amended, the policy will cover any 

insured s obligation to cover these benefits.

2. The employers liability exclusion eliminates coverage for an insured with 

respect to that insured's employees. The exclusion does not apply to liability 

assumed by the insured under an "insured contract". So when the Contractor 

assumes the project owner's liability exposure in connection with injury to the 

Contractors employees, the Contractor will be obligated to pay any damages 

awarded to the injured employee as a result of the employee's suit against 

the owner.

3. The requested changes are due to the prescribed coverage(s) which are 

not commercially available. 

In California, workers compensation and employers liability are the exclusive 

remedy for workplace injuries. Therefore, a commercial liability policy would 

not provide coverage and an exclusion is appropriate.

28

General 

Conditions Article 

11

Article 11 

Insurance, (A) 

Item Number (1) 

(b)

Article 11.A.1.(b) indicates that "no other endorsements" may be included. 

That is not possible. Exclusions for such items as Pollution, asbestos, silica, 

employment practices , etc. are added to the policy. We respectfully request 

that this requirement be removed from the project requirements.

This Article has been been amended in Addendum No. 6 so that other 

endorsements will need to be approved by the AUTHORITY.

29

General 

Conditions Article 

11

Article 11 

Insurance, (A) 

Item Number (4) 

(a)

Article 11.A.4. (a) indicates that the Builder's Risk insurance is maintained 

until "final acceptance". We are respectfully requesting that this section is 

modified to reflect "substantial completion." Final acceptance could be 

construed to include minor construction activities and/or the warranty period 

and will bear additional unwarranted cost to the Authority.

No change to the requirement.
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30

General 

Conditions Article 

11

Article 11 

Insurance, (A) 

Item Number (5)

Article 11.A.5. states the following: “The CPL shall not contain any provision 

or exclusion that would bar or otherwise preclude any insured or additional 

insured from making a claim that would otherwise be covered by the CPL”. 

Please clarify that the intent of this statement is to allow an additional insured 

(the Authority) to make  a claim against the Contractor and have the policy 

respond without an insured vs insured exclusion.

Confirmed.

31

General 

Conditions Article 

11

Article 11 

Insurance, (A) 

Item Number (7)

Article 11.A.7. states the following: “Allocated Loss Expense must be in 

addition to all policy limits for coverage referenced above”. The Professional 

and Cyber policies required will not loss expense as part of the limit and not 

in addition to the limit. We respectfully request that this statement be 

removed from the contract requirements as it is not relevant and not 

commercially available.

This Article has been amended in Addendum No. 6 to allow exceptions for 

claims made policies.

32

General 

Conditions

Article 11

Article 11 

Insurance, (A) 

Item Number (7)

Article 11.A.7. states the following: “Not more frequently than once every five 

years". Please clarify the intent of this statement as it is unclear?
This phrase has been deleted in Addendum No. 6.

33

General 

Conditions Article 

11

Article 11 

Insurance, (A) 

Item Number (8)

Article 11.A.8. states the following: the "subcontractors maintain insurance 

coverage in the same amounts required of CONTRACTOR herein”... We 

respectfully request that this statement be removed. Subcontractors will not 

have limits that meet these spec as regard to General Liability and Pollution 

and most will not carry Professional and Cyber Liability. IF this unusual 

coverage can be obtained by the subcontractors, it will add additional 

unnecessary financial burden to all stakeholders and not commercially 

available.

No change to the requirement.

34

General 

Conditions

Article 11

Article 11 

Insurance, (B) 

Item Number (3)

Article 11.B.3. requires 30 day notice of cancellation. We are requesting that 

the following statement be modified by adding "10 days if for nonpayment of 

premiums."

Accepted. This Article has been amended in Addendum No. 6 to add "10 

days if for nonpayment of premiums."

35

General 

Conditions

Article 11

Article 11 

Insurance

Please clarify if this contract is subject to California Code, Public Contract 

Code, Section 7105 as it is unclear?

At this time, the AUTHORITY does not have any planned debt issuances 

associated with the OC Streetcar.

36

General 

Conditions

Exhibit A

Section 2.2.1 

Other Insured 

Entities

Special 

Conditions SC-2 

Indemnifications 

and Insurance 

2.2.1

Employers liability can NOT have additional insureds.  Please delete this 

requirement as it is not commercially available.

The AUTHORITY is not requiring additional insured endorsements for 

Workers Compensation and Employers Liability.
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37

Currently the documents require that the Good Faith Efforts (GFE) and the 

complete Bidders List (all firms that bid, propose or quote to the primes) are 

due at the time of bid.  We are requesting that for this pursuit the Owner 

allows these documents to be submitted within 3 or 4 business days after the 

submission of the bid.  Allowing these documents to be submitted after the 

bid date is industry standard and requiring them to be submitted at time of bid 

puts an incredible burden on the Contractors that can result in responsible 

bidders from not being able to provide the Owner with the lowest price 

possible. 

Good Faith Efforts, DBE Participation Commitment letters and Bidders Lists 

must be received by the AUTHORITY no later than 4:00 pm on the 2nd 

business day after bid opening if they are not submitted with the bid.

38

Currently the documents require that the DBE commitment letters be signed 

and submitted at time of bid.  We are requesting that for this pursuit the 

Owner allows these letters to be submitted within 3 or 4 business days after 

the submission of the bid.  Due to the variability of how subcontractor and 

suppliers provide their numbers to Contractors, scopes may adjust during bid 

close-out, resulting in different values from subcontractors and suppliers that 

would need to submit these commitment letters making it impractical to have 

them due with the bids. 

Good Faith Efforts, DBE Participation Commitment letters and Bidders Lists 

must be received by the AUTHORITY no later than 4:00 pm on the 2nd 

business day after bid opening if they are not submitted with the bid.

39

Currently the deadline for questions to the Owner is Wednesday, January 

10
th

 2018 at 5pm PST.  Due to the magnitude of documents provided with 

this RFP it is requested that the questions deadline be extended 3 to 4 weeks 

to allow sufficient time for Contractors, Subcontractors and Vendors to 

discover and submit questions that arise during the review of the documents. 

Addendum No. 4 to the IFB extends the due date for questions to February 

28, 2018

40

In the document “IFB 7-1904 Add 1 Att D IFB Book 1A revised.pdf” that was 

issued in addenda 1, on page 15 of the pdf (Section I. Instructions to Bidders 

E-3.a) it states that all requests… must be received by the Authority no later 

than 5:00pm on January 3, 2018.  On the cover sheet of the same document 

it states that Questions/Approved Equal Submittal is due by January 10, 

2018.  Please confirm that the deadline for Questions and Approved Equal 

Submittals is January 10, 2018 at 5:00pm PST. 

Addendum No. 4 to the IFB extends the due date for questions to February 

28, 2018

41
Book 1A, Book 

1C

GC-47 and SC-33 describe that the contractor is required for all project 

Quality Control, including all testing and inspection. Drawing ZDG02, 

Structural Observation, specifically items 2 and 3 note that structural 

observation shall be by a registered engineered employed by the Owner, and 

independent of the contractor. Please clarify who is responsible for all testing, 

inspection, and structural observation at the Maintenance and Storage 

facility.

The Contractor shall provide all Testing & Inspection as required by the 

contract documents. Owner may provide additional independent Inspection, 

but this does not relieve the Contractor of its duty to provide these services. 

Structural Observation shall be provided by the Owner, but this does not 

relieve the Contractor of its duty to provide specified Structural Inspection & 

Testing.
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42 Book 1C

ZCN03, ZDD15, 

TA72, TA74, 

TD12, ZTN01

Drawing ZCN03 indicates that (concrete) embedded tracks extend from the 

MSF building to the zone of asphalt paving. Section 3 on drawing ZDD15 

indicates that the track becomes ballasted at the end of the building apron, 

supported by 10' approach slabs. Drawings TA72 and TA74 clearly indicate 

the transition from embedded to ballasted, approximately corresponding to 

drawing ZCN03. Drawing TD12 details a transition from embedded to 

ballasted, using a 20' approach slab. Please confirm where the tracks in the 

yard convert from ballasted to embedded. Please confirm the proper track 

section for the embedded portion (2 and 3/ZDD15, or something else)? 

Please confirm the intended transition detail for the yard (ZDD15, or TD12).

The track transitions from ballasted to embedded at the locations shown on 

TA72 and TA74.  The embedded track section at the transition from 

ballasted to embedded track shall be per A/TD-12.  The track slab section at 

the building apron shall be per 2/Z-DD15.  There are no transition slabs for 

the transition from ballasted and embedded track within the MSF.  TD-12 is 

applicable to mainline track only. Z-DD15 will be revised for clarification in 

an upcoming Addendum. 

43
Book 1C, Volume 

4, 2
Z-CN01

Note 1 on the reference drawing states, "site demotion: existing structures, 

recycling facility, associated equipment, and pavement surfaces will be 

removed by others". Note 3 on this same drawing states, "contractor to 

remove all existing structures, obstructions, foundations, and utility services 

on this site". Please confirm the scope and method of payment of contractor 

demolition within the limits of the VMSF site.

Note 1 on Z-CN01 will be deleted in a future Addendum.  It is possible that 

one or both of the property owners will remove existing structures, 

equipment, and/or pavement.  In addition, OCTA is developing a separate 

demolition contract.  If neither of these occur, Optional Bid Items 11-14, 

which are allowances, will be used for demolition.

44

Book 1A Special 

Conditions Book 

1C, Volume 1

FG03

Special 

Conditions Page 

18, Section 6.3.4

Section 6.3.4 of the special conditions summarizes the sub segments for 

Segment 2. The sub segments do not match the Traffic Control Plans as 

depicted on FG03. Please confirm that Segment 2 has two sub segments as 

shown on FG03.

Section 6.3.4 has been revised to be consistent with FG03 in Addendum 

No. 5. 

45

Book 1A Special 

Conditions Book 

1C, Volume 1

FG05

Special 

Conditions Page 

22, Section 6.3.7

Section 6.3.7 of the special conditions summarizes the sub segments for 

Segment 5. The sub segments and their sequencing do not match the Traffic 

Control Plans as depicted on FG05. Please confirm that Segment 2 has three 

sub segments as shown on FG05.

Section 6.3.7 is correct.  Drawing TG05 will be updated to be consistent in a 

future Addendum.

46
Book 1A Special

Conditions

Special

Conditions

Page 17,

Section

6.3.3

Section 6.3.3 of the special conditions states that closures may occur during 

weekends with appropriate detours in place for the Fairview Street and 5th 

Street grade crossings. Intersection closure hours can not be found.

Please provide closure hours or confirm that closures will be allowed from 10 

PM Friday night to 5 AM Monday morning.

Yes, where it says "weekend" it means 10 PM Friday to 5 AM Monday.  This 

has been added to Section 6.3.3 in Addendum No. 5.

Page 9 of 44 Last Updated: 2/23/2018, 8:57 AM

IFB 7-1904
ADDENDUM NO. 6, ATTACHMENT A



IFB 7-1904 - OC Streetcar Construction Project 

Questions Received

Exhibit / 

Attachment / 

Spec Section

Drawing/ 

Attachment
Page Number(s) Paragraph (s)

Response
Submitted 

No.

Reference Document(s)

Questions

47
Book 1A Special

Conditions

Special

Conditions

Page 19,

20, 21, 22

Sections 6.3.4, 6.3.5, 6.3.6 and 6.3.7 state that closures of major 

intersections in Segments 2, 3, 4 and 5 will be limited to night work between 

the hours of 10 PM and 5 AM.

Please consider allowing weekend closures from 10pm Friday night to 5am 

Monday morning for major intersections instead of limiting them to 7 HRS at 

night. This will minimize disruptions to the public, improve schedule and 

eliminate unnecessary

expenses.

We confirm that closures of major intersections will be limited to night work 

between the hours of 10PM to 5AM.

48

Book 1A Special

Conditions

Book 1C, Volume 

1

Special

Conditions

Page 19, 20

FG04 depicts the work required at the intersection at Mortimer St and 5th St 

in Segment 3, Stage 3. FN41 shows this intersection as a non-active zone 

with traffic crossing through it.

Although this intersection is listed within the limits of Segment 3C on Page 

19, we find no mention of this intersection being defined as minor or major as 

listed on page 20.

We are assuming this is an error and that the intersection of Mortimer St and 

5th St will be considered at a temporary partial intersection closure (minor). 

Please confirm.

Special Condition 6.3.5 bullet starting with "Temporay partial intersection 

closures will be allowed at minor intersections" has been expanded to say 

"on Mortimer Street at 4th, 5th, and 6th Streets" in Addendum No. 5.

49 Book 1C ZCD04

Drawing ZCD04 notes a standing seam metal roof on the trash enclosure, but 

we find no specification for this roofing system.

Please provide a specification for standing seam metal roofing.

A specification will be provided for the standing seam roof in an upcoming 

Addendum. Standing seam metal roof shall also be provided over the metal 

deck on the train washer canopy. 

50 Book 1C ZCD04

Drawing ZCD04 notes to see structural drawings for the roof-supporting 

beams of the trash enclosure, but we find no details in the structural 

drawings.

Please indicate the plan sheet containing this information.

A drawing revision will be provided in an upcoming Addendum to clarify the 

detail. 

51 Book 1C ZCD04

Drawing ZCD04 notes that the trash enclosure roof is supported by metal 

decking, but we find no information to indicate depth or gauge.

Please provide this information

A drawing revision will be provided in an upcoming Addendum to clarify the 

detail. 

52 Book 1C
ZPN42;

ZPS32

Drawings ZPN42 and ZPS32 note that the car wash equipment room has 

insulated roof metal panels over metal decking, but the main wash bay just 

notes metal decking.

Is there a roofing system over the metal decking on the wash bay?

If so, please specify.

A specification will be provided for the standing seam roof in an upcoming 

Addendum. Standing seam metal roof shall also be provided over the metal 

deck on the train washer canopy.

53 Book 1C
UCOMN13;

ZBD03

Drawing UCOMN13 notes that panel CP1A is a 100A panel, fed from a UPS 

powered by branch panel UP1A, but the panel schedule on ZBD03 for panel 

UP1A shows only a 20A circuit (46) for “CP-1”.

Please clarify the source of power for panel CP1A.

The correct source of power to the UPS is Panel “SBP-1A”  Circuit #1, 

20A,3P located within Tele/data Rm. Refer to Schedule drawing ZBD-04. 

Circuit #46 in UP-1A pertains to a different load. UCOMN13 will be revised 

in an upcoming Addendum to reflect source panel SBP-1A. 
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54 Book 1A

Special

Condtions

Pages 62,

143

Section 14.1 of the special conditions states for all soil excavation in the PE 

ROW, the top 1' of excavation shall be stockpiled and tested prior to disposal.

Section 53.4 of the special conditions states that Bid Item 15 includes all 

investigation, testing and excavation of Contaminated Soils if encountered 

within the PE ROW.

Please confirm that the removal, stockpiling and testing of the top 1' as 

stipulated in Section 14.1 will be paid as part of the Bid Item 15 allowance.

Section 53.4 of the Special Conditions Bid Item 15 has been revised in 

Addendum No. 5 to read as "Removal and Disposal of Contaminated 

Soils".  The Bid Form will be revised in a future Addendum. The description 

for this bid item has also been revised as follows: "a. The Work of this item 

includes investigation, testing and excavation for Contaminated Soils if 

encountered within the limits of OCTA-owned property within the PE ROW 

and public ROW, removal, transporting and disposal of Contaminated Soils 

at a permitted TSD facility including permitting efforts and permitting fees 

required for disposal and all other costs associated to the testing, removal, 

and disposal of the materials, as directed by the AUTHORITY.

b. Measurement: Allowance

c. Payment: This item will be paid for on Force Account in accordance with 

GC-60 as authorized by the Engineer."

55
Book 1C, Volume 

2
SN09

The plans call for 28.22' of 8" PVC pipe heading north from a manhole at CL 

station 49+46.37. The line looks to extend north of the WBT by 5'. This would 

be a total of 46' of 8" PVC pipe.

How many feet of 8" PVC pipe is to be installed heading north of the manhole 

at CL station 49+46.37 and please provide connection detail?

The lateral called out at 49+46.37 is incorrect.  A revision to drawing SN09 

to be issued in a future Addendum will show the correct lateral and length of 

pipe.  Connection detail shall be per City of Santa Ana Std Plans 1204 and 

1204A. 

56
Book 1C, Volume 

2
SN11

The plans call for 6" VCP SS to be extended to the north and south of the 

manhole at CL station 17+15.28. The plans also show the existing pipe to be 

8" VCP. What size of pipe should be installed at this location?

Existing pipe verified to be 8". SN11 will be changed in a future Addendum 

to change 6" VCP SS as noted  to be 8" to match existing. 

57 Book 2

Bid Form,

Pg 5 & 6

Item 18 &

36

The quantity in Item 36 seems to be very overstated. Please confirm that the 

quantity in Item 36 is to include the Ballasted Mainline Track only, without the 

footage within the special trackwork, and not including the Yard Lead (Yard 

Lead in Item 18 per Item 18 Measurement & Payment).

If confirmed; please correct the quantity in Item 36.

Ballasted trackwork does not include special trackwork limits or limits for 

yard lead, quantity will be confirmed and updated as required.  Bid Item 36 

will be revised in a future Addendum. 
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58

Book 1C, Volume 

2

Book 1B, Exhibit 

B-1 02 41 12

Book 1D, Exhibit 

M-4

RN11

to RN17

Drawings RN11 to RN17 depict the limits of existing railroad ties and ballast 

located under asphalt along W Santa Ana Blvd.

1) For bidding purposes, please confirm that bidders are to assume that the 

existing rail has already been removed and if encounter, removal of rail, 

spikes and accessories will be paid for under Item 23 - Removal of Buried 

Man Made Objects.

2) The notes in Table 1 of Exhibit M-4 show RR ties encountered with 

petroleum odor...along this location. If the existing ties, ballast and underlying 

soils contain creosote preservative, or any other contaminates, please 

confirm that theinvestigation and removal will be paid for under Item 23 - 

Removal of Buried Man

Made Objects.

3) Specification 02 41 12 -3.13 states that leaving existing ballast in place is 

acceptable based on approval of the qualified geotechnical professional. For 

bidding purposes, please confirm that existing ballast can remain in place.

4) Is the investigation and removal of existing non-contaminated railroad ties 

within 2 feet of the bottom of excavation paid for under Item 23, or is it 

considered incidental to other items of work? If it is incidental to the other 

items of work, can OCTA provide the number of tracks and tie spacing in this 

location that bidders should use?

1) If encountered, removal of rail and spikes would be paid for under Bid 

Item 23, Remove Buried Man Made Objects. 2) If encountered,  removal of 

treated ties would be paid for under Bid Item 15, and removal of underlying 

contaminated soils would be paid for under Bid item 15.  3) If the geotech 

directs the removal of the ballast material below the proposed excavation, it 

would be paid for under Bid Item 23.  If it is found to be contaminated, it 

would be paid for under Bid Item 15  4) If non-contaminated ties are 

encountered, removal would be paid for under Item Bid Item 23.  SC 53, 

part 15, and bid item description for Bid Item 15 will be revised in a future 

Addendum so that it is clear that Treated Wood Waste will be paid for under 

Bid Item 15. The Bid Form will be revised in a future Addendum.

59

Book 1C, Volume 

2

Book 1B, Exhibit 

B-1 02 41 12

Drawings RN03, RN05 and RN06 depict general outline of where timber 

piling may be buried. Specification 02 41 12-3.12 states to remove any trestle 

pile at least 2' below the bottom of the proposed excavation.

Please confirm that if encountered, the investigation and removal will be paid 

for under Item 23 Removal of Buried Man Made Objects.

If encountered, the indentification, excavation, removal, and disposal of 

existing buried timber piles would be paid for under Bid Item 23, Remove 

Buried Man Made Objects.  If timber piling is determined to be Treated 

Wood Waste, then it will be paid for under Bid Item No. 15.

60

Specification Section 27 01 60, 3.02 General Software Requirements, A, 3-8 

 lists interfaces to OCTA systems, please identify each interface or provide 

the OCTA API for review?

To be answered in a future Addendum

61

Traffic Signals

Within IFB 7-1904 Book 1C Sheets XN1 – XN 23 (sheet numbers 417 – 

439/1520), there is a callout to referenced plans designated XN24, XN25, 

XN26, XN27- XN33. These plans are not attached with project plans. Can the 

Authority please provide a copy of those plans which are needed to facilitate 

the required fiber optic modifications that are stipulated at each traffic signal 

intersection?

These drawings will be provided in an upcoming Addendum.  
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62

Street Lighting

IFB 7-1904 BOOK 1B-TECHNICAL SPECS-SECTION 26 56 13  ITEM C.3 

dictates for the street lighting that work, products, and materials shall conform 

to City of Santa Ana Standard Plans. Note Standard Plan No. 1126A thru I 

which pertain to street lighting are unavailable for downloading from their web 

site due to they are being revised by the city at this time. Can these plans 

please be provided?

Revised City of Santa Ana Street Lighting Standard Plans have been 

included in Addendum No. 5 in Exhibit S, Standard Plans.

63

Addendum No. 3, issued on Thursday, January 4, 2018, has pushed the bid 

date of the OC Streetcar project to April 27, 2018.  If this push of the bid date 

is due to the Authority anticipating that large changes are going to occur with 

the specifications and plans that necessitate such an extension, it would be a 

great benefit to the bidding Contractors if the Authority is able to indicate what 

major items of work/scopes or locations are more likely to be altered in the 

future.  This will allow Contractors to more efficiently allocate resources and 

efforts on the areas/scopes or locations that are not as likely to undergo 

major changes. 

The change in bid date was not due to large changes coming to the 

specifications and plans.  There are changes being made to traffic signals, 

signs, and pavement markings resulting from California Public Utilities 

Commission comments, changes to the MSF and TPSS resulting from 

comments coming from the City of Santa Ana Development Review, and 

changes to the Orange County Sanitation District Sewer.

64

Plan Sheets DN49 & DN50, Section Details A & B call out Ducts for top 

Strands and says “See Temporary Top Strand Layout”. I am unable to find 

the “Temporary top strand layout” sheet or information. Can you please clarify 

what this is for and the duct size?

The Temporary Top Strand Layout detail is not needed.  The drawings will 

be revised in a future Addendum to remove reference to the Temporary Top 

Strand Layout.

65
For the Insert assembly shown on DN51, is there a spec or bolt grade 

required?

For Insert Assembly shown on DN51, please refer to Technical Specification 

Section 05 60 00 – “Miscellaneous Metal Fabrication”.

66

Plan sheet DN57, detail 2 calls out “Precast Concrete Panel with Non-Skid 

Surface (Weight Limited to 75lbs per piece)” Can you please provide 

additional information, dimensions, attachment method, Non-skid surface 

design or requirements, ect? 

"Specification 34 10 40 Precast Concrete Panels provides design 

requirements for panels. It is intended that width and thickness of panel be 

selected as part of the design by the contractor. A revision to the 

specification will be added in an upcoming Addendum to clarify the non-skid 

surface.  The revisions to Item 1 in Section 2.02 of the Section 34 10 40 – 

“Precast Concrete Panel-Structural” will state:

“The non-skid surface shall conform to the requirements in Section 51-

1.03E(6), “Nonskid Abrasive Finish” of the 2015 Caltrans Standard 

Specifications.”

The panels are intended to be set into place such that the panel(s) can be 

removed to access the duct bank. A revision to the drawings showing a 

method of transverse restraint (a shear tab on the underside of the precast 

panel) will be shown in a future revision."
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67

Can we please get further clarification where the bonding details on sheet U-

TSN38 are used?  Some details call out specific locations and others don’t 

and the signal layout plans do not show I-bonds on the drawings.

The bonding details on U-TSN38 without specific locations are shown as 

possible installation options. All required information can be found in single 

line plans, and the information about impedance bonds is shown in U-

TSN038 (details 6 and 7 contain all required information about all 

impedance bonds for the four signal interlockings).

68

Special 

Conditions

6.6.1

Special Condition 6.6.1 makes the Contractor responsible for all utility service 

fees (design, engineering, impact, connection, etc.) from a multitude of utility 

providers (SCE, SCG, COGG, COSA). The cost of these types fees is highly 

variable, depending on the existing infrastructure as well as previous 

coordination and/or

memorandums of understanding (MOUs), and are sometimes indeterminate 

until final engineering and design is complete.

The points of connection are missing for all the SCE electrical services, 

which will greatly impact cost depending on their actual location. Some third 

party utilities are also unwilling to comment on fees at this time due to the 

multitude of unknowns.

In order to avoid contractors adding contingencies to their bids, please 

consider creating an allowance item for all such utility-assessed fees.

Coordination with the Utlity Companies is ongoing.  Since complete and 

comprehensive service locations and fees are not currently available, a 

Utility Service Fee Bid Item Allowance will be added to the Schedule of 

Quantities and Prices and SC-53 will be updated to describe what is 

covered by this Allowance Bid Item.  Related to the points of connection, 

please reference the paragraphs in SC-6.6.1 which immediately follow each 

Utilty Service and Meter Table for contractor instructions on how to base its 

bid for this Work. The Bid Form will be revised in a future Addendum.

69

Special 

Conditions

6.6.1

Special Condition 6.6.1 makes the Contractor responsible for all utility service 

coordination (timing, performance, etc.). In order to responsibily bid this 

project, we need to understand what previous coordination has occurred, and 

the terms of any Memorandums of Understanding (MOUs).

Please provide information on previous coordination, MOUs, and any 

commitments made by the various utility providers in support of this project.

The AUTHORITY is in the process of applying for all utility services and will 

complete the service applications in accordance with exhibit J-10 New 

Service Matrix and the Service Request Exhibits. The AUTHORITY has 

carried out several utility service coordination activities in preparation for the 

subject construction contract, including but not limited to the following: 

Regular and ongoing coordination meetings with all-known Utility Owners 

that are impacted by Project implementation; Utility Potholing by the 

Designer and Utility Owners, Utility Relocation Designs by the Designer and 

Utility Owners, and preparation of service applications. The AUTHORITY is 

prepared to assist CONTRACTOR in the Project's utility service 

coordination activities during the construction phase of the Project. 

However, this does not relieve the CONTRACTOR of the responsibilities 

identified in the Contract Documents.
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70
NN08,

NN11
685, 688

At the following wall drawings and locations, the footing elevation callouts do 

not match the elevations shown on the drawings:

Drawing NN08, Wall 144 - elevation callouts at 11+50, 12+72, 13+08

Drawing NN11, Wall 553 - elevation callout at wall station 10+24

Please advise the correct elevation for each location.

1) Retaining Wall 144, top of footing call out on the plans from beginning of 

wall (Wall LOL STA 10+00) to the end of the first 14’ tall wall (Wall LOL STA 

12+88.0) is labeled correctly at elevation 86.5’. The top of footing drawn on 

the developed elevation view was not properly scaled and will be adjusted in 

a future Addendum. 

2) Retaining Wall 153, top of footing elevation call out of 94.0’ will be 

adjusted to elevation 93.5’ between Wall LOL STA 10+00 and 10+50. The 

wall design height is not adjusted by this change (Design Height is still 

H=12’). The top of footing drawn on the Mirrored Developed Elevation was 

not properly scaled and will be adjusted in a future Addendum.

71 ITB, GC-41 1,3,4,44

Regarding Approved Equal requests/substitutions, GC-41 states, "as 

required by the California Public Contracts Code such request shall be made 

within thirty-five (35) calendar days from the date of the Notice to Proceed." 

However, a Key IFB date as modified by Addendum 2 requires "all requests 

for approved equals . . .must be

received . . .February 7, 2018."

Please confirm that February 7, 2018 is the deadline for 

substitution/approved equal requests for which the Authority will provide a 

determination before the bid date, but that substitution requests will still 

otherwise be accepted up to 35 days after NTP.

The IFB provides for two distinct timeframes and processes for product 

substitution. During the bidding period, if the bidder wishes to 

receive AUTHORITY's approval of substitution(s) prior to submission of bid, 

then the bidder should adhere to the deadline indicated by the AUTHORITY, 

as modified by Addenda. Postaward requests are covered in GC-41. 

72
U-OCSN03,

U-OCSD68

OCS layout plan drawing U-OCSN03 shows one down guy foundation that is 

shared for 1W/200 and 1W201. Down guy foundation installation schedule on 

drawing UOCSD68 shows a separate down guy foundation for 1W/200 and 

1W/201. Both 1W/200 and 1W/201 show the same stationing and offset in 

the installation schedule implying it could be the same foundation as shown in 

the OCS layout plan drawings.

Please confirm that only one OCS Down guy Foundation is required between 

OCS foundation 1W/200 and 1W/201.

Yes, only one down guy foundation is required between OCS foundation 

1W/200 and 1W/201.
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73

Schedule of 

Quanitities & 

Prices

Schedule of Quantity and Prices has Bid Item 48 Traction Power Substation 

with a quantity of 4ea. There are four full size TP substations through out the 

alignment with a smaller substation inside the Maintenance Building.

Should the smaller traction power substation inside the maintenance facility 

get paid under Bid Item 48, increasing the quantity to 5 ea?

If the smaller traction power substation inside the maintenance facility is not 

to be paid under Bid Item 48, which bid item should it be paid under?

Traction power equipment contained within the Maintenance and Storage 

Facility would be paid for under Bid Item 16 as described in SC 53.4 Item 

16.

74
DN47, DN49, 

DN50

For the Santa Ana River Bridge, please provide details for intermediate 

diaphrams at spans 2 and 3.

Drawings with details for intermediate diaphragms at Spans 2 and 3 will be 

added by future Addendum.  

75
Book 1A, SC 

6.6.1
CU07

Page 36 of the Special Conditions 6.6.1 shows a 2" water service and meter 

at N Fairview St, station 49+37, 47' RT. Sheet CU07 denotes this as a 1" 

service.

Please confirm that this a 2" service as stated in the special conditions.

This is a 1" service.  The table on Page 36 of SC 6.6.1 has been corrected 

in Addendum No. 5.  

76 34 11 13 2.02.B

TD18,

TD19, & TA

Track Plans

We have identified the following conflicts between the TA Track Plans, the 

Referenced Spec, and the Precurved Rail Details on TD18 & TD19: The 

curves identified on TD18 & TD19 as curves EB134, EB135, EB145, EB147, 

EB148, WB139, WB146, & EB155 are identified on the Track Plans as 

curves EB133, EB134, EB144,

EB146, EB147, WB138, WB145, & EB154. The curve EB147 on TD & 

EB146 on TA is shown as R=265' on TD and R=400' on TA. The curve 

EB148 on TD & EB147 on TA is shown as R=82' on TD and R=66' on TA. 

Please update the track plans and precurved rail details with the same Curve 

IDs and Radii.

The curve WB133 on both TD & TA is shown as precurved with a R=355' 

while the Referenced Spec calls for precurved rail for R of 300' or less. 

Please confirm that this curve must be pre-curved rail.

If the curve EB147 on TD & EB146 on TA is actually R=400', is it still required 

to be precurved?

--The curve numbers shown on the TA sheets are correct.  TD 18 and 19 

will be updated accordingly in an upcoming Addendum.

--The minimum curve radii for precurved rail shall be 300' for 115RE and 

400' for 112TRAM.  The spec will be updated accordingly in an upcoming 

Addendum.  

--EB146 with R400' shall be precurved as it is within the 112TRAM limits.

77 TD20

Plan TD20 is titled "MSF Precurved Rail", but does not show the limits of the 

precurved rails.

Within the MSF Yard, how far past the PC's and PT's will the Precurved Rails 

be required to extend?

The precurved rail shall be curved throughout the entire length of the curve 

per Note 5 on TD20.
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78 34 11 23 2.15.A TG13

Plan TG13 is the Special Trackwork Schedule. In the schedule 10 ballasted 

concrete tie turnouts are designated as Shop Encapsulated. All but one of 

these turnouts are embedded in A.C. Paving. The 190' R turnout is not 

embedded at all. The encapsulation spec 34 11 23 2.15 is identified in 34 11 

23 2.15A as for special trackwork embedded in concrete. It is unusual to 

encapsulate ballasted special trackwork.

Please provide specifications and details for encapsulated ballasted special 

trackwork including fastening details for encapsulated or booted rail to 

concrete ties, and how the switch points are to be isolated.

Also, is the 190' R turnout actually encapsulated?

Encapsulation for AC paved special trackwork is required to provide stray 

current corrosion control. Specification 34 11 28 has been updated in 

Addendum No. 6 to provide encapsulation specs for AC paved special 

trackwork. Fastening for AC paved special trackwork shall be per 

TD26.  The ballasted 190'R TO will not be encapsulated per revision 

to TG13 that was issued with Addendum No. 5. 

79
Book 1A, SC 

6.6.1

CU27

BN11

Sheet CU27 depicts a new electrical service equipment enclosure at the 

south east intersection of E Santa Ana Blvd and French St (note 8).

This electrical service can not be found in the table of SCE New Streetcar 

Electric Service Meters included in Special Conditions Section 6.6.1. Sheet 

BN11 shows an existing SCE Service Feed Point with an existing Metered 

Service Equipment Enclosure at this general location (Note 5). Sheet BN11 

also shows this circuit coming from a new 120/240 V dual metered service 

panel at the North West

intersection of French St and E Santa Ana Blvd, which is identified in the 

table in SC 6.6.1 (E Santa Ana Blvd 98+31, 28' LT).

We are assuming that an electrical service, meter and enclosure will not be 

required at this location since it is not shown on the table and is depicted as 

existing in the street lighting plans. Please confirm.

There is no callout on either CU27 or BN11 for electrical service on the 

southeast quadrant of the intersection – it is on the southwest quadrant and 

on both CU27 and BN11 the callout is an existing service pedestal, not 

proposed. The existing pedestal at the southwest quadrant is to be removed 

and a new pedestal will be installed on the northwest quadrant as shown on 

BN 11 and on CU27 as item 14.

80 34 11 93 3.H
TD01 & CX

Typ Sect

Regarding Geotextile Fabric under Ballasted Track: Drawing TD01 states 

"See Specifications for Location and Placement" and in Note 1 states "See 

typical sections on CX drawings...". In Referenced Spec it states "...fabric 

shall be installed as indicated on the Contract Drawings...". On the CX 

drawings the Fabric is not shown

or referenced.

Please show or specify locations for Geotextile Fabric in Ballasted Track 

Areas.

Also, when used, is geotextile to extend under the maintenance access road 

in all areas?

Geotextile fabric shall be installed between the subgrade and subballast for 

all ballasted mainline and yard tracks for the entire subballast width.  

At locations where there is a maintenance road, the geotextile shall extend 

under the road as shown in TD01.

TD01 will be updated in a future Addendum to remove the reference to the 

specifications for location and placement. 

81

34 11 93 3.I.5 & 

32

12 18

Spec 34 11 93 3.I.5 states "Place paving fabric on top of ballast...". Spec 32 

12 18 "Asphalt Paving" does not mention paving fabric.

Please provide a spec for the required Paving Fabric; note that this is a 

different application than that of the specified Separation/Stabilization 

Geotextile.

Paving fabric shall be per Caltrans Standard Specification Section 96-1.02J, 

Paving Fabric.  Contract Specification 34 11 93 have been updated 

accordingly in Addendum No. 6. 
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82
Book 1A, SC 

6.6.1

CU26

BN11

The table of SCE New Streetcar Electrical Services in Special Conditions 

6.6.1 calls out for a new SCE service pedestal with one meter for pedestrian 

lights at E Santa Ana Blvd station 97+00, 23' LT.

Sheet CU26 shows a pullbox at this location and does not depict a an 

electrical service equipment enclosure. Sheet BN11 shows this circuit coming 

from a new 120/240 V dual metered service panel at the North West 

intersection of French St and E Santa Ana Blvd, which is identified in the 

table in SC 6.6.1 (E Santa Ana Blvd

98+31, 28' LT).

Please confirm that there will not be a SCE service at this location.

There is a new pull box at 97+00, 23’ LT along with new conduits and new 

street lights on north side of E. Santa Ana as shown on BN 11. There is no 

new SCE service pedestal as these street lights are tying into an existing 

circuit on the south side of the street (at southeast curb return).

83
Book 1A, SC 

6.6.1

The table of SCE New Streetcar Electrical Services in Special Conditions 

6.6.1 calls out for two new SCE service pedestals at the W 5th St station 

(21+80, 22' RT and 21+89, 22' RT).

These service pedestals can not be found on the composite utility plans. It 

appears they could be duplicated with the services shown on Sheet CU24, 

which are identified in the table in SC 6.6.1 (74+70 31' RT, 74+61 31' RT).

Please confirm that they are not required or update the composite utility plans 

to show them.

The two locations (21+80 and 22+89, not 21+89) are along W 5th St in front 

of the MSF, not at 74+70 and 74+61. Two new street lights (and poles) will 

be located here, and will be shown in an upcoming Addendum.   Two new 

service pedestals will be shown in the upcoming drawing revision. 

84

ZPN21,

ZPS11,

ZPS13,

ZPS14,

ZPD15

The signage depicted on ZPD15 as west facade signage we believe should 

be north facade signage. On this detail, the OC Streetcar logo is shown to be 

laser cut in a 1/4" piece of aluminum, and the surrounding area is denoted as 

"horiz. pattern 3" insulated metal panels", including the area beyond (west 

of)gridline 1. However, per the 2nd floor plan on ZPN21, there is no occupied 

area west of Gridline 1.

Do the metal panels extend beyond Gridline 1, and if so, is the only aluminum 

the 1'-11-1/2" x 11'=11-1/2" panel? Or are all the panels beyond Gridline 1 

aluminum, and if so, do the aluminum panels extend to Gridline 2, covering 

the underlying insulated metal panels?

1. Detail 2/Z-PD15 will be revised to North Façade Signage in an upcoming 

Addendum. 

2. Metal panels will extend beyond Gridline 1 at roof level, see sheet Z-PN-

31 Roof Plan Segment 1 and Sheet Z-PS11 MF North Elevation. 

3. Aluminum panel to be 1'-11-1/2"" x 11'-11-1/2"", see details 2/Z-PD15, 1/Z-

pd22. 

85 ZPD15

The west facade signage on ZPD15 appears to be specified in 10 14 02, 

section 2.03C, with the exception that the material is shown to be 1/4" thick. 

The west facade signage screen on ZPD15 does not appear to be specified 

in 10 14 02.

Please confirm the specification sections for the signage shown on ZPD15.

1. Detail 1 – large OCTA logo says to be “silk screened” --- however the 

Painting spec 09 91 00 does not contain any language for silk screening.  10 

14 02 Signage, 2.02.A.3 does state that Copy Application signs may be by 

silk screen

2. Detail 2 – west façade signage is covered by specification 05 60 02, Misc. 

Metal Fabrications.  Digital artwork to be provided by OCTA for the OCTA 

and OC Streetcar logos. 
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86 Exhibit M ZDG01

For the MSF, there are no earthwork specifications other than 31 11 02, Site 

Clearing. Plan sheet ZDG01 states that, "report of geotechnical investigation 

and addenda are part of the contract documents".

Exhibit M-3, the geotechnical report for the MSF includes many 

recommendations not conveyed on the plans, including:

- over-ex and replacement with structural backfill 2' below, and 3' beyond 

footings

- special ASTM E1745 vapor barrier under slabs on grade

- no sand above vapor barriers

- wet curing requirements for slabs on grade and flatwork

- restrictions on trench excavations

- etc.

Please provide specifications and updated plans that reflect the earthwork 

requirements at the MSF.

New Technical Specification Section 31 20 00, Earthwork (MSF), will be 

issued in a future Addendum.  Please refer to drawing Z-DD11.

87
Book 1A, SC 

6.6.1

Page 37 of the Special Conditions 6.6.1 shows a new 6" Domestic water 

service and meter for the Maintenance Storage Facility. Sheet Z-CN07 

denotes this as a 3" service.

Please confirm that this a 3" service and meter.

Sheet Z-CN07 is correct, Domestic Water is a 3" service.  SC 6.6.1 had 

been revised in Addendum No. 6 from 6" to 3", and has deleted the meter 

for the 8" fire line.

88
34 11 93 2.02 &

34 11 16 3.08.B

Do the rail length requirements of 34 11 16 3.08.B apply to the Insulated Joint 

Plugs as described in 34 11 93 2.02?

As with the 115# Rail, are Tram Rail Insulated Joints required to be plugs?

Insulated Joints for 115RE Section shall be prefabricated bonded insulated 

joint sections as shown in Contract Drawing TD15 and as detailed in 

Section 34 11 93 2.02.  Length of prefabricated section (“plug”) shall 

conform to the requirements of Specification Section 34 11 16 3.08B.   Tram 

Rail IJ’s shall be prefabricated bonded insulated joint “plugs” per Contract 

Drawing TD28, length as shown.

89
34 11 93 2.01 &

34 72 00 3.15.C

The referenced specs give requirements for superelevation tags on ties.

Are superelevation tags required on any type of track other than Ballasted 

Track?

Superelevation tags are required for ballasted track only.

90
34 72 00 3.10 - 

3.14

Please confirm that the referenced specs are requirements for Ballasted and 

DF Tracks and not for Embedded Track.

Confirmed that 34 72 00 3.10-3.14 applies to Ballasted and DF Track. See 

34 11 30 for the requirements for Embedded Track.
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91
Prequalification

Documents

Does the prequalification of the CIDH pertain to the bridge foundation pile 

only? (36 inch, 48 inch and 108 inch CIDH)
Yes, the CIDH prequalification was for bridge foundations only.

92
Prequalification

Documents

Please provide a list of all prequalified and potentially prequalified prime 

contractors and subcontractors.

The AUTHORITY will only release the names of prequalified prime 

contractors. The most release list was issued as part of Addendum No. 5 

and will be updated as necessary

93

Is track-to-earth resistance testing required for the ballasted and direct 

fixation rail sections? Section 34 72 00 “Trackwork”, Paragraph 3.19E 

 provides a criteria for track-to-earth resistance tests on the embedded (1,000 

ohms per 1,000’ rail) track and special (100 ohms per 1,000’ rail) trackwork, 

but there is no mention nor criteria for testing the direct fixation and ballasted 

track.

Spec 26 05 11 governs the track-to-earth acceptance ratio for track types. 

 Spec 34 72 00, issued with Addendum No. 6, was revised to reference 26 

05 11. 

94

Drawing Z-DD11 (Sheet 792 of 1520) “Structure MSF Typical Concrete 

Details,” Detail 1 shows a vapor barrier on the expansion joint detail.  The 

detail states “Typical – Provide fine graded aggregate, Vapor Retarder and 

Gravel/Crushed rock as required by Geotechnical Engineer” 

Please provide the details of what the Geotechnical Engineer is going to 

require so we can have a defined section to bid.  (What section depth and 

type of materials will make up the “Fine graded aggregate, Vapor Retarder 

and gravel/crushed rock”)?

To be answered in a future Addendum

95

Drawing Z-DD11 (Sheet 792 of 1520) “Structure MSF Typical Concrete 

Details,” Detail 1 note 4 states, “Locations of Vapor retarder per architectural 

drawings.”  We are not able to locate the vapor retarder locations in the 

architectural drawings. 

Please provide the locations for the vapor retarder.  Please confirm vapor 

retarder is defined as the system of aggregate, vapor retarder and 

gravel/crushed rock.

To be answered in a future Addendum

96

ZGD80-

82, ZGN80-

81

The referenced Fire Protection Plans do not include the car wash.

Please confirm that neither the car wash bay, nor the car wash equipment 

building require an automatic fire sprinkler system.

To be answered in a future Addendum

97 ZGN80

While both rooms 124 and 125 have separate preaction sprinkler systems (in 

addition to room 148), the arrow for FM-200 protection appears to only apply 

to room 124.

Please confirm that only room 124 has FM-200 protection.

To be answered in a future Addendum

98

Specification 34 

12

00

ZHG02

Drawing Z-HG02 Equipment Schedule, calls for Spantec Systems Inc. as the 

manufacture/vendor for equipment no. LI-05 Monorail. Specification 34 12 00 

for the Monorail lists Craneveryo Corp. and Washington Crane and Hoist 

Company Inc. as the only approved manufactures for the monorail.

Please confirm if Spantec Systems Inc. is an approved manufacture for the 

monorail.

To be answered in a future Addendum
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99

Specification 41 

22

13

ZHG02

Drawing Z-HG02 Equipment Schedule, calls for Spantec Systems Inc. as the 

manufacture/vendor for equipment no. LI-09 2 Ton Underhung Bridge Crane 

and LI- 19 7.5 Ton Bridge Crane. Specification 41 22 13 for the 2 Ton 

Underhung Bridge Crane and 7.5 Ton Bridge Crane lists Craneveyor Corp., 

Washington Crane and Hoist Company Inc., and Allied Crane Inc. as the only 

approved manufactures.

Please confirm if Spantec Systems Inc. is an approved manufacture for the 2 

Ton Underhung Bridge Crane and 7.5 Ton Bridge Crane.

To be answered in a future Addendum

100

Specification 41 

33

00

ZHG02

Drawing Z-HG02 Equipment Schedule, calls for Cincinnati Electrical Tool as 

the manufacture/vendor for equipment no. MA-05 Grinder/Dust Collector. 

Specification 41 33 00 for the Grinder/Dust Collector lists Hammond 

Machinery Inc. as the only approved manufacture.

Please confirm if Cincinnati Electrical Tool is an approved manufacture for 

the Grinder/Dust Collector.

To be answered in a future Addendum

101
ND01,

Sheet 694

Sheet 694, Retaining Wall Detail Drawing, Note #1 at the top of the page 

states "For Sound Wall and Retaining Wall Architectural Finish or Texture 

See Details Elsewhere in Project Plans." We have been unable to find where 

any Architectural treatments or textures are being called out in the Plans or 

Specifications, aside from Anti

Graffiti coatings.

Please confirm if there are any architectural requirements, coatings or anti-

graffiti coatings and provide the details if required.

No architectural treatments or textures are required.  Note #1 on ND01 has 

been revised accordingly in Addendum No. 6. 

102
34 11 33, & 34 72

00

TD12,

TD13,

&TD24

The referenced trackwork specifications do not provide the required spacing 

for Ties. The referenced drawings show spacings for specific conditions.

Is the typical spacing for Ties to be 30"? Is this spacing to be reduced in 

curves? If so, to what and at what Radius?

Concrete tie spacing is provided in Spec 34 11 33, Section 1.01.C.2.a thru 

d.  Note the following revisions to the referenced spec have been made in 

Addendum No. 6:

c. Grade Crossing Track: 20 inches 

d. Special Trackwork: As shown on Contract Plans 

103 34 11 93 TD29

Note 3 on the referenced drawing states "Restraining Rail...with 115 RE 

Rail...shall extend 10' beyond the limits of the curve...". In some cases, within 

the MSF yard, extending the Restraining rail will put the restraining rail in the 

shop and in the car wash.

Please confirm that restraining rail should terminate before the shop & car 

wash.

The restraining rail shall extend into the shop and car wash building to 

provide the 10’ extension beyond the curve limits. 
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104

U-TSN08, U

TSN16, U

DBN32 and

U-DBD10

Drawing U-TSN08 and U-TSN16 both show a train signal cabinet just before 

the alignment goes through Sasscer Park. Drawing U-DBN32 is a ductbank 

drawing of the same area but the train signal cabinet does not appear in 

drawing U-DBN32. Drawing U-DBD10 shows a cable schedule which 

includes every signal cabinet shown in the ductbank drawings. The only 

signal cabinet not listed in U-DBD10 is the signal cabinet from drawings U-

TSN08 and U-TSN16.

Should the signal cabinet shown in drawings U-TSN08 and U-TSN16 also be 

shown in U-DBN32 and be connected to the actual ductbank system? If so, 

please provide details on how the train signal cabinet on U-TSN16 connects 

to the ductbank system.

The train cabinet in this location only serves the bikeway crossing signal at 

the park, and is only connected to the nearby traffic signal cabinet at 

Parton/Santa Ana. The routing of signal cables does not need to pass 

through the systemwide ductbank.  

105

Z-TN01, Z

DD15, &

TD02

Are the concrete embedded tracks shown on Z-TN01 within the MSF Yard 

and outside of the shop and carwash, to be constructed per section 2 of Z-

DD15, or per section A of TD02?

See response to Bidder Question #42. 

106
U-TSN08,

XN07

Train signal drawing U-TSN08 note 1 states that the operation of the warning 

device (flasher) is provided by the traffic system and that the interface with 

traffic controller is via dry contact.

Traffic signal plan XN07 is for the same area as U-TSN08 but doesn't show a 

conduit from the traffic controller to the warning device (flasher).

Is the warning device (flasher) controlled by the traffic cabinet? If so, please 

provide details on connection to the ductbank system, details for 

modifications to the traffic controller and equipment to be housed in the train 

signal cabinet.

The flasher is operated by the Railroad Signal Controller. The flasher is 

connected to railroad signal cabinet. The intersection traffic signal cabinet is 

interconnected with the railroad signal cabinet to allow for coordination and 

communication.  Cable and conduit types and sizes are shown on U-TSN16. 

107

Special

Trackwork

Drawings,

Train Signal

Drawings

The special trackwork drawings show a manual switch mechanism with note 

2 that states the switches will be manual with accommodation for point 

detection.

The train signal drawings do not show any conduit runs from any train signal 

cabinet to any of the turnouts with manual switch mechanisms.

Please provide drawings that show a conduit running from a train signal 

cabinet to the manual switch mechanisms.

All facing point switches on mainline will have point detection.  Revised 

drawings to be issued in a future Addendum.

108
Volume 4

Z-CN04

Please provide existing elevations at the MSF so bidders can calculate cut 

and fill quantities for the MSF site.
To be answered in a future Addendum

109
Volume-2

C1002

Please provide the profiles for Laterals "A" and "B" that are missing on 

drawing no. C1002.

Drawings C1001 to C1008 are under revision and will be issued in a 

subsequent Addendum.

110
Volume-2

C1004

Please provide the profile for Lateral "D" that is missing on drawing no. 

C1005.

Drawings C1001 to C1008 are under revision and will be issued in a 

subsequent Addendum.

111
Volume-2

C1005

Please provide the profile for Lateral "C" that is missing on drawing no. 

C1004.

Drawings C1001 to C1008 are under revision and will be issued in a 

subsequent Addendum.

112
Volume-2

C1006

Please provide the profile for Lateral "E" that is missing on drawing no. 

C1006.

Drawings C1001 to C1008 are under revision and will be issued in a 

subsequent Addendum.
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113
Volume-2

SN13, SD01

The new manhole to be installed at centerline station 25+53.42, 0' RT, on 

Drawing SN13, depicts that approximately 6 LF of 24" VCP on the north and 

south side of the manhole needs to be replaced. However there are no call 

outs to replace the 24" VCP pipe on SN13 or SD01.

Does approximately 6 LF of 24" VCP on either sided at this manhole need to 

be removed and replaced?

To be answered in a future Addendum

114

Volume-2

WN01-

WN12

Water construction notes 150, 159, 160, & 165 are the only notes that call to 

install a casing around the new waterline. These construction notes refer to 

details 2 and 7 on WN11 which both call for casings around the new 

waterlines.

Please confirm that casings are only required per Detail 2/WN11 for the 

locations that have call outs 159, 160 and 165.

Locations with construction notes 150,159,160, or 165 will be the only 

locations requiring a casing. Casing requirements and locations will be 

clarified in a future Addendum .  

Small services (1”/2”) will require a 10-mil polyethylene sleeve per Detail 

1/WN11.

115
Volume-2

WN09

The waterline detail for the intersection of Santiago Street and E. Santa Ana 

Blvd shows to begin construction of an 8" domestic water main at station 

230+04 Santiago Street. Construction notes 128 and 138 say to install 12" DI 

Tee and Gate Valve. Also, all of the existing waterline in the vicinity is 12" CI 

pipe.

Please confirm that this waterline is not 8" but is 12" pipe.

The waterline should be a 12” pipeline, not an 8”. This will be updated in a 

future addenda. 

116

Volume-2

WN01-

WN12,

RN01-RN29

There is approximately 1,600 lf of 12" waterline to be installed in areas that 

will require permanent AC/Concrete restoration. This waterline is outside the 

current demolition limits provided in the removal plans on drawings RN01-

RN29.

Is this 1,600 lf of 12" waterline intended to be outside the demolition limits or 

will the removal drawings be revised to include the 1,600 lf of waterline in the 

AC/Concrete demolition limits?

To be answered in a future Addendum

117

General 

Conditions Article 

11

Article 11 

Insurance, Item 

Number (7)

Will the agency consider a complete waiver of consequential damages and 

actual damages, which are unnecessary due to liquidated damages being 

assessed.

Additionally, can the stated liquidated damages be the sole and exclusive 

remedy for delay and be capped at an aggregate dollar amount or percentage 

of the contract?

The AUTHORITY will not waive actual or consequential damages. The 

AUTHORITY will not place a limit on liquidated damages or limit them to an 

aggregate dollar or percentage amount.

118

General 

Conditions Article 

39

Article 39 

Warranty, Section 

(C)

Will the agency consider a limitation of liability granted as a  percentage of 

the contract value?
No change to the requirement.
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119

General 

Conditions Exhibit 

A

Section 47.2 

 Quality Control 

Manager, QC 

Personnel and 

Laboratories

47.2 Quality 

Control Manager, 

QC Personnel 

and Laboratories 

Paragraph 1) and 

2).

Section 47.2 states that the Construction Quality Control Manager (CQCM) 

shall be employed by the contactor.

Will the Contractor be allowed to use a third party consulting firm as the 

CQCM? The ability to subcontract this work can assist in fulfilling the DBE 

requirements of the project.

Section 47.2 was revised in Addendum No. 6 to clarify that the contractor 

may use a subcontractor for the role of CQCM.   

120

Section IV 

Agreement Article 

16 Disputes

Article 16 

Disputes, Section 

A.

Article 16 states "if project managers do not reach a resolution, the dispute 

will be decided by AUTHORITY’s Director of Contracts Administration and 

Materials Management (CAMM), who shall reduce the decision to writing, and 

mail or otherwise furnish a copy thereof to CONTRACTOR.  The decision of 

the Director, CAMM, shall be the final and conclusive administrative 

decision.".

Will the authority add a neutral Dispute Resolution Board (DRB) as a final 

step in the dispute cycle?

No change to the requirement.

121

Section IV 

Agreement

Article 31 

Ownership of 

Reports and 

Documents

Article 31 

Ownership of 

Reports and 

Documents, 

Section B

Article 31 states "CONTRACTOR shall not use AUTHORITY’s name, 

photographs of the project, or any other publicity pertaining to the project in 

any professional publication, magazine, trade paper, newspaper, seminar or 

other medium without the express written consent of AUTHORITY.".

Can the Contractor use the authority's name for the purposes of solicitation 

as it relates to this project potential subcontractors and the construction 

community without express written consent?

Article 31 is effective with Agreement execution.

122

Section IV 

Agreement

Article 42 

Inspection and 

Acceptance

Article 42 

Inspection and 

Acceptance, 

Section C

Article 42 states "CONTRACTOR shall furnish promptly, without additional 

charge, all facilities, labor, equipment and material reasonably needed for 

performing such safe and convenient inspection and test as may be required 

by AUTHORITY.".

Please define reasonably. Also identify the types of tests that will be required 

by the Authority.

To be answered in a future Addendum

123

Section IV 

Agreement

Article 61 

Contractor 

Purchased 

Equipment

Article 61 

Contractor 

purchased 

equipment

Clarify the definition of the word equipment. To be answered in a future Addendum

124

General 

Conditions Exhibit 

A

Section 25 

Notices and 

Communications

25.3 Request for 

Information (RFI)

Section 25.3 states "Responses to Requests for Information shall be issued 

within seven

(7) calendar days of receipt of the request from CONTRACTOR unless 

AUTHORITY determines that a longer period of time is necessary to provide 

an adequate response.".

Please specify a definitive amount of time that the Authority has to provide a 

response to RFIs.

A typical response time will be 7 calendar days.  We cannot provide a 

definitive response time because it has to be evaluated on a case-by-case 

basis.
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125

General 

Conditions Exhibit 

A

Section 37  

Safety Provisions

37.9

Section 37.9 states " The CONTRACTOR shall give notice in writing, at least 

forty-eight

(48) hours before breaking ground, to all persons having interests on or near 

the Site, ..".

Please define the term "all persons having interests on or near the Site" as it 

is not reasonable to notify all persons without a physical address, or utility 

stakeholder near the site.

A revision to Section 37.9 was issued with Addendum No. 6 changing it to 

say: "The CONTRACTOR to give notice in writing, at least14 days before 

breaking ground in any subsegment, to the ENGINEER."

126

General 

Conditions Exhibit 

A

Section 37  

Safety Provisions

37.15

Section 37.15 states "A rigging plan is required for all lifts".

Please clarify the Authority's definition of "rigging plan" and also "all lifts". Will 

this specification only apply to pre-cast girders for the Santa Ana River 

bridge?

A rigging plan is a formal planning process that will identify all hazardous 

conditions (risks) that may be encountered during a lift while using a crane 

or other hoisting equipment devices.  A rigging plan should be developed 

prior to a load being lifted/hoisted to confirm compliance with all applicable 

regulatory standards and to ensure the responsible individuals have 

successfully implemented appropriate engineering and administrative 

mitigations.  For additional information please refer to; 

•	California Code of Regulations (CCR) Title 8 Standards, Subchapter 4. 

Construction Safety Orders, Article 15. Cranes and Derricks in Construction, 

and Subchapter 7. General Industry Safety Orders, Group 13. Cranes and 

Other Hoisting Equipment

•	Federal OSHA, 29 CFR 1926.550

•	American Society of Mechanical Engineers (ASME)

•	ANSI Standards                              All lifts require pre-lift planning to 

determine hazard analysis factors, to include, but not limited to load; load 

weight, equipment configuration, equipment rated capacity, clearance, and 

site specific conditions. Such special planning requirements should be 

validated with appropriate calculations and applicable documentation should 

be maintained at each lift site location.    No, this specification will not only 

apply to pre-cast girders for the Santa Ana River Bridge.  Rigging plans shall 

be required, but not limited to, any applicable scope involving crane 

equipment, hoisting equipment devices, or other specialized lifting 

equipment that has the potential to create a hazard or incident. 

 

127

General 

Conditions Exhibit 

A

Section 65 

Change Requests 

and Change 

Directives

65.1 Change 

Requests

Section 65.1 states "If AUTHORITY has not received sufficient substantiating 

documentation or information within a reasonable time after receipt of the 

Change Request, such insufficiency may be grounds to deny the Change 

Request.".

Please define reasonable time after acceptance as it relates to the grounds to 

return a rejected request as it is open to interpretation.

Reasonable time will be agreed to between the AUTHORITY and the 

CONTRACTOR based on the request.
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128

Special 

Conditions Exhibit 

A-1

SC-6 Work 

Description, 

Segments, 

Sequence & 

Constraints

6.3.2  Pre-

Construction 

Tasks

Section 6.3.2 states "Place orders for any long lead items necessary to 

complete the project within the established project schedule".

Define the term long lead item.

Per Special Condition 6.3.2, long lead items are any items nessessary to 

complete the project within the established project schedule.  Per Special 

Condition 10.1, CONTRACTOR shall develop Construction Submittal and 

Deliverable Requirement List (CSDRL) with planned submittal dates

129

Special 

Conditions Exhibit 

A-1

SC-4 Time for 

Performance

4.2.2 Notice to 

Proceed with 

Construction

4.2.2 bullet number 11 states "Approved material submittals and proof of 

orders for long- lead materials".

Please provide a list of the Authority's long lead materials required for this 

submittal.

Per Special Condition 23, Scheduling of Work under this Contract shall be 

performed by the CONTRACTOR, and shall include procurement of each 

major type of material or equipment.  The CONTRACTOR's schedule shall 

determine long lead materials.

130

Special 

Conditions Exhibit 

A-1

SC-6 Work 

Description, 

Segments, 

Sequence & 

Constraints

6.3.1  General 

Work 

Requirements

Section 6.3.1 states that "The CONTRACTOR shall submit requested 

revisions of the proposed traffic control plans to the Engineer and City to 

allow for a minimum review duration of 30 days  in advance of

proposed traffic control implementation.".

We respectfully request that the word minimum be removed from this 

statement. Please provide a maximum review period.

This specification requires the CONTRACTOR to submit proposed traffic 

control plans at least 30 days before the CONTRACTOR wishes implement 

the traffic control measure.  This requirement will remain.  The AUTHORITY 

is unable to guarantee approval within a pre-determined timeframe.  If the 

CONTRACTOR submits a plan that isn't acceptable to the City, and doesn't 

make revisions requested by the City, then the approval will not be granted.

131

Special 

Conditions Exhibit 

A-1

SC-6 Work 

Description, 

Segments, 

Sequence & 

Constraints

6.3.2  Pre-

Construction 

Tasks

Section 6.3.2 states "Submit shop drawings for the “Submittal of Shop 

Drawings, Product Data and Samples” of the General Conditions".

We respectfully request that this bullet point be removed in its entirety as 

shop drawings will be submitted by suppliers and subcontractors throughout 

the life of the project. If there are shop drawings critical to the authority that 

must be submitted in the pre- construction period of 60 days please specify 

those items.

The bullet has been revised in Addendum No. 5 to say: Submit shop 

drawings for any long lead items per the "Submittal of Shop Drawings, 

Product Data and Samples" of the General Conditions.

132

Special 

Conditions Exhibit 

A-1

SC-6 Work 

Description, 

Segments, 

Sequence & 

Constraints

6.6.1  Utility 

Service 

Connections

Section 6.6.1 states "utility service connections the Contractor shall include 

but not be limited… payment of all associated fees.".

Please clarify if the Contractor is responsible for the electric fees associated 

with, and permits required, for the work or will the Authority cover all costs for 

power and permits.

See response to question No. 68.
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133

Special 

Conditions Exhibit 

A-1

SC-12 Sound and 

Vibration Control 

Requirements

12.1 General 

Sound and 

Vibration Control 

Requirements

Section 12.1 states "The CONTRACTOR shall take all necessary means to 

eliminate or minimize vibration impacts to adjacent properties, businesses, 

and residences caused by its construction operations. Measures applied to 

limit noise levels will often limit vibration levels. The CONTRACTOR shall 

ensure that vibration generated by construction activities does not exceed a 

peak particle velocity (PPV) of 0.12 in/sec within 10 feet of any habitable 

building or structure or other sensitive receptor.".

Please clarify the term "other sensitive receptor".

Other sensitive receptors in addition to habitable buildings are locations 

where people gather where noise and vibration could interfere with their use, 

such as schools, churches, courthouses, businesses, etc.

134

Special 

Conditions Exhibit 

A-1

SC-23 Progress 

Schedule

23.14 

AUTHORITY 

Holidays

The Authority's listed holidays in section 23.14 AUTHORITY HOLIDAYS do 

not align with the region's trade agreements. Please consider incorporating 

the additional days for scheduling purposes

Absent from the list are Veterans day, as well as the first Saturday following 

the first Friday in the months of June and December.

Please define the authority in charge of declaring the holiday observance 

date.

Contractural durations are based on Calendar Days.  We have deleted the 

following from the first line of Special Condition 23.14:  "for establishing 

normal scheduled workdays and for use in the CPM schedule" in Addendum 

No. 5.

135

Special 

Conditions Exhibit 

A-1

SC-33 Quality 

Control and 

Quality 

Assurance

SC-33 Quality 

Control and 

Quality 

Assurance

Section states "Unless noted otherwise, the CONTRACTOR shall notify the 

Engineer a minimum of seven (7) calendar days prior to the performance of 

work that requires inspections by third parties such as the City, OCFCD, or 

utility company, or witnessing of testing by third parties such as City, or utility 

company".

Will the engineer accept a 3 week look ahead as notification or does the 

engineer expect a specific notification for each item?

Specific notification will be required for each item.

136

Special 

Conditions Exhibit 

A-1

SC-53 Price and 

Payment 

Procedures

53.4 Item 

Measurement and 

Payment Section 

B Parts:

48. Paragraph D

49. Paragraph D

Are these two paragraphs the complete spare parts list for the project?  

Please confirm that these two paragraphs are the complete spare parts list 

for the project and if not please provide a comprehensive spare parts list.

In addition to bid items 48 (TRACTION POWER SUBSTATION) and 49 

(FURNISH AND INSTALL OCS), bid items 39 (25M TURNOUT AND 25M 

TURNOUT-SPECIAL), 41 (190'R SINGLE CROSSOVER), and 52 (TRAIN 

CONROL AND SIGNAL SYSTEM) lists the spare parts that should be 

included in the bid.  

137
Special 

Conditions
Section 6.3

Section 6.3 states "If the CONTRACTOR deviates from the specified order of 

Work, or sequencing indicated by the Contract Documents, it does so at its 

own risk and shall assume any and all time impacts and cost associated with 

such deviations.".

Has the agency or any of its consultants prepared a schedule that is 

compliant with all of the contract requirements, if so please provide this to the 

contractors.

To be answered in a future Addendum
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138
Special 

Conditions
Section 6.3

Section 6.3 states "If the CONTRACTOR deviates from the specified order of 

Work, or sequencing indicated by the Contract Documents, it does so at its 

own risk and shall assume any and all time impacts and cost associated with 

such deviations."

Can the agency confirm that upon the submission and acceptance of a 

mutually agreed to Revised Schedule, the applicable portion of the General 

Conditions with respect to Time for Performance of Work and Contract 

Modification, Disputes and Claims will apply?

Yes, confirmed.

139 Addendum 3

Per Addendum 3 the contract bid date was extended from March 5, 2018 to 

April 27th, 2018 will the questions and clarifications deadline be extended to 

April 6th to coincide with the change of the bid date?

Addendum No. 4 to the IFB extends the due date for questions to February 

28, 2018

140

Special 

Conditions Exhibit 

A-1

GC-61 Progress 

Payments

61.2 Payment to 

Subcontractors

Can the agency specify a period for response by the contractor for any 

allegation of actions described under 61.2 Payment to the Subcontractors.
To be answered in a future Addendum

141

SECTION I.  

INSTRUCTIONS 

TO BIDDERS

F. SUBMISSION 

OF BIDS and

Addendum 3

3. Bid Booklet 

and Identification 

of Bids

Per Addendum 3 the bid submittal date is scheduled for April 27, 2018 at 

11:00am. Will the Authority allow a 96 hour grace period from this submittal 

date for all bid information outside of the Bid Booklet?

To be answered in a future Addendum

142

Special 

Conditions Exhibit 

A-1

SC-11 

Mobilization

11.2  Payment

Will the agency consider removing the 5% cap on the mobilization fee as the 

costs associated with mobilization are likely to exceed 5% of the contract 

value?

Will the agency consider paying 50% of the mobilization fee at LNTP and the 

remaining 50% of the mobilization at NTPC as the costs of mobilization are 

incurred ahead of performing the work that counts towards the amount 

earned?

The cap on total mobilization and payment schedule will remain 

unchanged.  Please note SC-38 and the willingness of the AUTHORITY to 

compensate for materials not yet incorporated into the Work.

143

MSF Volume II, Spec. 14 71 11, Material Lift, Part 2.01 calls for the material 

lift to be a Series B VRC manufactured by Pflow Industries.  Part 2.02 calls 

for the VRC to have a minimum rating of 1,300 lb and have a minimum 48” by 

72” platform.  The Pflow Series B VRC has a max. capacity of 500 lbs  and a 

platform size of 36” x 36”.  Please clarify.

To be answered in a future Addendum
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144

MSF Volume II, Spec. 14 71 11, Material Lift, Part 2.02, C calls for the 

Mechanical Lift to have a max. lift height of 12’-6” with a total of 3 levels with 

a distance between floors of 12’-6”.  Three levels with 12’-6” between levels 

requires a max lift height of 25’.  Please clarify.

To be answered in a future Addendum

145
Please confirm that we are not required to provide any furniture (desks, 

chairs, file cabinets, white boards, etc.) for the Maintenance Facility.

Correct, the CONTRACTOR is not required to provide furniture (desks, 

chairs, file cabinets, white boards, etc.) for the Maintenance Facility.

146

Sheet No. 873 (MF North Elevation PS11) calls out Green Screen panel 

mounted over split face wall.  Please provide the specifications for the Green 

Screen.

To be answered in a future Addendum

147

The below listed specification sections appear in the Technical Specification 

for the MSF, Volume II, but are not clearly identified where the items of work 

are to be performed within the MSF. Please clarify. 

Section 12 21 00 “Window Blinds” indicates blinds will be required on the 

project. We are not able to locate the blinds on the plans. Please provide the 

locations where blinds are required. 

Section 07 13 00 “Sheet Waterproofing” indicates waterproofing is required at 

the MSF. Please indicate where the sheet waterproofing is required on the 

MSF drawings. 

Section 07 14 16 “Cold Fluid-Applied Waterproofing” indicates waterproofing 

is required at the MSF. Please indicate where the cold fluid-applied 

waterproofing is required on the MSF drawings. 

Section 07 16 13 “Polymer Modified Cement Waterproofing” indicates 

waterproofing is required at the MSF. Please indicate where the polymer 

modified cement waterproofing is required on the MSF drawings. 

Section 10 22 13 “Wire Mesh Partitions” indicates Wire Mesh Partitions are 

required at the MSF. Please indicate where the Wire Mesh Partitions is 

required on the MSF drawings. 

Section 10 26 00 “Wall and Door Protection” indicates Wall and Door 

Protection is required at the MSF. Please indicate where the Wall and Door 

Protection is required on the MSF drawings. 

Section 10 51 13 “Metal Lockers” indicates Metal Lockers are required at the 

MSF. Please indicate where the Metal Lockers are required on the MSF 

drawings.

 Section 10 56 13 “Metal Storage Shelving” indicates Metal Storage Shelving 

is required at the MSF. Please indicate where the Metal Storage Shelving is 

required on the MSF drawings.

To be answered in a future Addendum

148

Per the conduit and cable schedule, the feeder cable from the DC switchgear 

to the OCS pole is aluminum.  Per specifications section 34 23 20 the feeder 

cable is called out to be 500 Kcmil copper cable Class H bare.  Please clarify 

which cable is correct.  

To be answered in a future Addendum
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149

What size conduit and cable is required from the "OCS grounding switch 

operator with kirk key interlock" per detail A / U-TPN34 up to the ground 

switch?

Conduit size is 2 inch FRE inside conduit. Refer to drawing U-OCSD38 

Feeder Configuration for Maintenance Facility.

150

Per sheet U-TPN01, on the Trolley Wire diagram between stations PS 

314+86.71 and PS 315+35.23 EB, is the 1-500 KCMIL AL for the trolley wire 

correct?

To be answered in a future Addendum

151

When I budget priced the girders for Santa Ana River Bridge to HNTB in 

2016, I assumed 6’ deep Caltrans Bulb-Tee Girders, which we have provided 

for previous railroad bridges.  Although the contract drawings now show 6’ 

Wide Flange girders, can we substitute 6’ Bulb-Tee girders (with similar 

structural properties) in our bid ? 

The substitutuion of girders would require other changes to the design.  

Please bid according to the plans.  See  SC-30 for instructions regarding 

Value Engineering Change Proposals that are considered after contract 

award.

152
Exhibit B-4 

Section 4.30

Traffic Signal plans

TSP Opticom vehicle equipment is required. We do not have a quantity or a 

way to quantify. Please advise.

To be answered in a future Addendum

153
Exhibit B-4 

Section 4.06

The project is replacing loops at most of the locations or installing new 

Signals with VDS. Please confirm that the new VDS can be used for the temp 

and then installed for permanent. This is standard practice.

Yes, the VDS can be used for the temporary and installed for permanent. 

The VDS will have to be accepted by the Cities of Santa Ana and Garden 

Grove for temporary and permanent use. 

154 XN01 to XN023

These plans reference communication plan sheets XN24 to XN33 that are 

not part of the plan sheets issued for bid. Please advise if they will be issued 

for use with this bid.

See answer to bidder question No. 61
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155
Volume 2,

ND03

ND03 depicts the lateral limits of lightweight fill for the retaining walls.  Please 

confirm the following in regards to the longitudinal limits of lightweight fill:

1) Please confirm that the limits of structure excavation 2' beneath the 

footings as shown on 1/ND03 applies to retaining walls 101/501 only and 

does not apply to the return walls and backwalls at Abutment 1 for 

Westminster Ave Bridge.

2) Please confirm that the limits of structure excavation 5' beneath the 

footings as shown on 2/ND03 applies to retaining walls 108/508, 144/544 and 

153/553 only and does not apply to the return walls and backwalls at 

Abutment 3 for Westminster Ave Bridge and does not apply to the return 

walls and backwalls at Abutments 1 and 4 for Santa Ana River Bridge. 

3) Please confirm that the limits of lightweight fill 2' beneath the footings as 

shown on 1/ND03 applies to retaining walls 101/501 only and does not apply 

to the return walls and backwalls at Abutment 1 for Westminster Ave Bridge.

4) Please confirm that the limits of lightweight fill 5' beneath the footings as 

shown on 2/ND03 applies to retaining walls 108/508, 144/544 and 153/553 

only and does not apply to the return walls and backwalls at Abutment 3 for 

Westminster Ave Bridge and does not apply to the return walls and backwalls 

at Abutments 1 and 4 for Santa Ana River Bridge.

To be answered in a future Addendum

156

Volume 2,

CX02, CX04, 

NS01, NS02

NS01 and NS02 depict a 4" AC Cap beneath the track ballast at retained fills 

but do not provide stationing.  The typical sections on CX02 and CX04 show 

the 4" AC Cap and retaining walls, but the stationing in those sections do not 

match the limits of the retaining walls.

1) For RW 108/508, please confirm that the 4" AC Cap starts as shown on 

CX02 (EBT 108+28) and ends at the end of retaining wall 508 (WBT 515+75) 

as shown on NN07 and does not end as shown on CX02 (EBT 115+00).

2) For RW 144/544,  please confirm that the 4" AC Cap starts and ends as 

shown on CX04 (EBT 144+00 to 148+96).

3) For RW 153/553, please confirm that the 4" AC Cap starts and ends as 

shown on CX04 (EBT 152+68 to 156+00)   

AC Cap limit begins at the end of the bridge approach slab and extends 5-ft 

beyond  the trench drain as shown in the profile of the TA sheets.

The trench drain station locations are: 

EBT STA 114+95.00

EBT STA 144+05.00

EBT STA 155+95.00

The CA drawings were updated and provided in Addendum No. 5 to provide 

the station locations above.  
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157

Book 2

Exhibit M-6

Bid Form, Pg 6

Exhibit M-6, page 

15

Bid Item 25 is for Overexcavation of Unsuitable Soils.  Section 4.2.1 of the 

Geotechnical Design Report states that areas that preclude compaction 

should be overexcavated and that geogrids and/or easily compactable 

material can reduce the depth of excavation.  Please clarify the following 

items for this bid item for pricing purposes:

1) We are assuming that bidders are to price the replacement material using 

Class 2 recycled Aggregate Base per 2015 California Dept of Transportation 

Specifications.  Please confirm.

2) We are assuming that bidders are not to include geogrids or geotextiles for 

pricing this item.  Please confirm.

Class 2 aggregate base is acceptable for pricing. 

We confirm that geogrid is not required for pricing this item.   

158
ZPS42,43; 

ZPD21

The wall sections on ZPS42 and ZPS43 show a waterstop at the construction 

joint between the main building slab and the wall curbs beneath CMU and 

Gypsum walls.  However, the referenced detail, 2/ZPD21, does not show this 

waterstop, nor do the structural drawings.

Is a waterstop required at the perimeter curb/main slab interface beneath 

gypsum  and/or cmu walls?

To be answered in a future Addendum

159 ZPN16

Drawing ZPN16 indicates ceiling areas to receive spray-applied fireproofing, 

but we find no spec section for spray-applied fireproofing.

Please provide a spec for the spray-applied fireproofing.

Please indicate if any structural steel is to receive the spray-applied 

fireproofing, or if only the metal decking receives this treatment.

To be answered in a future Addendum

160 ZPD21

1/ZPD21  (waterstop detail) shows "continuous fluid applied waterproofing at 

sub-grade conditions".   However, waterproofing is otherwise only shown on 

the drawings at the car wash, and elevator sump pit.

Is fluid-applied waterproofing required at all sub-grade conditions?

To be answered in a future Addendum

161 FN44A

FN44A depicts the work at the intersection of 4th street and Ross street 

occurring during a full intersection closure.  There is a significant amount of 

work at this location associated with welding and special trackwork 

installation that would prevent it from being done overnight or on a two day 

weekend.

How long can this intersection be closed?

Special Trackwork is west of Ross Street.  Per Special Condition 6.3.6, 

Ross Street can only be closed for night work.

162 TD12 & TD02

On drawing TD02, in Detail B, the transverse and longitudinal track-slab 

rebar spacing is shown as 24" max both ways. In several other depictions of 

the track- slab such as on drawing TD12, in Section A, the rebar is shown at 

approx 12" spacings.

Please confirm that the embedded track-slab rebar spacing is 24" max both 

ways and that the top bars are actually #3s?

To be answered in a future Addendum
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163 Z-DD15

On drawing Z-DD15, in Section 2, the longitudinal spacing of the transverse 

rebar in the track-slab infill pour, is not shown. It appears that the dowel 

spacing identifier is pointing at the wrong place. 

Are the #4 dowels to be 4 each transverse at 12" longitudinal spacing?

Are the dowels to be epoxy coated or set in epoxy?

 Is the center-top transverse bar a #4 or a #5? 

Is the longitudinal spacing of this bar 12"?

1) Yes--#4 dowels, 4 each transverse at 12" longitudinal spacing.

2) Dowels are set in epoxy.  They are not epoxy coated.

3) Center-top transverse bar is #4 

4) Longitudinal spacing of center -top transverse bar is 12".  Drawing Z-

DD15 will be revised in a future Addendum.

164 U-CCD11 & TD02

Drawing U-CCD11 shows track-slab longitudinal rebar, for stray current 

collection, at 12" spacing. This rebar is shown at 24" spacing on Drawing 

TD02. 

Please confirm that the collectors shall be welded to rebar that are at 24" 

spacing.

To be answered in a future Addendum

165
U-CCD14 & Z-

DD15

Both Section 2 on Drawing Z-DD15 and Section 6 on Drawing U-CCD14 are 

depictions of track-slab within the MSF. They do not match. 

Please provide a revised Drawing U-CCD14 that depicts the required section 

and collector bar as shown on 2/Z-DD15.

To be answered in a future Addendum

166 U-CCDXX

The Stray Current Corrosion Control drawings do not include requirements 

for the embedded MSF yard tracks or the Car Wash track. Please provide the 

requirements for the embedded MSF yard tracks and the Car Wash track, or 

state that none is required.

To be answered in a future Addendum

167

Reference Addendum #2 which revised the date for receipt of questions to 

February 7, 2018. Due to the size and complexity of this project, we would 

like  to request that the date for receipt of questions be extended to February 

27, 2018, which is 2 months prior to the bid date of April 27, 2018.

Addendum No. 6 revises the date for receipt of questions to March 16, 

2018.

168

Reference IFB – 

Book 1 – Section 

III, page 75 – item 

4.0 – DBE Bid 

Submission 

Requirements

This section indicates that the DBE Participation Commitment Form, the 

Bidders List, and the DBE Information-Good Faith Efforts package are to be 

submitted with the bid. We would like to request that these DBE forms be 

submitted by the three lowest bidders within 4 business days after the bid 

date. This is standard practice in the industry and is followed by agencies 

such as RCTD, ACE, SBCTA, and Caltrans to name a few.

Good Faith Efforts, DBE Participation Commitment letters and Bidders Lists  

must be received by the AUTHORITY no later than 4:00 pm on the 2nd 

business day after bid opening if they are not submitted with the bid.
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169

SC 26.2, 26.3 and 26.4 all make reference to settlement periods.  

Westminster Bridge Abutment 1 and Walls 101/501 require a 1 month 

settlement period.  Westminster Bridge Abutment 3 and Walls 108/508 

require a 4 month settlement period.  Santa Ana River Bridge Abutment 1 

and Walls 144/544 require an 8 month settlement period.  Santa Ana River 

Bridge Abutment 4 and Walls 153/533 require a 6 month settlement period.  

Due to these settlement periods likely being on the critical path, especially 

those concerning the Santa Ana River Bridge, please clarify exactly how 

many calendar days of settlement are going to be required at each location.  

The measurement of a month in these instances is not specific enough.  

Settlement periods identified in 26.4 will be revised as follows:  1 month will 

be changed to 30 calendar days, 4 months will be changed to 122 calendar 

days, 6 months will be changed to 183 calendar days, and 8 months will be 

changed to 243 calendar days.

170

The descriptions of Traffic Management Segments 2 through 5 in Exhibit I-2 

allows full closures of “major intersections” during nights and weekends for 

track work.  Special Conditions Section 6.3 states that partial intersection 

closures will be allowed at major intersections – which are “limited to night 

work between the hours of 10 PM and 5 AM.”  Please confirm that:

a. full closures of major intersections are allowed and 

b. major intersections can be closed for an entire weekend.

c. Also, please specify start and end times for weekend closures.

The Traffic Management Plan, Exhibit I-2, considered a range of traffic 

handling and construction phasing scenarios.  Per Article 13 of the 

Construction Agreement, Special Condition Section 6.3 takes precedence, 

and limits closures at major intersections to night work between the hours of 

10PM and 5AM.  See responses to questions 46 and 47.

171

Special Conditions Section 6.3.4 states that “Segment 2 shall be constructed 

so no more than one subsegment is constructed at a time.”  Are the 

subsegments 2A and 2B or are the subsegments 2A(1), 2A(2), 2A(3), and 

2B(1)?  Please clarify.

Please note that per question 44, subsegments of Segment 2 in SC-6.3.4 

have been revised to 2A(1), 2A(2), 2B(1), and 2B(2) in Addendum No. 5.  

Each of these are considered to be a subsegment.

172

Regarding access to the Santa Ana River (SAR) Bridge via the existing 

channel. The notes on plan sheet 642 refer to the use of steel plates and fill 

dirt to protect the existing channel lining. Access to the channel bottom with 

large equipment is required for but not limited  to the following activities: 

removal of existing concrete lining, CIDH pile drilling, and precast girder 

erection. Please provide the allowable access locations to enter and exit the 

channel with heavy equipment.

Access to the Santa Ana River channel bottom is via Fairview Ave, west 

embankment, through a gate, and down an existing ramp from the top of 

bank to the river channel bottom. 

173

Reference plan sheet 627 for the Westminster Bridge. The girder longitudinal 

section detail for post tensioning does not match the typical section 

dimensions shown on plan sheet 626. The bottom slab thickness is shown to 

vary from 6” to 3’. The full depth of the CIP girders is shown as 4’9” on plan 

sheet 626, detail 1.  Please verify and provide the correct   dimensions. 

To be answered in a future Addendum
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174

Project special conditions section 6.4.2 prohibits pile driving on this project. 

However the temporary shoring for pier construction at the SAR Bridge and 

the retaining wall construction will require the use of vibratory hammers to 

drive sheets. Please confirm that sheet piling for temporary shoring at the 

Santa Ana River bridge and for retaining wall construction along the PE ROW 

will be permitted.

To be answered in a future Addendum

175

Reference plan Sheet DN-18- Section G/ DN-18. This detail shows the 

approach slab extending beyond the return wall and overlapping the retaining 

walls. The plan view shows the approach slabs are inside the return walls. 

Please verify and provide the correct detail.

To be answered in a future Addendum

176

Reference plan Sheet DN-18- Section G/ DN-18. This detail shows the 3 Inch 

plastic pipe from the retaining wall and along the return wall. However the 

plan view does not show the pipe along the retaining wall. Please verify and 

provide the correct detail.

To be answered in a future Addendum

177

Reference plan Sheet DN-18- Detail 2. This detail shows a filter fabric for geo-

composite drain. Is it the intent that this fabric wrap around the full depth of 

geo-composite drain? Or is it only required around the top. Please clarify.

To be answered in a future Addendum

178 Please provide the as built drawings for the existing Santa Ana River bridge.

To our knowledge, as built drawings do not exist for the Historic Santa Ana 

River Bridge.  We know that is is a Pegram Truss, built in 1907 as part of 

the Pacific Electric Railway that operated until 1950.

179 Please verify the quantity for Bid Item No. 55 – 48” CIDH Piling To be answered in a future Addendum

180
General 

Conditions - 41

GC-41 Product 

Options, Supplier 

Approvals, and 

Substitutions

Per Addendum 2, all questions and approved equals are due to the owner by 

February 7, 2018. The GC-41 states that request shall be made within thirty-

five calendar days from the Notice to Proceed with Construction…..unless 

later submission of request is agreed to by the authority. These dates do not 

align regarding approved equals. Please clarify which timeline is correct. In 

addition, we respectfully request that submission of approved equals be 

carried throughout the life of the project in order to provide the best product 

per application, reduce cost and increase project efficiency.

The IFB provides for two distinct timeframes and processes for product 

substitution. During the bidding period, if the bidder wishes to 

receive AUTHORITY's approval of substitution(s) prior to submission of bid, 

then the bidder should adhere to the deadline indicated by the AUTHORITY, 

as modified by Addenda. Postaward requests are covered in GC-41. No 

change to the requirement.

181
Special 

Conditions - 7

SP-7 Permits and 

Fees, (7.2) 

CONTRACTOR 

Acquired Permits

Per the Special Conditions 7.2, CONTRACTOR - Acquired Permits, the 

Authority list permits a through h. Can the Authority provide the fee 

associated with each permit?

To be answered in a future Addendum
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182
Special 

Condition - 28

SC-28 Systems 

Integration 

Testing and Start- 

Up/Pre-Revenue 

Service

Please clarify who will be responsible for the cost of power during the System 

Integration and Streetcar Testing period?

Per SC-6.6.1, and response to Bidder Question No. 69, the AUTHORITY is 

applying for permanent utility services in their name, meaning that bills for 

permanent services will go to the AUTHORITY from the time new service is 

established.  Per SC-6.6.1, the CONTRACTOR will be responsible for 

temporary utility services. The AUTHORITY will pay for permanent services 

during System Integration and Streetcar Testing period.

183
Special 

Condition - 6

SC-6 Work 

Description, 

Segments, 

Sequence & 

Constraints, (6.3) 

Description of 

Work Segments 

and Work 

Restrictions

Per the special conditions section 6.3 Description of Work Segments and 

Work Restrictions, "The Work shall be performed in conformance with the 

phasing and staging of construction shown on the Plans and indicated below. 

Non-conflicting Work in subsequent stages may proceed concurrently with 

Work in preceding stages, provided satisfactory progress is maintained in the 

preceding stages of construction, subject

to approval of the Engineer in advance." Please clarify the following:

1. Will the Contractor be allowed to work in multiple segment at any time as 

long as work is concurrent within each segment?

2. Will the Contractor be allowed to work in Segments 1 and 2 concurrently?

3. Will the Contractor be allowed to work in Segments 2 and 3 concurrently?

4. Will the Contractor be allowed to work in Segments 2 and 4 concurrently?

5. Will the Contractor be allowed to work in Segments 2 and 5 concurrently? 

6.Will the Contractor be allowed to work in Segments 3 and 4 concurrently?

7. Will the Contractor be allowed to work in Segments 3 and 5 concurrently?

8. Will the Contractor be allowed to work in Segments 4 and 5 concurrently?

Per the second sentence in SC-6.3, "Non-conflicting Work in subsequent 

stages may proceed concurrently with Work in preceding stages, provided 

satisfactory progress is maintained in the preceding stages of construction, 

subject to approval of the Engineer in advance."  Approval to work 

concurrently in the seqments listed in questions 1-8 may be given based on 

whether satisfactory progress is maintained in the preceeding states of 

construction.  The Engineer will balance the construction schedule against 

impacts to the community (traffic, parking, noise, dust, etc.).  

184
Special 

Condition - 6

SC-6 Work 

Description, 

Segments, 

Sequence & 

Constraints, (6.2) 

Coordination of 

Work with Others

Per the special conditions section 6.2 Coordination of Work with Other, "It is 

anticipated that work by other contractors, municipalities and utility 

companies may be in progress adjacent to and within the limits of this Project 

during progress of the Work on this Contract." Please identify all anticipated 

work by "others", provide an anticipated schedule for the work and locations.

To be answered in a future Addendum
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185
Special 

Conditions - 10

SC-10 Contract 

Data Submission 

Requirements, 

(10.6) Time For 

Submittals

Per the special conditions section 10.6 Time For Submittals, states that the 

CONTRACTOR can assume that AUTHORITY will review and return all 

submittals within thirty (30) calendar days after receipt of a complete 

submittal. Due to the

number long lead material items and prescribed sequencing of the project 

this will have a significate effect on the overall construction duration of the 

project. We respectfully request that this time period be reduced to 14 

calendar days and/or a time period that is less than 30 to facilitate a 

seamless submittal process.

As is emphasized in Article 1 of the Construction Agreement and General 

Condition 30, time is of the essence.  SC10.6's intent is to be sure that 

submittals are received by the AUTHORITY sufficiently in advance of the 

required approval date to allow necessary reviews to be completed.  The 

AUTHORITY will not reduce the specified duration, however, the 

CONTRACTOR may request a shorter review period for long lead items that 

require early submittal and the AUTHORITY will strive to complete reviews 

in less than 30 days and prioritize reviews in accordance with the 

CONTRACTOR's schedule.

186

Technical Spec 

Book 1B Exhibit 

B-2

Section 41 22 

13.13

Per plan sheet 2-HD02 (931 of 1520), the 7.5 Ton Bridge Crane is supported 

from post and includes 14x132 steel beams on grid line 8. Please clarify the 

connection on gridline 9 and confirm that this 7.5 Ton Bridge Crane is to be 

supported by the W24X55 that run transversely to the 14x132 and supports 

the roof structure. Please provide additional details from this connection and 

rail detail. Please verify the W24x55 are adequate to support the loading from 

the roof structural and the fully loaded 7.5 Ton Bridge Crane.

To be answered in a future Addendum

187
Book 1C – 

Volume 4

Drawing Z-PN10 

– Note 7

Note 7 on drawing Z-PN10 states “To provide corner guards at all exterior 

corners at first floor work areas.”  Please provide details for material and 

dimensions as they are not noted in the drawings or the project specification 

10 26 00 Wall and Door Protection.

To be answered in a future Addendum

188
Book 1B – 

Exhibit 2

Specification 

Section 10 26 00-

2.02.A.1.a

In specifications section 10 26 00 Wall and Door Protection page 5, notes the 

locations for the wall protection in the Corridors A103, A104, A116 and A127.  

The Room numbers listed are not referring to correct locations or rooms.  

Please advise on the intended locations for the wall protection needed in the 

maintenance building.

To be answered in a future Addendum

189
Various Plan 

Sheets

Please provide details for the Landings, Crosswalks and Sidewalks shown 

near each proposed Rail Platform and noted as "SEE PLAN DETAILS FOR 

ADJACENT PAVEMENT TREATMENT"  on Plan Sheet CD11. These areas 

do not indicate if there is a footing required under the proposed curb, 

pavement sections, footing terminations and location and/or type of truncated 

domes required to properly provide accurate pricing. For example, please see 

Drawing CP01-1EA, CP02-1EA, CP03-1EA, CP04- 1EA, CP05-2EA, CP06-

2EA, CP07-2EA, CP13-1EA, CP15-1EA and CP16-2EA.

Refer to Civil Improvement Plans (Volume 2 A) for type of pavement located 

adjacent to on-street platform locations.  Refer to Construction Details for 

information on platform footings.

Refer to Architectural Street Station Stop Plans (Volume 3) for type of 

truncated domes (tactile warning surface) on platforms. Please see PD01 

for truncated dome details on platform.

190

Communication drawings U-COMN02 – U-COMN04, illustrating the 

interfacility cable plan within the systemwide ductbank show TWC loops at 

560+60, 164+75, 172+00, 182+50, 188+20, 191+70, 599+25 & 302+75 that 

do not appear in the Train Signal Drawings. Please confirm these TWC loops 

are required. 

TWC loop locations are shown on Train Signal drawings. Comms drawings 

U-COMN02 and U-COMN14 will be updated to reflect TWC loop locations 

on Train Signal drawings.  
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191

Communication drawings U-COMN02 – U-COMN04 indicated 4-6PR #18 

cables connecting the signal cases to the TWC loops. Train signal cable 

plans show single 2c#14 connecting the TWC loops. Please clarify TWC loop 

cable type.

TWC loop cable type is 1-2c#14 as shown in Train Signal plans.  Comms 

drawings will be updated to reflect the 1-2C#14 cable type. 

192

Train Signal Drawing U-TSN10 does not show a FO cable linking the vital 

processor to the rest of the system. Please confirm a 24 strand fiber is 

required to connect the train signal cabinet at Harbor Blvd. to the train signal 

cabinet at N. Fairview St.

24 strand fiber is not required to connect the train signal cabinet at Harbor 

Blvd. to the train signal cabinet at N. Fairview St.

193
Volume 2 - CD14, 

CD08

For the installation of the sidewalk brick pavers per construction detail 

drawing CD14 detail (SIDEWALK BRICK PAVERS DETAIL) call out 15A, it is 

unclear if there is a concrete slab underneath these bricks.  

Does this brick paver section require a concrete slab and if so please provide 

the detail?

Sidewalk Brick Pavers Detail should include a concrete slab underneath the 

bricks and mortar bed. Detail CD14 will be revised and included in a future 

Addendum.

194
U-TPN33, U-

TPN60

Drawing U-TPN33 has a callout showing the dimensions of TPSS#2 to be 14'-

4"x38'.  Drawing U-TPN60 has a table that shows the length of TPSS#2 to be 

44'.  

Is the length of TPSS#2 38' or 44'?

Size of TPSS #2 is correctly shown on U-TPN08 as 44’-0” internal, 44’-8” 

overall. Drawing U-TPN33 will be revised in a future Addendum.

195 Exhibit M6
DN01 through 

DN07

Exhibit M6 Foundation / Geotechnical Reports requires excavating 2 feet 

below bottom of footing level and placing 2 feet of compacted structure 

fill (See Figure 6 - Grading Foundation Details). The station footing drawings 

and specifications do not reference or require any additional excavation. 

Please confirm if the Station Canopy Footings or Station Sign Marker 

Footings require structure fill to be placed below the footing.  If so, please 

provide specifications and updated plans that reflect the earthwork 

requirements at the platforms.

To be answered in a future Addendum

196 CP09 & CA26

Please reference CP09 and CA26, there is a discrepancy between the 2 

sheets in Tactile limits. CP09 shows the tactile extending west beyond the 

west ramp of the EB Sycamore Platform.  However civil sheet CA26 does not 

show the tactile in this location west of the platform.  Please confirm the 

tactile limits. 

This discrepancy occurs at 4 locations:

EB Sycamore Platform - West Side CP09 compared to CA26

EB French Platform - East Side CP10 compared to CA29

EB Lacy Platform - East Side CP11 compared to CA31

WB Lacy Platform - West Side CP12 compared to CA31

Tactile surface limits should extend beyond the platform ramps at each of 

the four (4) locations indicated. Drawings CP09 through CP12 will be 

revised and included in a future Addendum.
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197

PS11

CP01 to CP16

Reference Plansheet PS11 Typical Center Platform Exterior Elevations. 

 Note 7 on the typical center platform sheet shows 2 EA Stop Markers (one 

on each end, in the platform ramps). However the platform detail sheets 

(CP01 to CP16) show one stop marker per center platform.

Please confirm the number of Stop Markers for each center platform. 

P-PS11 is a generic typical drawing.  Please refer to CP (Civil-Platform) 

drawings for specific types and number of signs.    CP01 (Harbor) – No 

streetcar vehicles are approaching from the west, therefore only 1 stop 

marker is needed. CP02 (Fairview) & CP03 (Raitt) –One stop marker is 

provided for eastbound vehicles. The "5' unistrut post with reflector" will be 

used as a stop locator for westbound vehicles. CP13 (SARTC) – No 

streetcar vehicles are approaching from the south, therefore only 1 stop 

marker is needed.

198
TD02 & Civil 

Drawings

Drawing TD02 detail A and B states "Geotextile Fabric to be Installed 

Between Subgrade and Aggregate Base for Entire Width of Pavement Cut, 

Along Sides, and Wrap at Least 1 Foot on Top." It is unclear if this is in 

reference to having the Geotextile installed just under the track slab or have it 

extend it to the limits of the civil cut areas.  When referring to the civil details, 

civil cross sections, or civil plan sheets there is no reference to install this 

geotextile fabric.  

Please clarify the where geotextile fabric is required.

To be answered in a future Addendum

199

Impedance bond locations are not shown on the plans; rather they are part of 

the design build signal scope.  

Please provide installation and accessibility requirements.

Correct. Train Signal plans will be updated to provide clarification on 

installation and accessibility requirements. 

200 U-TPN28

Can Traction Power and Signal Wires be connected to the rail in a common 

track box such as the track box shown in U-TPN28?

Where there is no traction power connection, do the track circuit and 

impedance bond connections need to be accessible and be in some sort of 

track box for future accessibility?

If so, please provide detail of the box and connection.

Impedance bonds don’t need any other boxes. Installation instructions for 

them will be added according to question/answer 199.  The box referenced 

on U-TPN28 is for traction power needs. 

201 Corridor & MSF
Is electrical grounding required for general Corridor and MSF Site metallic 

fencing, railings, etc? If so; please provide specifications and details.
To be answered in a future Addendum

202 ZCN03, ZPG02

Drawing ZCN03 (site construction plan) notes to "see drawing PG02 for 

signage . . ."   However, neither drawing PG02 nor any other MSF site 

drawing depicts any exterior site signage.

Please provide drawings and specifications for any required exterior site 

signage at the Maintenance and Storage facility.

To be answered in a future Addendum

203 43 20 00 ZHN04

Drawing ZHN04 locates the engine oil pumps, and windshield fluid washer 

pump in room 152.  However, we find no process piping, nor 

distribution/dispensing equipment for these products in the maintenance and 

storage facility plans.

Please confirm that there is no distribution piping or dispensing equipment 

required for gear oil, hydraulic oil, flange lubrication, or windshield washer 

fluid.

To be answered in a future Addendum
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204

SC-39

GC-55               

26 05 00

Within the MSF specifications, various sections refer to a CxA, or 

Commissioning Agent, and make reference to SC-39.  SC-39, however, 

provides no information on the roles and responsibilities surrounding 

commissioning of the MSF.  Section 26 05 00 , section 1.25I does make 

reference to the "Owner's Commissioning Authority and Commissioning 

Agent".

With regard to the building commissioning, please clarify the contractor's 

responsibilities (i.e. who writes commissioning plan, who manages, who 

provides the commissioning agent, etc.)

To be answered in a future Addendum

205
U-TPN37 and U-

DBN-32

Drawing U-TPN37 has a note for a traction power ductbank coming out of 

Comms 3'x4' pull box # CPB-654 that states "TO SWBD PB# PB-43A SEE 

DRAWING U-DBN32".  Drawing U-DBN32 does not show a PB-43A.

Where do the 2ea 2" conduit runs that leave south from CPB-654  terminate?

Drawing U-TPN37 reference to PB-43A will be changed to PB-41A in a 

future Addendum.

206

Per sheet U-OCSG02, general note 13, it states “Wherever a specific 

manufacturer item is listed on the drawings, the contractor shall supply that 

item.”  Is it possible to reach out to multiple vendors to provide more 

competitive pricing? 

To be answered in a future Addendum

207

Santa Ana River Bridge (SAR): This Bridge is designed with Pre-stressed 

girders to avoid false work in the river channel. Piers with Hammer head caps 

would have completely eliminated false work altogether. However the present 

design requires support towers at the piers to build the diaphragms. 

Constructability issues have defeated the purpose of doing away with false 

work. Please re-visit and modify the design.

To be answered in a future Addendum

208

Santa Ana River Bridge (SAR): Per current drawings and design, temporary 

false work towers are required at Piers 2 and 3. This means building 

temporary pads underneath the support towers. Please verify and confirm 

that the 404 permit allows for this.

To be answered in a future Addendum

209

Reference SC-53.4, B 48 and 49. Subsection “b” under both items 48 and 49 

include the identical description of work to be included for payment. Please 

clarify the scope of work to be covered in bid items 48 and  49.

To be answered in a future Addendum

210 Will OCTA provide list of pre-qualified OCS Subcontractors for this project?

The AUTHORITY will only release the names of prequalified prime 

contractors. The most release list was issued as part of Addendum No. 5 

and will be updated as necessary

211 34 11 28
TW03-TW06, 

TW09, & TW10

We find no rebar details (cross section, sizing, spacing) for special track 

work.

Please provide Rebar requirements for embedded special trackwork, and 

Rebar and Doweling requirements for D.F. special trackwork.

To be answered in a future Addendum
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212 27 05 33

Spec section 27 05 33 - 2.01.A states that conduits are to conform to ASTM 

F512 for pvc materials.  ASTM F512 covers five types of pvc conduit 

material.  Those five types are EB-20, EB-35, DB-60. DB-100 and DB-120.

Spec section 27 05 33 - 3.02.C.4 states that all conduit within ductbanks shall 

be Schedule 40 PVC.

Are the conduits from the ductbank drawings to be of EB/DB material as per 

ASTM F512 or are they to be schedule 40?  Please provide a designation if 

they are to be EB/DB.

To be answered in a future Addendum

213 34 42 28

Spec section 34 42 28 gives requirements for Embedded Power Switch 

Machines. Non-Embedded Machines are required for the Ballasted (non-AC 

Paved) and D.F. Special Trackwork. 

Please provide specifications for Non-Embedded Power Switch Machines.

To be answered in a future Addendum

214
TW02, TW03, 

TW07, Z-TN01

Drawing TW03 mis-identifies 3 Yard turnouts as Concrete Embedded 

Turnouts. Should these yard turnouts actually be AC Paved Ballasted 

turnouts as shown on TW02? 

Also, please confirm that since all 7 of the 25M yard ballasted turnouts are 

AC paved (Z-TN01); all of the Notes on Drawing TW07 should apply to them. 

To be answered in a future Addendum

215 34 11 23

Spec 34 11 23 paragraph 2.15A states "All special trackwork to be embedded 

in concrete shall be fully insulated..." Please confirm that concrete includes 

AC Paving.

To be answered in a future Addendum

216
U-CCD01 thru  U-

CCD16

Which Spec Section is associated with the "Stray Current Corrosion Control" 

work shown on Drawings U-CCD01 - U-CCD16? If no spec exists for this 

specific work; please provide.

To be answered in a future Addendum

217
U-CCD11 & U-

CCD15

On Drawing U-CCD11 in the "Crossovers/Turnout/DFT Collector Bars" Detail 

a Test Station Box is shown and noted as (Field Located). Are these boxes to 

be in addition-to the boxes tabulated on U-CCD15. If so; are we correct to 

assume 1 box per piece of Special Trackwork?

To be answered in a future Addendum

218

Ductbank and 

Structure 

Drawings

Please provide details of how the ductbank conduits transition across the 

bridge/approach slabs.  Will slip couplings, expansion/deflection couplings, 

plates or other seismic devices be required?

To be answered in a future Addendum
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219
32 17 26

32 17 27
CP01-CP16

Many landing and crossing Detectable Warning Panels are not clearly labeled 

in the Platform Detail Drawings (CP01-CP16) they are also not labeled in the 

Civil drawings.  At several locations detectable panels are shown but not 

specified with any notes or call outs.  Please provide Detectable Warning 

Panels details for the following locations:

CP01 - Harbor Platform, Bottom of East Ramp Track Crossing

CP04 - EB Bristol Platform, Bottom of East Ramp

CP05 - WB Bristol Platform - Bottom of West and East Ramp

CP06 - EB Flower Platform - Bottom of West and East Ramp

CP07 - WB Flower Platform - Bottom of West and East Ramp

CP15 - WB Sycamore Platform, Bottom of East Ramp

CP16 - WB French Platform, Bottom of West and East Ramp

To be answered in a future Addendum

220 27 05 20 P-PS22

Please clarify the contractor scope regarding owner provided TVMs and 

Ticket Validators.  (NIC Not in Contract Devices)

Will Contractor be required to transport or install devices on site?

Will contractor terminate power or communication wires to the devices?

Will the contractor be required to provide any testing or troubleshooting 

support of these devices?

To be answered in a future Addendum

221
10 73 43 - 17

Paragraph E-2

Shelter Stop - Shop Assembly 

Please confirm the required Mock-up can be provided and inspected off site 

at the manufacturing location. 

To be answered in a future Addendum

222 P-BD03 

Conduits Encased in Red Concrete

P-BD03 requires red concrete encasement for power conduits. However no 

specification supports this.  Please confirm which conduits on the project 

require encasement with red concrete and provide the 

limits/details/specifications as required.

To be answered in a future Addendum

223
34 21 50 - 

3.02.A.9

Spec section 34 21 50 - 3.02.A.9, Basic Electrical Materials and Methods - 

Traction Power,  states that where conduits cross structural expansion joints, 

conduit expansion and deflection fittings, as specified in Paragraph 2.06 of 

these Specifications, shall be installed at the  expansion joint.

Please provide a drawings, detail or any information as to where this 

statement applies.  Please confirm this applies to Traction Power conduits 

only.

To be answered in a future Addendum
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224

CX-16

LN20

LN28

Typical Section SARTC - SANTIAGO ST EBT STA 315+96.91 to 316+59.91 

depicts decomposed granite between the track slab and railing at the SARTC 

East Terminus.

Landscape Plans LN20 and LN28 do not show DG, or any planting or 

hardscape improvements at this location.  The area between the tracks is 

also blank on these sheet.

Please specify if any landscaping or hardscaping is required in the portion of 

the SARTC East Terminus that is enclosed by handrail.

To be answered in a future Addendum

225

The current deadline for questions and approved equals is February 28th. 

 We are striving to thoroughly review the documents and send all our 

questions in a timely manner before the current deadline.

However, general feedback from subcontractors and suppliers within the 

industry is that they are hesitant to start document review and pricing efforts 

because the bid date is over two and half months away. 

Please consider extending the deadline for questions and approved equals to 

Wednesday, March 28th.  This will allow for greater input from 

Subcontractors and Supplier interest for this pursuit and OCTA will have 1 

month to review questions.  If the deadline is not extended, subcontractors 

and suppliers may not bid the project or un-needed contingencies may be 

included in the pricing.

To be answered in a future Addendum

226

In Specification 34 21 76 Section 1.01.A.1 it states “… a (SCIS) for remote 

control and Indication of Traction Power…” In general, what level of “Control” 

decisions does the SCITC panel PLC (the SCIS) have in operation of 

breakers in the TPSS? Who makes local Traction Power decisions (like 

transfer trip) – the SCIS or remote RTU?

To be answered in a future Addendum

227

In Specification 34 21 76 Section 2.01.A.2 it states a “plate shall be used for 

Terminal blocks…between SCIS and remote SCADA RTU”. This statement 

seems to imply there are hardwire connections between the SCITC and the 

SCADA RTU.  Is this correct? In 3.02D there is mention of a communications 

connection. Is it both? Which OCTA drawing shows this connection method?

To be answered in a future Addendum

228

In Specification 34 21 76 Section 3.02.D it states to “Identify the 

communication protocol”. What is preferred communication media for the 

connection of SCITC cabinet and SCADA RTU? The Technical specs and 

drawings appear conflicting and show SCADA commmunications as both 

serial and Ethernet, fiber and twisted pair, and MODBUS TCP (which is 

Ethernet). Please clarify.

To be answered in a future Addendum
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229

In Specification 34 21 76 Section 2.03.A it states “I/O and field connective 

peripherals; and drawing 1116 of 1520 Typical TPSS SCADA Points”. 

Drawing 1116 (typical TPSS SCADA Points) implies all SCADA I/O is 

discrete. But the specifications mention smart devices may provide I/O. Is 

there a preferred method or is this open to the contractor?

To be answered in a future Addendum

230

In Drawing #1115 “Typical Interface Block Diagram” it shows SCADA I/O 

from the switchgear and Rectifiers going direct (via communications) to the 

SCADA RTU. Where is the SCIS (and the SCITC) in this drawing?

To be answered in a future Addendum

231

In Drawing #U-TPN07 it shows FDR 172-3 & 172-4 “FUT SPACE ONLY”. 

Does the authority want empty DC Switchgear cells with rear access doors 

built into the building or does the authority want open space for future DC 

Switchgear cells and no rear access doors integrated into the building?

To be answered in a future Addendum

232

In Specification 34 21 15 Section 1.05.B.5 (Substation Enclosure) calls for 

submittal of “Certified test results for thermal and electrical”. This needs 

further definition. Please clarify per what standards or specification detail the 

test procedures. 

To be answered in a future Addendum
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AGREEMENT NO. C- 7-1904 

BETWEEN 

ORANGE COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 

AND 

  

THIS AGREEMENT is effective this _____ day of ________________________, 201_, by and 

between the Orange County Transportation Authority, 550 South Main Street, P.O. Box 14184, Orange, 

CA 92863-1584, a public corporation of the State of California (hereinafter referred to as "AUTHORITY"), 

and  ,  ,  ,  ,     (hereinafter referred to as "CONTRACTOR"). 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, AUTHORITY has determined that it requires construction of the OC Streetcar 

Construction Project; and 

WHEREAS, said work cannot be performed by the regular employees of AUTHORITY; and 

WHEREAS, CONTRACTOR has represented that it has the requisite personnel, experience, 

material, and equipment and is otherwise qualified to perform such services; and 

WHEREAS, CONTRACTOR wishes to perform these services; and 

WHEREAS, AUTHORITY’s Board of Directors authorized this Agreement on   . 

NOW, THEREFORE, it is mutually understood and agreed by AUTHORITY and CONTRACTOR 

as follows: 

ARTICLE 1. COMPLETE AGREEMENT 

A. This Agreement, including all exhibits and other documents incorporated herein and made 

applicable by reference, constitutes the complete and exclusive statement of the terms and conditions of 

the Agreement between AUTHORITY and CONTRACTOR and it supersedes all prior representations, 

understandings and communications.  The invalidity in whole or in part of any term or condition of this 

Agreement shall not affect the validity of other terms or conditions. 

/ 
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B. AUTHORITY's failure to insist in any one or more instances upon the performance of any 

terms or conditions of this Agreement shall not be construed as a waiver or relinquishment of 

AUTHORITY's right to such performance by CONTRACTOR or to future performance of such terms or 

conditions and CONTRACTOR's obligation in respect thereto shall continue in full force and effect.  

CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for having taken steps reasonably necessary to ascertain the nature 

and location of the work, and the general and local conditions, which can affect the work or the cost 

thereof.  Any failure by CONTRACTOR to do so will not relieve it from responsibility for successfully 

performing the work without additional expense to AUTHORITY. 

C. AUTHORITY assumes no responsibility for any understanding or representations concerning 

conditions made by any of its officers, employees or agents prior to the execution of this Agreement, 

unless such understanding or representations by AUTHORITY are expressly stated in this Agreement. 

D. Time shall be of the essence hereunder; but CONTRACTOR shall perform work hereunder 

only to the minimum extent consistent with requirements herein. 

E. Changes to any portion of this Agreement shall not be binding upon AUTHORITY except 

when specifically confirmed in writing by an authorized representative of AUTHORITY and issued in 

accordance with the provisions of this Agreement. 

ARTICLE 2. AUTHORITY DESIGNEE 

The Chief Executive Officer of AUTHORITY, or designee, shall have the authority to act for and 

exercise any of the rights of AUTHORITY as set forth in this Agreement. 

ARTICLE 3. SCOPE OF WORK 

CONTRACTOR shall provide all labor, equipment, materials and facilities necessary for all work 

related to the OC Streetcar Construction Project in strict compliance with all the contract documents 

specified herein and in:  

Attachment A entitled “DBE CONTRACT PROVISIONS FOR FTA-ASSISTED CONTRACTS 

WITH DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (DBE) GOALS”; 

Attachment A-1 entitled “DBE Commitment Form”; 
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Exhibit A, entitled "General Conditions";  

Addendum No’s  ________; 

Exhibit A-1, entitled “Special Conditions”; 

Exhibit B-1, entitled “Technical Specifications OC Streetcar”;  

Exhibit B-2, entitled “Technical Specifications – Maintenance and Storage Facility (MSF)”; 

Exhibit B-3, entitled “Technical Specifications – Orange County Sanitation District (OCSD)”; 

Exhibit C-1, entitled "List of Drawings – Volume 1 – Track";  

Exhibit C-2, entitled "List of Drawings – Volume 2 – Civil";  

Exhibit C-3, entitled "List of Drawings – Volume 3 – Structure and Streetcar Stops";  

Exhibit C-4, entitled "List of Drawings – Volume 4 – MSF"; 

Exhibit C-5, entitled "List of Drawings – Volume 5– Systems"; 

Exhibit C-6, entitled "List of Drawings – Volume 6 – Civil Cross Sections"; 

Exhibit D, entitled "List of Subcontractors";  

Exhibit E, entitled "Performance Bond";  

Exhibit F, entitled "Payment Bond"; 

Exhibit G, entitled "Guaranty";  

Exhibit H, entitled “Level III Safety Specifications”; 

Exhibit I, entitled “Work Segments and Traffic Management Plan”; 

Exhibit I-1, entitled “Work Segments”; 

Exhibit I-2, entitled “Traffic Management Plans”; 

Exhibit J, entitled “Utility Company Drawings, Data, and Information”; 

Exhibit J-1, entitled “Southern California Edison”;  

Exhibit J-2, entitled “Southern California Gas”;  

Exhibit J-3, entitled “AT&T”;  

Exhibit J-4, entitled “Charter Communication”;  

Exhibit J-5, entitled “Sunesys”; 
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Exhibit J-6, entitled “Verizon”; 

Exhibit J-7, entitled “Zayo AboveNet”; 

Exhibit J-8, entitled “Century Link”; 

Exhibit J-9, entitled “Level 3 Communications”; 

Exhibit J-10, entitled “New Utility Service and Meter Locations”; 

Exhibit J-11, entitled “OCSD Standard Drawings”; 

Exhibit K, entitled “Permits Acquired by AUTHORITY”;  

Exhibit K-1, entitled “Section 401 Water Quality Standard Certification - Regional Water Quality 

Control Board”; 

Exhibit K-2, entitled “Section 404 United States Army Corps of Engineers”;  

Exhibit K-3, entitled “Section 408 United States Army Corps of Engineers”;  

Exhibit K-4, entitled “Section 1602 Streambed Alteration Permit - California Department of Fish 

and Wildlife”;  

Exhibit K-5, entitled “Orange County Flood Control District (OCFCD)”; 

Exhibit K-6, entitled “California Public Utilities Commission (CPUC)”  

Exhibit K-7, entitled “City of Santa Ana”; 

Exhibit L, entitled “Temporary Construction Easements and Private Property Work 

Requirements”; 

Exhibit L-A, entitled “ROW Requirements” 

Exhibit L-1, entitled “OCFCD Temporary Construction Easements”; 

Exhibit L-2, entitled “76 Station Temporary Construction Easement”; 

Exhibit L-3, entitled “Nova Academy Temporary Construction Easement”; 

Exhibit M, entitled “Foundation / Geotechnical Reports”;  

Exhibit M-1, entitled “Foundation Report Westminster Avenue Bridge”;  

Exhibit M-2, entitled “Foundation Report Santa Ana River Bridge”;  

Exhibit M-3, entitled “Geotechnical Report for Maintenance and Storage Facility (MSF)”;  
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Exhibit M-4, entitled “Geotechnical Data Report”;  

Exhibit M-5, entitled “Geotechnical Design Report for Earth Retaining Systems”; 

Exhibit M-6, entitled “Geotechnical Design Report”; 

Exhibit N, entitled “Environmental Assessment Reports”;  

Exhibit N-1, entitled “Limited Phase I Environmental Assessment Report for the PE ROW”;  

Exhibit N-2, entitled “Limited Phase I Environmental Assessment Report for the SA Recycling 

Facility, 2002 W. 5TH Street, Santa Ana, CA”;  

Exhibit N-3, entitled “Limited Phase I Environmental Assessment Report for 2020 W. 5TH Street, 

Santa Ana, CA”;  

Exhibit N-4, entitled “Limited Phase II Environmental Assessment Report for the PE ROW”;  

Exhibit N-5, entitled “Limited Phase II Environmental Assessment Report for the SA Recycling 

Facility, 2002 W. 5TH Street, Santa Ana, CA”;  

Exhibit N-6, entitled “Limited Phase II Environmental Assessment Report for 2020 W. 5TH Street, 

Santa Ana, CA”;  

Exhibit O, entitled “Draft Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan”; 

Exhibit P, entitled “Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program”; 

Exhibit Q, entitled “MSF Traction Power Single Line Diagram”; 

Exhibit R, entitled “Contractor Reporting Forms”. 

all of which documents are attached to and, by this reference, incorporated in and made a part of this 

Agreement.  By this reference, also incorporated in and made a part of this Agreement are all applicable 

provisions of IFB and all representations made by CONTRACTOR in its original bid to AUTHORITY, 

including, but not limited to, CONTRACTOR's certifications relative to Workers' Compensation Insurance, 

and compliance with Section 7028.15 of the State of California Business and Professions Code. 

ARTICLE 4. DELIVERY / RECOVERY SCHEDULE 

A. CONTRACTOR shall fully complete the herein above described work within eight hundred 

and fifty (850) days from the effective date of written Notice to Proceed with Construction (NTPC) issued 
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by AUTHORITY.  CONTRACTOR shall give AUTHORITY not less than seventy-two (72) hours advance 

notice of the start of any work.   

B. If at any time, the critical path schedule reflects -30 or a greater negative number of days of 

total float, then CONTRACTOR, within ten (10) days after CONTRACTOR first becomes aware of such 

schedule delay, shall prepare and submit to AUTHORITY for review and approval a Recovery Schedule 

demonstrating CONTRACTOR’s proposed plan to regain lost schedule progress and to achieve the 

original contractual milestones in accordance with the Contract.  AUTHORITY shall notify 

CONTRACTOR within ten days after receipt of each such Recovery Schedule whether the schedule is 

deemed accepted or rejected.  Within five (5) days after AUTHORITY’s rejection of the schedule, 

CONTRACTOR will resubmit a revised Recovery Schedule incorporating AUTHORITY’s comments.  

When AUTHORITY accepts CONTRACTOR’s Recovery Schedule, CONTRACTOR shall, within five (5) 

days after AUTHORITY’s acceptance, incorporate and fully include such schedule into the Project 

Schedule and deliver it to AUTHORITY. 

C. All costs incurred by CONTRACTOR in preparing, implementing and achieving the Recovery 

Schedule shall be borne by CONTRACTOR and shall not result in a change to the contract price. 

D. In the event that CONTRACTOR fails to provide an acceptable Recovery Schedule within 

thirty (30) days of CONTRACTOR’s receipt of a notice to do so, CONTRACTOR shall have no right to 

receive progress payments until CONTRACTOR has prepared and AUTHORITY has approved such 

Recovery Schedule. 

ARTICLE 5. START OF WORK 

CONTRACTOR shall incur no costs, and shall not perform or furnish any work, services, materials 

or equipment under this Agreement, unless and until a written Notice to Proceed has been given to 

CONTRACTOR by AUTHORITY.  Conditions precedent to AUTHORITY issuing a Limited Notice to 

Proceed are CONTRACTOR furnishing the Exhibit E "Performance Bond," Exhibit F "Payment Bond, a" 

Exhibit G "Guaranty," and certificates of insurance as set forth in Article 11 and in accordance with the 

Special Conditions.  CONTRACTOR shall furnish said documents within fourteen (14) days after 
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notification of contract award from AUTHORITY. Upon receipt of acceptable bonds, guaranty, and 

insurance certificates, AUTHORITY will within fourteen (14) days thereafter issue the written Limited 

Notice to Proceed.  The AUTHORITY will issue a Notice to Proceed with Construction after the 

CONTRACTOR completes the tasks listed in the Special Conditions. 

ARTICLE 6. PAYMENT 

A. For CONTRACTOR's full and complete performance of its obligations under this Agreement, 

and subject to the maximum cumulative payment obligation provision set forth in Article 8, AUTHORITY 

shall pay CONTRACTOR the contract price as stated in Article 8 Maximum Payment Obligation. 

B. Progress payments and the final payment will be made by AUTHORITY to CONTRACTOR 

in accordance with the terms as set forth in Exhibit A, "General Conditions," under the "Progress 

Payments" and "Final Payment and Claims" sections therein.  The acceptance by CONTRACTOR of 

AUTHORITY's final payment hereunder shall constitute a waiver of all claims against AUTHORITY under 

or arising out of this herein Agreement, as such may from time to time be amended. 

C. Failure by AUTHORITY to pay amount in dispute shall not alleviate, diminish or modify in any 

respect the CONTRACTOR's obligation to achieve final acceptance of and all work in accordance with 

the contract documents, and CONTRACTOR shall not cease or slow down its performance under this 

Agreement on account of any such amount in dispute.  CONTRACTOR shall proceed as directed by 

AUTHORITY pending resolution of dispute.  Upon resolution of dispute, each party shall promptly pay 

any amount owing. 

D. The CONTRACTOR or his/her designated alternate shall certify on each payment application 

that a) The payment application is a true, complete and correct statement of work covered by the 

Application for Payment and progress; b) The backup information included is true, complete and correct 

in all material respects; c) All payments due and owing to subcontractors and suppliers have been made;  

d)  Timely payments will be made to subcontractors and suppliers from the proceeds of the payments 

covered by the certification and; e) The invoice does not include any amount which CONTRACTOR 

intends to withhold or retain from a subcontractor or supplier unless so identified on the invoice. 
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ARTICLE 7. PROMPT PAYMENT CLAUSE 

A. Upon receipt of payment by AUTHORITY, CONTRACTOR agrees to promptly pay each 

subcontractor for the satisfactory work performed under this Agreement, no later than seven (7) days.  

CONTRACTOR agrees further to return retainage payments to each subcontractor within thirty (30) days 

after the subcontractor’s work is satisfactorily completed.  AUTHORITY reserves the right to request the 

appropriate documentation from CONTRACTOR showing payment has been made to the 

subcontractors.  Any delay or postponement of payment from the above referenced time frames may 

occur only for good cause following written approval by AUTHORITY.  In accordance with Revised §26.29 

“Prompt Payment Provisions” (Federal Register - dated June 16, 2003) AUTHORITY, at its discretion has  

elected to utilize the following method to comply with the prompt payment of retainage requirement. 

1. To hold retainage from CONTRACTOR and provide for prompt and regular 

incremental acceptances of portions of the AGREEMENT, pay retainage to the CONTRACTOR based 

on these acceptances, and require the CONTRACTOR to pay all retainage owed to the subcontractors 

for satisfactory completion of the accepted work within 30 days after payment to the CONTRACTOR. 

B. Failure to comply with this provision or delay in payment without prior written approval from 

AUTHORITY will constitute noncompliance, which may result in appropriate administrative sanctions, 

including, but not limited to a penalty of two percent (2%) of the invoice amount due per month for every 

month that payment is not made. 

C. These prompt payment provisions must be incorporated in all subcontract agreements issued 

by CONTRACTOR under this Agreement.  Each subcontract shall require the subcontractor to make 

payments to sub-subcontractors and suppliers in a similar manner. 

ARTICLE 8. MAXIMUM OBLIGATION  

Notwithstanding any provisions of this Agreement to the contrary, AUTHORITY and 

CONTRACTOR mutually agree that AUTHORITY's maximum cumulative payment obligation hereunder 

(including obligation for CONTRACTOR 's profit), shall be IN WORDS  Dollars ($ XXX,XXX,XXX.00),  

/ 
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which shall include all amounts payable to CONTRACTOR for its subcontracts, leases, materials and 

costs arising from, or due to termination of, this Agreement. 

ARTICLE 9. NOTICES  

All notices hereunder and communications regarding the interpretation of the terms of this 

Agreement, or changes thereto, shall be effected by delivery of said notices in person or by depositing 

said notices in the U.S. mail, registered or certified mail, returned receipt requested, postage prepaid and 

addressed as follows: 

To CONTRACTOR: To AUTHORITY: 

  Orange County Transportation Authority 

  550 South Main Street 

  P.O. Box 14184 

 ,     Orange, CA 92863-1584 

ATTENTION:   ATTENTION:  Bob Webb 

Title:   Title: Senior Contract Administrator 

Tel:   

E-Mail:   

Tel: (714) 560 - 5743  

E-Mail:  rwebb@octa.net 

 ATTENTION : Mary Shavalier 

 Title : Program Manager 

 Tel : (714) 560-5896 

 E-mail : mshavalier@octa.net 

ARTICLE 10. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 

CONTRACTOR's relationship to AUTHORITY in the performance of this Agreement is that of an 

independent contractor.  CONTRACTOR's personnel performing work under this Agreement shall at all 

times be under CONTRACTOR's exclusive direction and control and shall be employees of 

CONTRACTOR and not employees of AUTHORITY.  CONTRACTOR shall pay all wages, salaries and 

other amounts due its employees in connection with this Agreement and shall be responsible for all 
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reports and obligations respecting them, such as social security, income tax withholding, unemployment 

compensation, workers' compensation insurance, and similar matters. 

ARTICLE 11. INSURANCE 

A. CONTRACTOR shall procure and continuously maintain in full force and affect through 

contract completion, insurance coverages specified herein.  Coverages shall not be subject to self-

insurance provisions exceeding $50,000 per occurrence unless approved by the AUTHORITY.  Insurance 

coverage must be procured and acceptable insurance certificates and all other required insurance 

documents must be submitted by CONTRACTOR and approved by the AUTHORITY prior to the 

CONTRACTOR or any subcontractor commencing work activities at the project site.  CONTRACTOR shall 

provide the following insurance coverage: 

1. Commercial General Liability, This insurance must contain broad from contractual 

liability with a combined single limit of a minimum of $5,000,000 each occurrence and an aggregate limit 

of at least $20,000,000.  Coverage must be purchased on a post 1998 ISO occurrence form or equivalent 

and include coverage for, but not limited to the following:  Bodily Injury and Property Damage, Personal 

Injury and Advertising Injury, Products and completed operations. The policy shall not exclude coverage 

for inverse condemnation. This policy must also contain the following endorsements, which must be 

attached to the certificate of insurance: 

a. It is agreed that the workers’ compensation and employers’ liability related 

exclusions in the commercial General Liability insurance policy(s) required herein are intended to apply 

to employees of the policy holder. 

b. Any No other endorsements limiting coverage as respects obligations under this 

Agreement may be included on the policy with regard to the work being performed under this agreement 

with prior approval by the AUTHORITY. 

c. Any exclusions related to the explosion, collapse, and underground hazards must 

be removed.   

d. A waiver of subrogation in favor of the AUTHORITY, its officers, directors, 
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employees and agents, as well as those Parties identified in the Contract Documents. 

2. Business Automobile Insurance.  This insurance must contain combined single limit 

of at least $1,000,000 per occurrence, and include coverage for, but not limited to the following:  Bodily 

injury and property damage, any and all vehicles owned, used or hired. 

3. Workers’ Compensation and Employers Liability insurance including coverage for, but 

not limited to:   

a. California’s statutory liability under the worker’s compensation laws of the 

state(s) in which the work is to be performed with a waiver of subrogation favorable to the 

AUTHORITY and the City of Santa Ana, as well as those Parties identified in the Contract 

Documents (collectively, the “Indemnitees”). 

b. Employers’ Liability (Part B) with limits of at least $1,000,000 each accident, 

$1,000,000 by disease policy limit, $1,000,000 by disease each employee. 

4. Builder’s Risk Insurance.  CONTRACTOR shall purchase Builder’s Risk insurance for 

the entire Work by insurance companies rated A-VII or better by A.M.Best and on forms acceptable to 

OCTA.   

a. Such Builder’s Risk insurance shall be maintained, unless otherwise 

provided in the Contract Documents or otherwise agreed in writing by all persons and entities 

who are beneficiaries of such insurance, until final acceptance. 

b. This insurance shall include the interests of the Owner, the Contractor, 

Subcontractors, and Subsubcontractors in the Project as well as those Parties identified in the 

Contract Documents. 

c. Such insurance shall be written on a completed value basis and cover 

the full replacement cost of the Work and shall also cover portions of the Work located away 

from the site but intended for use at the site, and shall also cover portions of the Work in transit. 

The policy shall cover the cost of removing debris, including demolition as may be made legally 

necessary by the operation of any law, ordinance, or regulation. 
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d. Coverage shall be written to cover all risks of physical loss except those 

specifically excluded in the policy, and shall insure at least against the perils of fire, lightning, 

explosion, windstorm or hail, smoke, aircraft or vehicles, riot or civil commotion, theft, vandalism, 

malicious mischief, and collapse. 

e. Any deductible applicable to the Builder’s Risk insurance shall be paid by 

the Contractor. 

f. AUTHORITY and Contractor waive all rights against each other and each of their 

subcontractors, sub-subcontractors, officers, directors, agents, and employees as well as other Parties 

identified in the Contract Document, for recovery for damages caused by fire and other perils to the extent 

covered by builders risk insurance applicable to the Work. 

5. CONTRACTOR’s Pollution Liability insurance (“CPL”) naming the Indemnitees as 

additional insureds, with coverage of at least $5 million per occurrence and $10 million in the aggregate. 

The CPL shall provide coverage for cleanup costs, third-party bodily injury and property damage resulting 

from pollution conditions caused by contracting operations. The CPL shall also provide coverage for 

transportation and off-site disposal of materials, if any. The CPL shall not contain any provision or 

exclusion that would bar or otherwise preclude any insured or additional insured from making a claim that 

would otherwise be covered by the CPL. 

6. CONTRACTOR agrees to purchase and maintain throughout the term of this 

Agreement technology/professional liability insurance and data protection liability insurance covering 

liabilities for financial loss resulting or arising from acts, errors, or omissions, in connection with the 

services provided under this agreement as well as all CONTRACTOR costs, including damages it is 

obligated to pay AUTHORITY or any third party, which are associated with any Security Breach or loss 

of Personal Data, regardless of cause (including, without limitation, CONTRACTOR negligence or gross 

negligence and unlawful third party acts). Such insurance shall provide coverage with minimum limits of 

$5,000,000 per occurrence or claim and $5,000,000 aggregate. Such insurance must address all of the 

foregoing without limitation if caused by an employee of the CONTRACTOR or an independent contractor 
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working on behalf of the CONTRACTOR in performing services under this contract. Policy must provide 

coverage for wrongful acts, claims, and lawsuits anywhere in the world. Insurer must have a Best's rating 

of A- VII or better.  Any material change in the policy or cancellation must be reported to the AUTHORITY 

with not less than thirty (30) days prior written notice. CONTRACTOR shall provide a Certificate of 

Insurance in compliance with these requirements and AUTHORITY reserves the right to obtain a copy of 

the professional liability and data protection liability insurance policy. 

7. CONTRACTOR represents that this Agreement has been thoroughly reviewed by 

CONTRACTOR’s insurance agent(s)/broker(s), who have been instructed by CONTRACTOR to procure 

the insurance coverage required by this Agreement. Allocated Loss Expense must be in addition to all 

policy limits for coverage referenced above except in claims made policies. Not more frequently than 

once every five years. 

 Failure to provide evidence as required by this section will entitle, but not require, AUTHORITY 

to terminate this Agreement immediately. Acceptance of a certificate that does not comply with this 

section will not operate as a waiver of a CONTRACTOR’s obligations hereunder. 

 The fact that insurance (including, without limitation, self-insurance) is obtained by 

CONTRACTOR will not be deemed to release or diminish the liability of CONTRACTOR including, 

without limitation, liability under indemnity provisions of this Agreement. Damages recoverable by 

AUTHORITY will not be limited by the amount of the required insurance coverage. 

8. CONTRACTOR shall include in each subcontract the stipulation that subcontractors 

maintain insurance coverage in the same amounts required of CONTRACTOR herein and name the 

Indemnitees as additional insureds, unless CONTRACTOR's insurance covers such subcontractor's acts 

or omissions or AUTHORITY approves different coverage in its sole and absolute discretion. If requested 

by AUTHORITY, CONTRACTOR shall promptly provide certificates of insurance evidencing coverage 

for each subcontractor. 

B. Prior to commencement of any work at the project site, CONTRACTOR shall furnish to 

AUTHORITY's Contract Administrator a broker-issued insurance certificate, including an insurance 
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company issued endorsement showing the required insurance coverages and further providing that:  

1. The City of Santa Ana and AUTHORITY and their respective officers, directors, 

employees and agents, as well as those Parties identified in the Contract Documents must be named as 

additional insured on Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability certificates and on the 

insurance policy endorsement with respect to performance hereunder; and  

2. The coverage shall be primary and noncontributory as to any other insurance with 

respect to performance hereunder; and  

3. All certificates shall state “SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES 

BE CANCELLED OR MODIFIED BEFORE THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE 

DELIVERED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.”  An endorsement to the policy 

shall state Thirty (30) days prior written notice of cancellation or material change be given to 

AUTHORITY or Ten (10) days if for nonpayment of premiums. 

4. Failure of AUTHORITY to demand such certificate or other evidence of full 

compliance with these insurance requirements or failure of AUTHORITY to identify a deficiency from 

evidence that is provided shall not be construed as a waiver of CONTRACTOR 's obligation to maintain 

such insurance. 

5. AUTHORITY shall have the right, but not the obligation, to prohibit CONTRACTOR 

or any subcontractor from entering the Project site until such certificates or other evidence that 

insurance has been placed in complete compliance with these requirements is received and approved 

by AUTHORITY. 

6. Failure to maintain the insurance required shall constitute an event of default of this 

Agreement and shall allow AUTHORITY to terminate this Agreement at AUTHORITY’s option. If 

CONTRACTOR fails to maintain the insurance as set  forth  herein, AUTHORITY shall have the right, 

but not the obligation, to purchase said insurance at CONTRACTOR 's expense. 

7. CONTRACTOR shall provide certified copies of all insurance policies required 

above within 10 days of AUTHORITY’s written request for said copies. 
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C.    "Occurrence," as used herein, means any event or related exposure to conditions, which 

results in bodily injury or property damage. 

D. The Certificate of Insurance shall reference Agreement Number C-7-1904 and, the contract 

administrator, Bob Webb, Senior Contract Administrator. 

E. Upon AUTHORITY’s request, certified, true and exact copies of each of the insurance policies 

shall be provided to AUTHORITY. 

F. AUTHORITY shall notify CONTRACTOR in writing of any changes in the requirements to 

insurance required to be provided by CONTRACTOR.  Except as set forth in this Article, any additional 

cost from such change shall be paid by AUTHORITY and any reduction in cost shall reduce the contract 

price pursuant to a change order. 

G.    By requiring the insurance as set out in this section, AUTHORITY does not represent 

that coverage and limits will necessarily be adequate to protect CONTRACTOR, and such 

coverage and limits shall not be deemed as a limitation on CONTRACTOR 's liability under the 

indemnities provided to AUTHORITY in this Agreement, or any other provision of the Contract 

Documents. 

H.   The insurance requirements set in this section are independent from all other 

obligations of CONTRACTOR under this Agreement and apply whether or not required by any 

other provision of this Agreement. 

I.     All insurance required in this section shall be provided by insurance companies rated A-VII or 

better by A.M. Best and on forms acceptable to AUTHORITY. 

ARTICLE 12. BONDS 

A. By submitting Exhibit E, entitled “Performance Bond," and Exhibit F, entitled "Payment Bond," 

CONTRACTOR shall satisfy AUTHORITY's requirements that CONTRACTOR deposit with AUTHORITY 

bonds with values in the sum of 100 percent of this Agreement's price to cover CONTRACTOR's failure 

to fully perform hereunder and CONTRACTOR's failure to pay its labor, material or failure to comply with 
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Article 39 of this Agreement, in performing hereunder.  If the contract price is increased in connection 

with a Change Order, AUTHORITY may, in its sole discretion, require a corresponding increase in the 

amount of the Performance and Payment bonds or new bonds covering the Change Order work. 

B. Notwithstanding any other provision set forth in this Agreement, performance by a Surety or 

Guarantor of any obligations of CONTRACTOR shall not relieve CONTRACTOR of any of its obligations 

thereunder. 

ARTICLE 13. ORDER OF PRECEDENCE 

Conflicting provisions hereof, if any, shall prevail in the following descending order of precedence: 

(1) the provisions of this Agreement, including its Exhibits; (2) the provisions of IFB including all 

Addendums; (3) the bid submitted to AUTHORITY by CONTRACTOR in response to said IFB; and (4) 

any other documents, cited herein or incorporated by reference. In the event of conflicting provisions of 

“General Conditions” (Exhibit A), “Special Conditions” (Exhibit A-1), “Schedule of Quantities and Prices”, 

“Technical Specifications” (Exhibit B-series), "List of Drawings" (Exhibit C-series), and Exhibits I through 

R, the following descending order of precedence shall apply:  (a) “Special Conditions”, (b) “General 

Conditions”, (c) “Technical Specifications”, (d) “List of Drawings”, and (e) “Schedule of Quantities and 

Prices”, (f) Exhibits I-R.  In the event of a discrepancy between any drawings and the dimensions written 

thereon, the dimensions shall be taken as correct.  Detail drawings shall prevail over general drawings. 

ARTICLE 14. CHANGES 

A. By written notice or order, AUTHORITY may, from time to time, order work suspension and/or 

make any change in the general scope of this Agreement, including, but not limited to, changes in the 

drawings, specifications, schedules (either deceleratory or acceleratory) or any other particular of the 

specifications or provisions of this Agreement.  If any such work suspension or change causes an 

increase or decrease in the price or time required for performance, CONTRACTOR shall promptly notify 

AUTHORITY thereof and assert its claim for adjustment within ten (10) days after the change or work 

suspension is ordered, and an equitable adjustment shall be negotiated.  However, nothing in this clause 

shall excuse CONTRACTOR from proceeding immediately with the Agreement as changed.  Changes  
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will be made in accordance with the terms as set forth in Exhibit A, "General Conditions," CONTRACT 

MODIFICATIONS, DISPUTES, AND CLAIMS, by written Change Order. 

B. No claims by CONTRACTOR for equitable adjustment hereunder shall be allowed if asserted 

after final payment under this Agreement. 

C. Any work done beyond the technical provisions specified in this Agreement, or any extra work 

done without AUTHORITY's written authority, will be considered unauthorized work and will not be paid 

for.  Upon order of AUTHORITY's Engineer or its designee, unauthorized work shall be remedied, 

removed or replaced at CONTRACTOR's expense. 

ARTICLE 15. MODIFICATION PROPOSALS-PRICE BREAKDOWN 

CONTRACTOR, in connection with any proposal it makes for an agreement modification, shall 

furnish a price breakdown, itemized as required by AUTHORITY.  Unless otherwise directed, the 

breakdown shall be in sufficient detail to permit an analysis of all material, labor, equipment, subcontract 

and overhead costs, as well as profit, and shall cover all work involved in the modification, whether such 

work was deleted, added or changed.  Any amount claimed for subcontracts shall be supported by a 

similar price breakdown.  In addition, if the proposal includes a time extension, a justification therefore 

shall also be furnished.  The proposal, together with the price breakdown and time extension justification, 

shall be furnished by the date specified by AUTHORITY. 

ARTICLE 16. DISPUTES 

A. Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, when a dispute arises between 

CONTRACTOR and AUTHORITY, the project managers shall meet to resolve the issue.  If project 

managers do not reach a resolution, the dispute will be decided by AUTHORITY’s Director of Contracts 

Administration and Materials Management (CAMM), who shall reduce the decision to writing, and mail or 

otherwise furnish a copy thereof to CONTRACTOR.  The decision of the Director, CAMM, shall be the 

final and conclusive administrative decision. 

B. Pending final decision of a dispute hereunder, CONTRACTOR shall proceed diligently with 
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the performance of this Agreement and in accordance with the decision of AUTHORITY's Director, 

CAMM.  Nothing in this Agreement, however, shall be construed as making final the decision of any 

AUTHORITY official or representative on a question of law, which questions shall be settled in 

accordance with the laws of the State of California. 

ARTICLE 17. TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE 

A. AUTHORITY may terminate this Agreement for its convenience at any time in whole or in 

part, by giving CONTRACTOR written notice thereof.  AUTHORITY shall terminate by delivering to 

CONTRACTOR a written Notice of Termination for Convenience specifying the extent of termination and 

its effective date.  Upon termination, AUTHORITY shall pay CONTRACTOR its allowable costs incurred 

to date of that portion terminated.  The rights, duties and obligations of the parties shall be construed in 

accordance with the applicable provisions of CFR Title 48, Chapter 1, Part 49, of the Federal Acquisition 

Regulation (FAR) and specific subparts and other provisions thereof applicable to termination for 

convenience.  If AUTHORITY sees fit to terminate this Agreement for convenience, said notice shall be 

given to CONTRACTOR in accordance with the provisions of the FAR referenced above and Article 9, 

herein.  Upon receipt of said notification, CONTRACTOR shall immediately proceed with all obligations, 

regardless of any delay in determining or adjusting any amounts due under this Article, and agrees to 

comply with all applicable provisions of the FAR pertaining to termination for convenience. 

ARTICLE 18. TERMINATION FOR DEFAULT-DAMAGES FOR DELAY-TIME EXTENSIONS 

A. If CONTRACTOR refuses or fails to prosecute the work, or any separable part thereof, with 

such diligence as will ensure its completion within the time specified in this Agreement, or any extension 

thereof, or fails to complete said work within such time, AUTHORITY may, by written notice to 

CONTRACTOR that specifies the nature of the default, terminate CONTRACTOR's right to proceed with 

the work or such part of the work as to which there has been delay.  In such event, AUTHORITY may 

take over the work and prosecute the same to completion, by Agreement or otherwise, and may take 

possession of and utilize in completing the work such materials, appliances and plant as may be on the 

site of the work and necessary therefore.  Whether or not CONTRACTOR's right to proceed with the work  
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is terminated, it and its sureties shall be liable for any damage to AUTHORITY resulting from its refusal 

or failure to complete the work within the specified time. 

B. If AUTHORITY so terminates CONTRACTOR's right to proceed, the resulting damage will 

consist of such liquidated damages as set forth in the Article 38 in this Agreement entitled "Liquidated 

Damages," until such reasonable time as may be required for final completion of the work together with 

any increased costs occasioned AUTHORITY in completing the work.  If AUTHORITY does not so 

terminate CONTRACTOR's right to proceed, the resulting damage will consist of such liquidated 

damages until the work is completed or accepted. 

C. CONTRACTOR's right to proceed shall not be so terminated nor the CONTRACTOR charged 

with resulting damage if:  

1. The delay in completing the work arises from unforeseeable causes beyond the 

control and without the fault or negligence of CONTRACTOR, including but not restricted to, acts of God, 

acts of the public enemy, acts or omissions of AUTHORITY, acts of another CONTRACTOR in the 

performance of an Agreement with AUTHORITY, fires, floods, epidemics, quarantine restrictions, freight 

embargoes, unusually severe weather, or delays of subcontractors or suppliers arising from 

unforeseeable causes beyond the control and without the fault or negligence of both CONTRACTOR and 

such subcontractors or suppliers; and  

2. CONTRACTOR, within ten (10) days from the beginning of any such delay, notifies 

AUTHORITY in writing of the causes of delay.  AUTHORITY shall ascertain the facts and the extent of 

the delay and extend the time for completing the work when, in its judgment, the findings of fact justify 

such an extension, and its findings of fact shall be final and conclusive on the parties, subject only to 

appeal as provided in the "Disputes" clause of this Agreement.  Any such time extensions will not become 

effective until approved by AUTHORITY's Engineer in writing.   

3. Change orders covering time extensions approved by the Engineer will be issued to 

CONTRACTOR at periodic intervals during the Project. 
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D. If, after notice of termination of CONTRACTOR's right to proceed under the provisions of this 

clause, it is determined for any reason that CONTRACTOR was not in default under the provisions of this 

clause, or that the delay was excusable under the provisions of this clause, the rights and obligations of 

the parties shall be the same as if the notice of termination had been issued pursuant to Article 17, entitled 

"Termination for Convenience." 

E. The rights and remedies of AUTHORITY provided in this clause are in addition to any other 

rights and remedies provided by law or under this Agreement. 

F. As used in paragraph C.1 of this Article, the term "subcontractors or suppliers," means 

subcontractors or suppliers at any tier.  

ARTICLE 19. INDEMNIFICATION 

CONTRACTOR shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless AUTHORITY, the City of Santa Ana, 

the City of Garden Grove, or any other entity within whose jurisdiction or on whose property the work is 

being performed, and their agents, contractors and employees (collectively, the “Indemnities”) from any 

claims liability, loss, injury or damage (including attorney’s fees and reasonable costs of litigation or 

settlement) arising out of, or in connection with, the performance of this Agreement by the 

CONTRACTOR and/or its agents, employees or subcontractors (collectively referred to as 

“CONTRACTOR Entities”) excepting only loss, injury, or damage arising from the sole or active 

negligence or willful misconduct of the Indemnitees. Such indemnification shall include, but not be limited 

to: (1) any release or threatened release of hazardous materials brought onto site by, or attributable to, 

CONTRACTOR Entities’ negligence, willful misconduct or breach of applicable State or federal law; and 

(2) inverse condemnation, trespass, nuisance or similar taking or harm to real property by reason of any 

CONTRACTOR Entities’ acts, omissions, failures to comply with this Agreement or any permit issued by 

a government agency. 

The CONTRACTOR shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the Indemnities from any claim, 

liability, loss, injury or damage arising out of, or in connection with, the performance of the Agreement by 
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the CONTRACTOR and/or its agents, employees, or subcontractors, excepting only loss, injury, or 

damage arising from the sole or active negligence or willful misconduct of such Indemnitees, their agents, 

servants, or independent contractors who are directly responsible to the indemnitees, or for defects in 

design furnished by the AUTHORITY, as provided in Civil Code §2782 et seq.  It is the intent of the parties 

to this Agreement to provide the broadest possible coverage for the AUTHORITY and all Indemnitees.  

The CONTRACTOR shall reimburse the AUTHORITY and all Indemnitees for all costs, attorneys’ fees, 

expenses, and liabilities incurred with respect to any litigation in which the CONTRACTOR is obligated 

to indemnify, defend and hold harmless the AUTHORITY and other Indemnitees under this Agreement. 

ARTICLE 20. ASSIGNMENTS AND SUBCONTRACTS 

A. Neither this Agreement nor any interest herein nor claim hereunder may be assigned by 

CONTRACTOR either voluntarily or by operation of law.  CONTRACTOR shall not have the right to make 

any substitutions of any subcontractor listed in Exhibit D, entitled "List of Subcontractors," except in 

accordance with the provisions of the Subletting and Subcontractors Fair Practices Act, Public Contract 

Code section 4100 et. seq.  AUTHORITY's consent shall not be deemed to relieve CONTRACTOR of its 

obligation to fully comply with the requirements of this Agreement. 

B. CONTRACTOR shall be fully responsible to AUTHORITY for all acts and omissions of its own 

employees, and of subcontractors and their employees.  CONTRACTOR shall coordinate the work 

performed by subcontractor. 

C.  AUTHORITY shall have the right, but not the obligation, to review the form of subcontract 

used by CONTRACTOR for the project and to require modifications thereto to conform to the 

requirements set forth herein. 

ARTICLE 21. ACCESS TO RECORDS AND REPORTS 

CONTRACTOR shall provide AUTHORITY, the U.S. Department of Transportation (DOT), the 

Comptroller General of the United States, or other agents of AUTHORITY, such access to 

CONTRACTOR's accounting books, records, payroll documents and facilities of the CONTRACTOR 

which are directly pertinent to this Agreement for the purposes of examining, auditing and inspecting all 
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accounting books, records, work data, documents and activities related hereto.  CONTRACTOR shall 

maintain such books, records, data and documents in accordance with generally accepted accounting 

principles and shall clearly identify and make such items readily accessible to such parties during 

CONTRACTOR's performance hereunder and for a period of four (4) years from the date of final payment 

by AUTHORITY, except in the event of litigation or settlement of claims arising from the performance of 

this Agreement, in which case CONTRACTOR agrees to maintain same until AUTHORITY, or any of 

their duly authorized representatives, have disposed of all such litigation, appeals, claims or exceptions 

related thereto.  AUTHORITY’s right to audit books and records directly related to this Agreement shall 

also extend to all first-tier subcontractors.  CONTRACTOR shall permit any of the foregoing parties to 

reproduce documents by any means whatsoever or to copy excerpts and transcriptions as reasonably 

necessary. 

ARTICLE 22. CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

CONTRACTOR agrees to avoid organizational conflicts of interest.  An organizational conflict of 

interest means that due to other activities, relationships or contracts, the CONTRACTOR is unable, or 

potentially unable to render impartial assistance or advice to AUTHORITY; CONTRACTOR’s objectivity 

in performing the work identified in the Scope of Work is or might be otherwise impaired; or 

CONTRACTOR has an unfair competitive advantage.  CONTRACTOR is obligated to fully disclose to 

AUTHORITY in writing Conflict of Interest issues as soon as they are known to CONTRACTOR. All 

disclosures must be submitted in writing to AUTHORITY pursuant to the Notice provision herein.  This 

disclosure requirement is for the entire term of this Agreement. 

ARTICLE 23. CODE OF CONDUCT 

CONTRACTOR agrees to comply with AUTHORITY’s Code of Conduct as it relates to Third-

Party contracts which is hereby referenced and by this reference is incorporated herein.  CONTRACTOR 

agrees to include these requirements in all of its subcontracts. The Code of Conduct may be found at 

https://www.octa.net/pdf/code_attach.pdf.  

/ 
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ARTICLE 24. PROHIBITION ON PROVIDING ADVOCACY SERVICES 

CONTRACTOR and all subcontractors performing work under this Agreement, shall be 

prohibited from concurrently representing or lobbying for any other party competing for a contract with 

AUTHORITY, either as a prime contractor or subcontractor.  Failure to refrain from such representation 

may result in termination of this Agreement. 

ARTICLE 25. FEDERAL, STATE AND LOCAL LAWS 

CONTRACTOR warrants that in the performance of this Agreement it shall comply with all 

applicable federal, state and local laws, statutes and ordinances and all lawful orders, rules and 

regulations promulgated thereunder.  

ARTICLE 26. EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY 

A. Race, Color, Creed, National, Origin, Sex:  In connection with its performance under this 

Agreement, CONTRACTOR agrees that it shall not discriminate against any employee or applicant for 

employment because of race, religion, color, creed, sex, age or national origin.  CONTRACTOR shall 

take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during 

their employment, without regard to their race, religion, color, sex, age or national origin.  Such actions 

shall include, but not be limited to, the following: employment, upgrading, demotion or transfer; 

recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; 

and selection for training, including apprenticeship.  CONTRACTOR agrees to abide by Title VII of the 

Civil Rights Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. Section 2000(e), Federal transit laws at 49 U.S.C. Section 5332, 

the applicable equal employment opportunity requirements of U.S. Department of Labor regulations, 

“Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs, Equal Employment Opportunity, Department of 

Labor,” 41 CFR Parts 60, et seq. (which implement Executive Order No. 11246, as amended), and with 

any applicable Federal statutes, executive orders, regulations, and Federal policies. 

B. Age:  In accordance with Section 4 of the Age Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967, as 

amended, 29 U.S.C. Sections 623 and Federal transit law at 49 U.S.C. Section 5332, CONTRACTOR 
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agrees to refrain from discrimination against present and prospective employees for reason of age.  

CONTRACTOR agrees to comply with implementing requirements FTA may issue. 

C. Disabilities:  In accordance with section 102 of the Americans with Disabilities Act, as 

amended, 42 U.S.C. Section 12112, CONTRACTOR agrees to comply with the requirements of U.S. 

Equal Employment Opportunity Commission, "Regulations to Implement the Equal Employment 

Provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act," 29 CFR Part 1630, pertaining to employment of 

persons with disabilities.  CONTRACTOR agrees to comply with implementing requirements FTA may 

issue. 

D. CONTRACTOR agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract. 

ARTICLE 27. FINISHED AND PRELIMINARY DATA 

A. All of CONTRACTOR’s finished technical data, including but not limited to illustrations, 

photographs, tapes, software, software design documents, including without limitation source code, 

binary code, all media, technical documentation and user documentation, photoprints and other graphic 

information required to be furnished under this Agreement, shall be AUTHORITY’s property upon 

payment and shall be furnished with unlimited rights and, as such, shall be free from proprietary restriction 

except as elsewhere authorized in this Agreement.  CONTRACTOR further agrees that it shall have no 

interest or claim to such finished, AUTHORITY-owned, technical data; furthermore, said data is subject 

to the provisions of the Freedom of Information Act, 5 U.S.C. Section 552.   

B. It is expressly understood that any title to preliminary technical data is not passed to 

AUTHORITY but is retained by CONTRACTOR.  Preliminary data includes roughs, visualizations, 

software design documents, layouts and comprehensives prepared by CONTRACTOR solely for the 

purpose of demonstrating an idea or message for AUTHORITY’s acceptance before approval is given 

for preparation of finished artwork.  Preliminary data title and right thereto shall be made available to 

AUTHORITY if CONTRACTOR causes AUTHORITY to exercise Article 17, and a price shall be 

negotiated for all preliminary data. 
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ARTICLE 28. CIVIL RIGHTS ASSURANCE 

During the performance of this Agreement, CONTRACTOR, for itself, its assignees and 

successors in interest agree as follows: 

A. Compliance with Regulations:  CONTRACTOR shall comply with the Regulations relative to 

nondiscrimination in federally assisted programs of the Department of Transportation (hereinafter, “DOT”) 

Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 21, as they may be amended from time to time, (hereinafter 

referred to as the Regulations), which are herein incorporated by reference and made a part of this 

Agreement. 

B. Nondiscrimination:  CONTRACTOR, with regard to the work performed by it during the 

Agreement, shall not discriminate on the grounds of race, color, national origin, sex, age, or disability in 

the selection and retention of subcontractors, including procurements of materials and leases of 

equipment.  CONTRACTOR shall not participate either directly or indirectly in the discrimination 

prohibited by Section 21.5 of the Regulations, including employment practices when the Agreement 

covers a program set forth in Appendix B of the Regulations.  In determining the types of property or 

services to acquire, no person in the United States shall, on the grounds of race, color, creed, national 

origin, sex, or age be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or otherwise be subjected 

to discrimination under any program or activity receiving Federal financial assistance in violation of Title 

VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, 42 U.S.C. Sections 2000(d) et seq., DOT regulations, 

“Nondiscrimination in Federally Assisted Programs of the Department of Transportation—Effectuation of 

Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964,” 49 CFR Part 21, section 303 of the Age Discrimination Act of 

1975, as amended, 42 U.S.C. Section 6102, and Federal transit law at 49 U.S.C. Section 5332.  In 

addition, FTA Circular 4702.1B, “Title VI Requirements and Guidelines for Federal Transit Administration 

Recipients,” 10-1-12, provides FTA guidance and instructions for implementing DOT’s Title 

VI regulations.  CONTRACTOR agrees to comply with applicable Federal implementing regulations and 

other implementing regulations FTA may issue. 
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C. The Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (“ADA”), as amended, 42 U.S.C. Sections 12101 

et seq., prohibits discrimination against qualified individuals with disabilities in all programs, activities, and 

services of public entities, as well as imposes specific requirements on public and private providers of 

transportation. 

D. Solicitations for Subcontracts, Including Procurement of Materials and Equipment:  In all 

solicitations either by competitive bidding or negotiation made by CONTRACTOR for work to be 

performed under a subcontract, including procurements of materials or leases of equipment, each 

potential subcontractor or supplier shall be notified by CONTRACTOR of CONTRACTOR’s obligations 

under this Agreement and the Regulations relative to nondiscrimination on the grounds of race, color, 

national origin, sex, age, or disability. 

E. Information and Reports:  CONTRACTOR shall provide all information and reports required 

by the Regulations or directives issued pursuant thereto, and shall permit access to its books, records, 

accounts, other sources of information and its facilities as may be determined by AUTHORITY to be 

pertinent to ascertain compliance with such Regulations, orders and instructions.  Where any information 

required of CONTRACTOR is in the exclusive possession of another who fails or refuses to furnish this 

information, CONTRACTOR shall so certify to AUTHORITY as appropriate, and shall set forth what 

efforts it has made to obtain the information. 

F. Sanctions for Noncompliance:  In the event of CONTRACTOR’s noncompliance with 

nondiscrimination provisions of this Agreement, AUTHORITY shall impose Agreement sanctions as it 

may determine to be appropriate, including, but not limited to: 

1. Withholding of payments to CONTRACTOR under the Agreement until 

CONTRACTOR complies; and/or cancellation, termination, or suspension of the Agreement, in whole or 

in part. 

G. Incorporation of Provisions:  CONTRACTOR shall include the provisions of paragraphs (A) 

through (G) in every subcontract, including procurements of materials and leases of equipment, unless 
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exempt by the Regulations, or directives issued pursuant thereto.  CONTRACTOR shall take such action 

with respect to any subcontract or procurement as AUTHORITY may direct as a means of enforcing such 

provisions including sanctions for noncompliance.  Provided, however, that in the event CONTRACTOR 

becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a subcontractor or supplier as a result of such 

direction, CONTRACTOR may request AUTHORITY to enter into such litigation to protect the interests 

of AUTHORITY, and, in addition, CONTRACTOR may request the United States to enter into such 

litigation to protect the interests of the United States. 

ARTICLE 29. DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISES 

At the time of contract execution, CONTRACTOR committed to utilize Disadvantaged Business 

Enterprise(s) (“DBE”) in the performance of this DOT-assisted contract, and further agrees to ensure that 

any DBE subcontractor listed on the “DBE Participation Commitment Form Attachment A-1,” will perform 

work and/or supply materials in accordance with original commitments, unless otherwise directed and/or 

approved by AUTHORITY prior to CONTRACTOR effectuating any changes to its race-conscious DBE 

participation commitment(s).  CONTRACTOR shall comply with all the requirements set forth in 

Attachment A titled, “DBE CONTRACT PROVISIONS FOR FTA-ASSISTED CONTRACTS WITH 

DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (DBE) GOALS, ” which is attached to and, by this 

reference, incorporated in and made a part of this Agreement. 

ARTICLE 30. PRIVACY ACT  

A. CONTRACTOR shall comply with, and assures the compliance of its employees with, the 

information restrictions and other applicable requirements of the Privacy Act of 1974, 5 U.S.C. Section 

552(a).  Among other things, CONTRACTOR agrees to obtain the express consent of the Federal 

Government before CONTRACTOR or its employees operate a system of records on behalf of the 

Federal Government.  CONTRACTOR understands the requirements of the Privacy Act, including the 

civil and criminal penalties for violation of that Act, apply to those individuals involved, and that failure to 

comply with the terms of the Privacy Act may result in termination of the underlying Agreement.   

B. CONTRACTOR agrees to include this requirement in all of its subcontracts. 
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ARTICLE 31. OWNERSHIP OF REPORTS AND DOCUMENTS 

A. The originals of all letters, documents, reports and other products and data produced under 

this Agreement shall be delivered to, and become the property of AUTHORITY.  Copies may be made 

for CONTRACTOR’S records but shall not be furnished to others without written authorization from 

AUTHORITY.  Such deliverables shall be deemed works made for hire and all rights in copyright therein 

shall be retained by AUTHORITY. 

B. All ideas, memoranda, specifications, plans, manufacturing, procedures, drawings, 

descriptions, and all other written information submitted to CONTRACTOR in connection with the 

performance of this Agreement shall not, without prior written approval of AUTHORITY, be used for any 

purposes other than the performance under this Agreement, nor be disclosed to an entity not connected 

with the performance of the project.  CONTRACTOR shall comply with AUTHORITY’s policies regarding 

such material.  Nothing furnished to CONTRACTOR, which is otherwise known to CONTRACTOR or is 

or becomes generally known to the related industry shall be deemed confidential.  CONTRACTOR shall 

not use AUTHORITY’s name, photographs of the project, or any other publicity pertaining to the project 

in any professional publication, magazine, trade paper, newspaper, seminar or other medium without the 

express written consent of AUTHORITY. 

C. No copies, sketches, computer graphics or graphs, including graphic artwork, are to be 

released by CONTRACTOR to any other person or agency except after prior written approval by 

AUTHORITY, except as necessary for the performance of services under this Agreement.  All press 

releases, including graphic display information to be published in newspapers, magazines, etc., are to be 

handled only by AUTHORITY unless otherwise agreed to by CONTRACTOR and AUTHORITY. 

ARTICLE 32. INCORPORATION OF FTA TERMS 

All contractual provisions required by DOT, whether or not expressly set forth in this document, 

as set forth in FTA Circular 4220.1F are hereby incorporated by reference.  Anything to the contrary 

herein notwithstanding, all FTA mandated terms shall be deemed to control in the event of a conflict with 
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other provisions contained in this Agreement.  CONTRACTOR shall not perform any act, fail to perform 

any act, or refuse to comply with any AUTHORITY requests, which would cause AUTHORITY to be in 

violation of the FTA terms and conditions. 

ARTICLE 33. FEDERAL CHANGES  

CONTRACTOR shall at all times comply with all applicable FTA regulations, policies, procedures 

and directives, including without limitation those listed directly or by reference in the agreement between 

AUTHORITY and FTA, as they may be amended or promulgated from time to time during this Agreement.  

CONTRACTOR’s failure to comply shall constitute a material breach of contract. 

ARTICLE 34. NO GOVERNMENT OBLIGATION TO THIRD PARTIES 

AUTHORITY and CONTRACTOR acknowledge and agree that, notwithstanding any 

concurrence by the Federal Government in or approval of the solicitation or award of the underlying 

Agreement, absent the express written consent by the Federal Government, the Federal Government is 

not a party to this Agreement and shall not be subject to any obligations or liabilities to AUTHORITY, 

CONTRACTOR, or any other party (whether or not a party to this Agreement) pertaining to any matter 

resulting from the underlying Agreement.  CONTRACTOR agrees to include this requirement in all of its 

subcontracts. 

ARTICLE 35. PROGRAM FRAUD AND FALSE OR FRAUDULENT STATEMENTS AND 

ACTS 

A. CONTRACTOR acknowledges that the provisions of the Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act 

of 1986, as amended, 31 U.S.C. Sections 3801 et seq. and U.S. DOT regulations, “Program Fraud Civil 

Remedies,” 49 C.F.R. Part 31, apply to its actions pertaining to this project.  By execution of this  

Agreement, CONTRACTOR certifies or affirms the truthfulness and accuracy of any statement it has 

made, it makes, it may make, or causes to be made, pertaining to the underlying Agreement of the FTA 

assisted project for which this Agreement's work is being performed.  In addition to other penalties that 

may be applicable, CONTRACTOR acknowledges that if it makes, or causes to be made, a false, 

fictitious, or fraudulent claim, statement, submission, or certification, the Federal Government reserves  
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the right to impose penalties of the Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act of 1986 on the CONTRACTOR to 

the extent the Federal Government deems appropriate. 

B. CONTRACTOR also acknowledges that if CONTRACTOR makes, or causes to be made, a 

false, fictitious, or fraudulent claim, statement, submission, or certification to the Federal Government 

under an agreement connected with a project that is financed in whole or part with Federal assistance 

awarded by FTA under the authority of 49 C.F.R. Section 5307 et seq., the Government reserves the 

right, pursuant to 49 C.F.R. Section 5323(l)(1), to impose the penalties of 18 U.S.C. Section 1001 on the 

CONTRACTOR, to the extent the Federal Government deems appropriate.  CONTRACTOR agrees to 

include this requirement in all of its subcontracts. 

ARTICLE 36. CONVICT LABOR 

In connection with the performance of work under this Agreement, CONTRACTOR agrees not to 

employ any person undergoing sentence of imprisonment at hard labor.  This does not include convicts 

who are on parole or probation. 

ARTICLE 37. NOTICE OF LABOR DISPUTE 

Whenever CONTRACTOR has knowledge that any actual or potential labor dispute may delay 

its performance under this Agreement, CONTRACTOR shall immediately notify and submit all relevant 

information to AUTHORITY.  CONTRACTOR shall insert the substance of this entire clause in any 

subcontract hereunder as to which a labor dispute may delay performance under this Agreement.  

However, any subcontractor need give notice and information only to its next higher-tier subcontractor. 

ARTICLE 38. LIQUIDATED DAMAGES 

If CONTRACTOR fails to complete the work within the time specified in Article 4 of this 

Agreement, or any AUTHORITY authorized extension thereof, or within the time of performance 

requirements specified in Exhibit A-1 Special Conditions, the actual damage to AUTHORITY for the delay 

will be difficult or impossible to determine.  Therefore, in lieu of actual damages, CONTRACTOR shall 

pay to AUTHORITY as fixed, agreed-to liquidated damages for each day of delay the sum of Sixty 
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Thousand Dollars ($60,000) as stipulated in the Special Conditions Exhibit A-1.  Alternatively, 

AUTHORITY may terminate this Agreement in whole or in part as provided in Article 18 of this Agreement, 

and in that event, CONTRACTOR shall be liable, in addition to the excess costs provided in Article 18 of 

this Agreement, for such liquidated damages accruing until such time as AUTHORITY may reasonably 

obtain delivery or performance of similar supplies or services from a different source.  CONTRACTOR 

shall not be charged with liquidated damages when the delay is determined to be excusable in 

accordance with Article 69 hereunder.  AUTHORITY shall ascertain the facts and extent of the delay and 

shall extended the time for performance of the Agreement when in its judgment, the findings of fact justify 

an extension.  

ARTICLE 39. WARRANTY 

A. In addition to any other warranties set forth in this Agreement, whether expressed or implied, 

CONTRACTOR warrants that (1) all work performed and all equipment and material provided under this 

Agreement by CONTRACTOR or any of its subcontractors or suppliers at any tier, conforms to the 

requirements herein and is free of any defects; (2) equipment furnished by CONTRACTOR or any of its 

subcontractors or suppliers at any tier, shall be of modern design, in good working condition and fit for 

use of its intended purpose; and (3) all work shall meet all of the requirements of this Agreement.  Such 

warranty shall continue for a period of one (1) year from AUTHORITY's acceptance as shown in Article 

42 hereunder unless specified for a longer period elsewhere.  Under this warranty, CONTRACTOR 

shall remedy at its own expense any such failure to conform or correct any such defect.  In addition, 

CONTRACTOR shall remedy at its own expense any damage to AUTHORITY owned or controlled real 

or personal property, when that damage is the result of CONTRACTOR's failure to conform to Agreement 

requirements or any such defect of equipment, material, workmanship or design.  CONTRACTOR shall 

also restore any work damaged in fulfilling the terms of this clause.  CONTRACTOR's warranty with 

respect to work repaired or replaced hereunder will run for one year from the date of such repair or 

replacement. An amount equal to one-half (1/2) of one (1) percent of the contract price shall be retained 

by AUTHORITY for a period of one year from AUTHORITY’s acceptance as shown in Article 42, or longer 
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if any other warranties set forth in Agreement extend beyond one year for the purpose of assuring the 

performance of warranty work.  At the AUTHORITY’s sole discretion the one-half (1/2) percent retainage 

for warranty work may be held up to one year from the date of any repair or replacement work performed 

under the warranty provisions. 

B. AUTHORITY shall notify CONTRACTOR in writing within a reasonable time after the 

discovery of any failure, defect or damage.  CONTRACTOR has seven days from receipt of notice from 

AUTHORITY to respond to AUTHORITY’s notification and indicate how CONTRACTOR will remedy the 

failure, defect, or damage.  If AUTHORITY is not satisfied with the remedy proposed by CONTRACTOR, 

CONTRACTOR and AUTHORITY shall meet and mutually agree when and how CONTRACTOR shall 

remedy such violation.  In the case of an emergency requiring immediate corrective action, 

CONTRACTOR shall implement such action, as it deems necessary and shall notify AUTHORITY in 

writing of the urgency of a decision and action taken.  CONTRACTOR and AUTHORITY shall, then 

promptly meet in order to agree on a remedy.  If CONTRACTOR and AUTHORITY fail to agree on the 

remedy within a five-day period, AUTHORITY, after notice to CONTRACTOR, shall have the right to 

perform or have performed by third parties the necessary remedy, and the costs thereof shall be borne 

by CONTRACTOR. 

C. Should CONTRACTOR fail to remedy any failure, defect or damage described in paragraph 

A above within a reasonable time after receipt of notice thereof, AUTHORITY shall have the right to 

replace, repair or otherwise remedy such failure, defect or damage at CONTRACTOR's expense and 

CONTRACTOR shall be liable for all damages, including, but not limited to, actual or consequential 

damages and cost of any suit to enforce AUTHORITY's rights hereunder, including reasonable attorney's 

fees. The amount of the damages described herein is not limited by the retainage amount described in 

the preceding paragraph A.  

D. In addition to the other rights and remedies provided by this clause, all subcontractors, 

manufacturers, and suppliers' warranties, expressed or implied, respecting any work and materials 

furnished hereunder, shall, at the direction of AUTHORITY, be enforced by CONTRACTOR for the benefit 
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of AUTHORITY.  In such case if CONTRACTOR's warranty under paragraph A above has expired, any 

suit directed by AUTHORITY shall be at the expense of AUTHORITY.  CONTRACTOR shall obtain any 

warranties, which the subcontractors, manufacturers or suppliers would give in normal commercial 

practice and shall cause all subcontractor or supplier warranties to be extended to AUTHORITY. 

E. If directed by AUTHORITY, CONTRACTOR shall require any such warranties to be executed 

in writing to AUTHORITY. 

F. Notwithstanding any other provision of this clause, unless such a defect is caused by the 

negligence of CONTRACTOR or its subcontractors or suppliers at any tier, CONTRACTOR shall not be 

liable for the repair of any defects of material or design furnished by AUTHORITY nor for the repair of any 

damage which results from any such defect in AUTHORITY furnished material or design. 

G. The warranty specified herein shall not limit AUTHORITY's rights under the Inspection and 

Acceptance clause of this Agreement with respect to latent defects, gross mistakes or fraud. 

H. Defects in design or manufacture of equipment specified by AUTHORITY on a "brand name 

and model" basis shall not be included in this warranty.  CONTRACTOR shall require any subcontractors, 

manufacturers or suppliers thereof to execute their warranties in writing directly to AUTHORITY. 

I. Any disagreement between AUTHORITY and CONTRACTOR relating to this section shall be 

subject to dispute resolution in accordance with Article 16. 

ARTICLE 40. GENERAL WAGE RATES AND DAVIS-BACON AND COPELAND ANTI-

KICKBACK ACTS 

A. Minimum Wages:  

1. All laborers and mechanics employed by CONTRACTOR or subcontractor at any tier 

working on the construction site (or under the United States Housing Act of 1937 or under the Housing 

Act of 1949 in the construction or development of the project), will be paid unconditionally and not less 

often than once a week and without any subsequent deduction or rebate on any account (except such 

payroll deductions as are permitted or required by federal, state or local law, regulation, ordinance, or 

regulations issued by the Secretary of Labor under the Copeland Act (29 CFR Part 3)), the full amounts 
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due at the time of payment computed at wage rates and per diem rate not less than the aggregate of the 

highest of the two basic hourly rates and rates of payments, contributions or costs for any fringe benefits 

contained in the current general prevailing wage rate(s) and per diem rate(s), established by the Director 

of the Department of Industrial Relations of the State of California, (as set forth in the Labor Code of the 

State of California, commencing at Section 1770, et. seq.), or as established by the Secretary of Labor 

(as set forth in Davis-Bacon Act, 40 U.S.C. Sections 3141, et. seq. as supplemented by the Department 

of Labor regulations 29 CFR Part 5, and 18 U.S.C. Section 874), regardless of any contractual 

relationship which may be alleged to exist between CONTRACTOR or subcontractor and their respective 

mechanics, laborers, journeypersons, workpersons, craftspersons or apprentices.  Copies of the current 

General Prevailing Wage Determinations and Per Diem Rates are on file at AUTHORITY's offices and 

will be made available to CONTRACTOR upon request. CONTRACTOR shall post a copy thereof at each 

job site at which work hereunder is performed. 

2. Contributions made or costs reasonably anticipated for bona fide fringe benefits under 

section 1(b)(2) of the Davis-Bacon Act on behalf of laborers or mechanics are considered wages paid to 

such laborers or mechanics, subject to the provisions of paragraph (A)(5) of this section; also, regular 

contributions made or costs incurred for more than a weekly period (but not less often than quarterly) 

under plans, funds, or programs which cover the particular weekly period, are deemed to be constructively 

made or incurred during such weekly period.  Such laborers and mechanics shall be paid the appropriate 

wage rate and fringe benefits on the wage determination for the classification of work actually performed, 

without regard to skill, except as provided in 29 CFR Part 5.5(a)(4).  Laborers or mechanics performing 

work in more than one classification may be compensated at the rate specified for each classification for 

the time actually worked therein: provided, that the employer's payroll records accurately set forth the 

time spent in each classification in which work is performed.  The wage determination (including any 

additional classifications and wage rates conformed under paragraph (A)(2) of this section) and the Davis-

Bacon poster (WH-1321) shall be posted at all times by CONTRACTOR and subcontractors at the site 

of the work in a prominent and accessible place where it can be easily seen by the workers. 
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3.  

a) AUTHORITY shall require that any class of laborers or mechanics, 

including helpers, which is not listed in the wage determination and which 

is to be employed under the contract shall be classified in conformance 

with the wage determination. AUTHORITY shall approve an additional 

classification and wage rate and fringe benefits therefore only when the 

following criteria have been met:  

1. Except with respect to helpers as defined as 29 CFR 5.2(n)(4), the work 

to be performed by the classification requested is not performed by a 

classification in the wage determination; and 

2. The classification is utilized in the area by the construction industry; and  

3. The proposed wage rate, including any bona fide fringe benefits, bears a 

reasonable relationship to the wage rates contained in the wage 

determination; and 

4. With respect to helpers as defined in 29 CFR 5.2(n)(4), such a 

classification prevails in the area in which the work is performed. 

b) If CONTRACTOR and laborers and mechanics to be employed in the 

classification (if known), or their representatives, and AUTHORITY agree 

on the classification and wage rate (including the amount designated for 

fringe benefits where appropriate), a report of the action taken shall be 

sent by AUTHORITY to the Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division, 

Employment Standards Administration, U.S. Department of Labor, 

Washington, DC 20210.  The Administrator, or an authorized 

representative, will approve, modify, or disapprove every additional 

classification action within 30 days of receipt and so advise AUTHORITY 
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or will notify AUTHORITY within the 30-day period that additional time is 

necessary. 

c) In the event CONTRACTOR, laborers or mechanics to be employed in the 

classification or their representatives, and AUTHORITY do not agree on 

the proposed classification and wage rate (including the amount 

designated for fringe benefits, where appropriate), AUTHORITY shall refer 

the questions, including the views of all interested parties and the 

recommendation of the contracting officer, to the Administrator for 

determination.  The Administrator, or an authorized representative, will 

issue a determination within 30 days of receipt and so advise AUTHORITY 

or will notify AUTHORITY within the 30- day period that additional time is 

necessary. 

d) The wage rate (including fringe benefits where appropriate) determined 

pursuant to paragraphs (A)(3) (B) or (C) of this section, shall be paid to all 

workers performing work in the classification under this contract from the 

first day on which work is performed in the classification. 

4. Whenever the minimum wage rate prescribed in this Agreement for a class of laborers 

or mechanics includes a fringe benefit which is not expressed as an hourly rate, CONTRACTOR shall 

either pay the benefit as stated in the wage determination or shall pay another bona fide fringe benefit or 

an hourly cash equivalent thereof. 

5. If CONTRACTOR does not make payments to a trustee or other third person, 

CONTRACTOR may consider as part of the wages of any laborer or mechanic the amount of any costs 

reasonably anticipated in providing bona fide fringe benefits under a plan or program, provided, that the 

Secretary of Labor has found, upon the written request of the CONTRACTOR, that the applicable 

standards of the Davis-Bacon Act have been met.  The Secretary of Labor may require CONTRACTOR 

to set aside in a separate account assets for the meeting of obligations under the plan or program. 
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6.  

a) AUTHORITY shall require that any class of laborers or mechanics which 

is not listed in the wage determination and which is to be employed under 

this Agreement shall be classified in conformance with the wage 

determination.  AUTHORITY shall approve an additional classification and 

wage rate and fringe benefits therefor only when the following criteria have 

been met: 

1. The work to be performed by the classification requested is not performed 

by a classification in the wage determination; and 

2. The classification is utilized in the area by the construction industry; and 

3. The proposed wage rate, including any bona fide fringe benefits, bears a 

reasonable relationship to the wage rates contained in the wage 

determination. 

b) If CONTRACTOR and the laborers and mechanics to be employed in the 

classification (if known), or their representatives, and AUTHORITY agree 

on the classification and wage rate (including the amount designated for 

fringe benefits where appropriate), a report of the action taken shall be 

sent by AUTHORITY to the Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division, 

Employment Standards Administration, Washington, DC 20210.  The 

Administrator, or an authorized representative, will approve, modify, or 

disapprove every additional classification action within 30 days of receipt 

and so advise AUTHORITY or will notify AUTHORITY within the 30-day 

period that additional time is necessary. 

c) In the event CONTRACTOR, laborers or mechanics to be employed in the 

classification or their representatives, and AUTHORITY do not agree on 
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the proposed classification and wage rate (including the amount 

designated for fringe benefits, where appropriate), AUTHORITY shall refer 

the questions, including the views of all interested parties and the 

recommendation of the contracting officer, to the Administrator for 

determination.  The Administrator, or an authorized representative, will 

issue a determination with 30 days of receipt and so advise AUTHORITY 

or will notify AUTHORITY within the 30-day period that additional time is 

necessary. 

d) The wage rate (including fringe benefits where appropriate) determined 

pursuant to paragraphs (A)(6) (B) or (C) of this section, shall be paid to all 

workers performing work in the classification under this contract from the 

first day on which work is performed in the classification. 

B. Withholding:  AUTHORITY shall upon its own action or upon written request of an authorized 

representative of the Department of Labor withhold or cause to be withheld from CONTRACTOR under 

this Agreement or any other Federal contract with CONTRACTOR, or any other federally-assisted 

contract subject to Davis-Bacon prevailing wage requirements, which is held by CONTRACTOR, so much 

of the accrued payments or advances as may be considered necessary to pay laborers and mechanics, 

including apprentices, trainees, and helpers, employed by CONTRACTOR or any subcontractor the full 

amount of wages required by  this Agreement.  In the event of failure to pay any laborer or mechanic, 

including any apprentice, trainee, or helper, employed or working on the site of the work (or under the 

United States Housing Act of 1937 or under the Housing Act of 1949 in the construction or development 

of the project), all or part of the wages required by this Agreement, AUTHORITY may, after written notice 

to CONTRACTOR, sponsor, applicant, or owner, take such action as may be necessary to cause the 

suspension of any further payment, advance, or guarantee of funds until such violations have ceased. 

C. Payrolls and basic records:  

1. Payrolls and basic records relating thereto shall be maintained by CONTRACTOR 
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during the course of the work and preserved for a period of three years thereafter for all laborers and 

mechanics working at the site of the work (or under the United States Housing Act of 1937, or under the 

Housing Act of 1949, in the construction or development of the project).  Such records shall contain the 

name, address, and social security number of each such worker, his or her correct classification, hourly 

rates of wages paid (including rates of contributions or costs anticipated for bona fide fringe benefits or 

cash equivalents thereof of the types described in Section 1(b)(2)(B) of the Davis-Bacon Act), daily and 

weekly number of hours worked, deductions made and actual wages paid.  Whenever the Secretary of 

Labor has found under 29 CFR Section 5.5(a)(1)(iv) that the wages of any laborer or mechanic include 

the amount of any costs reasonably anticipated in providing benefits under a plan or program described 

in Section 1(b)(2)(B) of the Davis-Bacon Act, CONTRACTOR shall maintain records which show that the 

commitment to provide such benefits is enforceable, that the plan or program is financially responsible, 

and that the plan or program has been communicated in writing to the laborers or mechanics affected, 

and records which show the costs anticipated or the actual cost incurred in providing such benefits. 

Contractors employing apprentices or trainees under approved programs shall maintain written evidence 

of the registration of apprenticeship programs and certification of trainee programs, the registration of the 

apprentices and trainees, and the ratios and wage rates prescribed in the applicable programs.  

2.  

a) CONTRACTOR shall submit weekly for each week in which any contract 

work is performed a copy of all payrolls to AUTHORITY for transmission 

to the Federal Transit Administration.  The payrolls submitted shall set out 

accurately and completely all of the information required to be maintained 

under section 5.5(a)(3)(i) of Regulations, 29 CFR Part 5.  This information 

may be submitted in any form desired.  Optional Form WH-347 is available 

for this purpose and may be purchased from the Superintendent of 

Documents (Federal Stock Number 029-005-00014-1), U.S. Government 

Printing Office, Washington, DC 20402.  CONTRACTOR is responsible 
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for the submission of copies of payrolls by all subcontractors.  

b) Each payroll submitted shall be accompanied by a "Statement of 

Compliance," signed by CONTRACTOR or subcontractor or his or her 

agent who pays or supervises the payment of the persons employed under 

this Agreement and shall certify the following: under section 5.5(a)(3)(i) of 

Regulations, 29 CFR Part 5 and that such information is correct and 

complete; 

1. That the payroll for the payroll period contains the information required to 

be maintained under Section 5.5(a)(3)(i) of Regulations, 29 CFR Part 5 

and that such information is correct and complete; 

2. That each laborer or mechanic (including each helper, apprentice, and 

trainee) employed on Agreement during the payroll period has been paid 

the full weekly wages earned, without rebate, either directly or indirectly, 

and that no deductions have been made either directly or indirectly from 

the full wages earned, other than permissible deductions as set forth in 

Regulations, 29 CFR Part 3; 

3. That each laborer or mechanic has been paid not less than the applicable 

wage rates and fringe benefits or cash equivalents for the classification of 

work performed, as specified in the applicable wage determination 

incorporated into the contract. 

c) The weekly submission of a properly executed certification set forth on the 

reverse side of Optional Form WH-347 shall satisfy the requirement for 

submission of the "Statement of Compliance" required by paragraph 

(C)(2)(b) of this section. 

d) The falsification of any of the above certifications may subject 

CONTRACTOR or subcontractor to civil or criminal prosecution under 
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section 1001 of title 18 and Section 231 of title 31 of the United States 

Code. 

3. CONTRACTOR or subcontractor shall make the records required under Section 

5.5(a)(3)(i) of Regulations, 29 CFR Part 5 available for inspection, copying, or transcription by authorized 

representatives of the Federal Transit Administration or the Department of Labor, and shall permit such 

representatives to interview employees during working hours on the job.  If CONTRACTOR or 

subcontractor fails to submit the required records or to make them available, the Federal agency may, 

after written notice to CONTRACTOR, sponsor, applicant, or owner, take such action as may be 

necessary to cause the suspension of any further payment, advance, or guarantee of funds.  

Furthermore, failure to submit the required records upon request or to make such records available may 

be grounds for debarment action pursuant to 29 CFR Part 5.12. 

D. Apprentices and trainees:  

1. Apprentices will be permitted to work at less than the predetermined rate for the work 

they performed when they are employed pursuant to and individually registered in a bona fide 

apprenticeship program registered with the U.S. Department of Labor, Employment and Training 

Administration, Bureau of Apprenticeship and Training, or with a State Apprenticeship Agency recognized 

by the Bureau, or if a person is employed in his or her first 90 days of probationary employment as an 

apprentice in such an apprenticeship program, who is not individually registered in the program, but who 

has been certified by the Bureau of Apprenticeship and Training or a State Apprenticeship Agency (where 

appropriate) to be eligible for probationary employment as an apprentice.  The allowable ratio of 

apprentices to journeymen on the job site in any craft classification shall not be greater than the ratio 

permitted to the CONTRACTOR as to the entire work force under the registered program.  Any worker 

listed on a payroll at an apprentice wage rate, who is not registered or otherwise employed as stated 

above, shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the classification 

of work actually performed.  In addition, any apprentice performing work on the job site in excess of the 

ratio permitted under the registered program shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the 
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wage determination for the work actually performed.  Where CONTRACTOR is performing construction 

on a project in a locality other than that in which its program is registered, the ratios and wage rates 

(expressed in percentages of the journeyman's hourly rate) specified in the CONTRACTOR’s or 

subcontractor's registered program shall be observed. Every apprentice must be paid at not less than the 

rate specified in the registered program for the apprentice's level of progress, expressed as a percentage 

of the journeymen hourly rate specified in the applicable wage determination.  Apprentices shall be paid 

fringe benefits in accordance with the provisions of the apprenticeship program.  If the apprenticeship 

program does not specify fringe benefits, apprentices must be paid the full amount of fringe benefits listed 

on the wage determination for the applicable classification.  If the Administrator of the Wage and Hour 

Division of the U.S. Department of Labor determines that a different practice prevails for the applicable 

apprentice classification, fringes shall be paid in accordance with that determination. In the event the 

Bureau of Apprenticeship and Training, or a State Apprenticeship Agency recognized by the Bureau, 

withdraws approval of an apprenticeship program, CONTRACTOR will no longer be permitted to utilize 

apprentices at less than the applicable predetermined rate for the work performed until an acceptable 

program is approved. 

2. Except as provided in 29 CFR Part 5.16, trainees will not be permitted to work at less 

than the predetermined rate for the work performed unless they are employed pursuant to and individually 

registered in a program which has received prior approval, evidenced by formal certification by the U.S. 

Department of Labor, Employment and Training Administration.  The ratio of trainees to journeymen on 

the job site shall not be greater than permitted under the plan approved by the Employment and Training 

Administration.  Every trainee must be paid at not less than the rate specified in the approved program 

for the trainee's level of progress, expressed as a percentage of the journeyman hourly rate specified in 

the applicable wage determination.  Trainees shall be paid fringe benefits in accordance with the 

provisions of the trainee program.  If the trainee program does not mention fringe benefits, trainees shall 

be paid the full amount of fringe benefits listed on the wage determination unless the Administrator of the 

Wage and Hour Division determines that there is an apprenticeship program associated with the 
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corresponding journeyman wage rate on the wage determination which provides for less than full fringe 

benefits for apprentices.  Any employee listed on the payroll at a trainee rate who is not registered and 

participating in a training plan approved by the Employment and Training Administration shall be paid not 

less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the classification of work actually 

performed.  In addition, any trainee performing work on the job site in excess of the ratio permitted under 

the registered program shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination 

for the work actually performed.  In the event the Employment and Training Administration withdraws 

approval of a training program, the CONTRACTOR will no longer be permitted to utilize trainees at less 

than the applicable predetermined rate for the work performed until an acceptable program is approved. 

3. The utilization of apprentices, trainees and journeymen under this part shall be in 

conformity with the equal employment opportunity requirements of Executive Order 11246, as amended, 

and 29 CFR Part 30. 

E. Compliance with Copeland Act requirements:  CONTRACTOR shall comply with the 

requirements of 29 CFR Part 3, which are incorporated by reference in this contract. 

F. Subcontracts:  CONTRACTOR or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the clauses 

contained in 29 CFR Parts 5.5(a)(1) through (10) and such other clauses as the Federal Transit 

Administration may by appropriate instructions require, and also a clause requiring the subcontractors to 

include these clauses in any lower tier subcontracts.  CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for the 

compliance by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with all the contract clauses in 29 CFR Part 

5.5. 

G. Contract termination – debarment:  A breach of the contract clauses in 29 CFR Part 5.5 may 

be grounds for termination of this Agreement, and for debarment as a contractor and a subcontractor as 

provided in 29 CFR Part 5.12. 

H. Compliance with Davis-Bacon and Related Act requirements:  All rulings and interpretations 

of the Davis-Bacon and Related Acts contained in 29 CFR Parts 1, 3, and 5 are herein incorporated by 

reference. 

IFB 7-1904
ADDENDUM NO. 6, ATTACHMENT B



AGREEMENT NO. C- 7-1904 

Page 44 of 59 

Release 2017.12.11 

 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

 

/ 

I. Disputes concerning labor standards:  Disputes arising out of the labor standards provisions 

of Agreement shall not be subject to the general disputes clause of this Agreement.  Such disputes shall 

be resolved in accordance with the procedures of the Department of Labor set forth in 29 CFR Parts 5, 

6, and 7.  Disputes within the meaning of this clause include disputes between CONTRACTOR (or any 

of its subcontractors) and AUTHORITY, the U.S. Department of Labor, or the employees or their 

representatives. 

J. Certification of eligibility:  

1. By entering into this contract, CONTRACTOR certifies that neither it (nor he or she) 

nor any person or firm who has an interest in CONTRACTOR’s firm is a person or firm ineligible to be 

awarded Government contracts by virtue of section 3(a) of the Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR Part 

5.12(a)(1). 

2. No part of this contract shall be subcontracted to any person or firm ineligible for award 

of a Government contract by virtue of section 3(a) of the Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR Part 5.12(a)(1). 

3. The penalty for making false statements is prescribed in the U.S. Criminal Code, 18 

U.S.C. Section 1001. 

K. In addition to the foregoing, CONTRACTOR agrees to comply with all other provisions of the 

Labor Code of the State of California.   

L. This contract is subject to requirements promulgated by the California Department of Industrial 

Relations. The reporting requirements may be found at https://www.dir.ca.gov/Public-

Works/Contractors.html. The Contractor is responsible for complying with all requirements of the 

California Department of Industrial Relations, including filing electronic payroll reports.  

M. CONTRACTOR or subcontractor will not be awarded this Agreement for public work on a 

public works project unless registered with the Department of Industrial Relations pursuant to Labor Code 

Section 1725.5. 

/ 
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ARTICLE 41. CONTRACT WORK HOURS AND SAFETY STANDARDS 

If this Agreement exceeds $100,000, CONTRACTOR agrees to comply with the Federal Contract 

Work Hours and Safety Standards (40 U.S.C. Sections 3701, et seq. as supplemented by 29 CFR Part 

5).   

A. Overtime requirements:  CONTRACTOR, and any subcontractor contracting for any part of 

the contract work which may require or involve the employment of laborers or mechanics, shall not require 

or permit any such laborer or mechanic in any workweek in which he or she is employed on such work to 

work in excess of forty hours in such workweek unless such laborer or mechanic receives compensation 

at a rate not less than one and one-half times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of forty 

hours in such workweek. 

B. Violation; liability for unpaid wages; liquidated damages:  In the event of any violation of the 

clause set forth in paragraph (A) of this section CONTRACTOR and any subcontractor responsible 

therefor shall be liable for the unpaid wages.  In addition, CONTRACTOR and subcontractor shall be 

liable to the United States for liquidated damages.  Such liquidated damages shall be computed with 

respect to each individual laborer or mechanic, including watchmen and guards, employed in violation of 

the clause set forth in paragraph (A) of this section, in the sum of $10 for each day on which such 

individual was required or permitted to work in excess of the standard workweek of forty hours without 

payment of the overtime wages required by the clause set forth in paragraph (A) of this section. 

C. Withholding for unpaid wages and liquidated damages:  AUTHORITY shall upon its own 

action or upon written request of an authorized representative of the Department of Labor withhold or 

cause to be withheld, from any moneys payable on account of work performed by CONTRACTOR or 

subcontractor under any such contract or any other Federal contract with CONTRACTOR, or any other 

federally-assisted contract subject to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act, which is held 

by CONTRACTOR, such sums as may be determined to be necessary to satisfy any liabilities of 

CONTRACTOR or subcontractor for unpaid wages and liquidated damages as provided in the clause set 
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forth in paragraph (B) of this section. 

D. Subcontracts:  CONTRACTOR or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the clauses 

set forth in paragraphs (A) through (D) of this section and also a clause requiring the subcontractors to 

include these clauses in any lower tier subcontracts.  CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for compliance 

by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with the clauses set forth in paragraphs (A) through (D) 

of this section. 

ARTICLE 42. INSPECTION AND ACCEPTANCE 

A. All work (which term includes but is not restricted to materials, equipment, workmanship, and 

manufacture and fabrication of components) shall be subject to inspection and testing by AUTHORITY 

at all reasonable times and at all places prior to acceptance.  Any such inspection and test is for the sole 

benefit of AUTHORITY and shall not relieve CONTRACTOR of the responsibility of providing quality 

control measures to assure that the work strictly complies with requirements of this Agreement.  No 

inspection or test by AUTHORITY or its representative shall be construed as constituting or implying 

acceptance.  Inspection or test shall not relieve CONTRACTOR of responsibility for damage to or loss of 

the material prior to acceptance, nor in any way affect the continuing rights of AUTHORITY after 

acceptance of the completed work under the terms of paragraph F of this Article, except as herein above 

provided. 

B. CONTRACTOR shall, without charge, replace any material or correct any workmanship found 

by AUTHORITY not to conform to the requirements of this Agreement, unless in the public interest 

AUTHORITY consents to accept such material or workmanship with an appropriate adjustment in the 

price of this Agreement.  CONTRACTOR shall promptly segregate and remove rejected material from 

the premises. 

C. CONTRACTOR shall furnish promptly, without additional charge, all facilities, labor, 

equipment and material reasonably needed for performing such safe and convenient inspection and test 

as may be required by AUTHORITY.  All inspections and tests by AUTHORITY shall be performed in 

such manner as to not unnecessarily delay the work.  AUTHORITY reserves the right to charge to 
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CONTRACTOR any additional cost of inspection or test when material or workmanship is not ready at 

the time specified by CONTRACTOR for inspection or test or when reinspection or retest is necessitated 

by prior rejection. 

D. If CONTRACTOR does not promptly replace rejected material or correct rejected 

workmanship, AUTHORITY (1) may, by Agreement or otherwise, replace such material or correct such 

workmanship and charge the cost thereof to CONTRACTOR, or (2) may terminate CONTRACTOR's 

right to proceed in accordance with the clause of this Agreement entitled "Termination for Default." 

E. Should it be considered necessary or advisable by AUTHORITY at any time before 

acceptance of the entire work to make an examination of work already completed, by removing or 

demolishing of same, CONTRACTOR shall, on request, promptly furnish all necessary facilities, labor 

and material.  If such work is found to be defective or nonconforming in any material respect, due to the 

fault of CONTRACTOR or its subcontractors, CONTRACTOR shall pay all costs of such examination and 

of satisfactory reconstruction.  If, however, such work is found to meet the requirements of this 

Agreement, an equitable adjustment shall be made in the Agreement price to compensate 

CONTRACTOR for the additional services involved in such examination and reconstruction and, if 

completion of the work has been delayed thereby, it shall in addition, be granted a suitable extension of 

time. 

F. Unless otherwise provided in this Agreement, acceptance by AUTHORITY shall be made as 

promptly as practicable after completion and inspection of all work required by this Agreement, or that 

portion of the work that AUTHORITY determines can be accepted separately.  Acceptance shall be final 

and conclusive except as regards latent defects, fraud, or such gross mistakes as may amount to fraud 

or regarding AUTHORITY's rights under the warranty provisions set forth herein. 

ARTICLE 43. MATERIAL AND WORKMANSHIP 

A. Unless otherwise specifically provided in this Agreement, all equipment, material, and articles 

incorporated in the work covered by this Agreement are to be new and of the most suitable grade for the 

purpose intended.  Unless otherwise specifically provided in this Agreement, reference to any equipment, 
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material, article or patented process, by trade name, make or catalog number, shall be regarded as 

establishing a standard of quality and shall not be construed as limiting competition, and CONTRACTOR 

may, at its option, use any equipment, material, article or process which, in the judgment of AUTHORITY, 

is equal to that named.  CONTRACTOR shall furnish to AUTHORITY for its approval the name of the 

manufacturer, the model number and other identifying data and information respecting the performance, 

capacity, nature and rating of the machinery and mechanical and other equipment, which CONTRACTOR 

contemplates incorporating in the work.  When required by this Agreement or when called for by 

AUTHORITY, CONTRACTOR shall furnish AUTHORITY, for approval, full information concerning the 

material or articles, which it contemplates incorporating in the work.  When so directed, samples shall be 

submitted for approval at CONTRACTOR's expense, with all shipping charges prepaid.  Machinery, 

equipment, material and articles installed or used without required approval shall be at the risk of 

subsequent rejection. 

B. All work under this Agreement shall be performed in a skillful and workmanlike manner.  

Notwithstanding the provisions of Article 3 hereof, AUTHORITY may, in writing, require CONTRACTOR 

to remove from the work any employee AUTHORITY deems incompetent, careless or otherwise 

objectionable. 

ARTICLE 44. NON-CONFORMING WORK 

A. Nonconforming work rejected by AUTHORITY shall be removed and replaced so as to 

conform to the requirements of this Agreement, at CONTRACTOR’s cost and without a time extension; 

and CONTRACTOR shall promptly take all action necessary to prevent similar deficiencies from occurring 

in the future.  The fact that AUTHORITY may not have discovered the nonconforming work shall not 

constitute an acceptance of such nonconforming work.  If CONTRACTOR fails to correct any 

nonconforming work within ten (10) days of receipt of notice from AUTHORITY requesting correction, or 

if such nonconforming work cannot be corrected within ten (10) days, and CONTRACTOR fails to; (1) 

provide to AUTHORITY a schedule for correcting any such nonconforming work acceptable to 

AUTHORITY within such ten (10)-day period, (2) commence such corrective work within such ten (10)-
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day period and (3) thereafter diligently prosecute such correction in accordance with such approved 

schedule to completion, then AUTHORITY may cause the nonconforming work to be remedied or 

removed and replaced and may deduct the cost of doing so from any moneys due or to become due to 

CONTRACTOR and/or obtain reimbursement from CONTRACTOR for such cost. 

B. If AUTHORITY agrees to accept any nonconforming work without requiring it to be fully 

corrected, AUTHORITY shall be entitled to reimbursement of a portion of the contract price in an amount 

equal to the greater of the amount deemed appropriate by AUTHORITY to provide compensation for 

future maintenance and/or other costs relating to the nonconforming work, or 100% of CONTRACTOR’s 

cost savings associated with its failure to perform the work in accordance with Contract requirements.  

Such reimbursement shall be payable to AUTHORITY within ten (10) days after CONTRACTOR’s receipt 

of an invoice thereof.  CONTRACTOR acknowledges and agrees that AUTHORITY shall have sole 

discretion regarding acceptance or rejection of nonconforming work and that AUTHORITY shall have 

sole discretion with regard to the amount payable in connection therewith. 

ARTICLE 45. CONTRACTOR INSPECTION SYSTEM 

CONTRACTOR shall maintain an adequate inspection system and perform such inspections as 

will assure that the work performed under this Agreement conforms to the specified requirements, and 

shall maintain and make available to AUTHORITY adequate records of such inspections. 

ARTICLE 46. SUPERINTENDENCE BY CONTRACTOR 

CONTRACTOR, at all times during performance and until the work is completed and accepted, 

shall give its personal superintendence to the work or have on the work a competent superintendent, 

satisfactory to AUTHORITY and with authority to act for and on behalf of CONTRACTOR. 

ARTICLE 47. OTHER CONTRACTS 

AUTHORITY may undertake or award other agreements for additional work, and CONTRACTOR 

shall fully cooperate with such other CONTRACTOR’s and AUTHORITY's employees and carefully fit its 

own work to such additional work as may be directed by AUTHORITY.  CONTRACTOR shall not commit 

or permit any act, which will interfere with the performance of work by any other CONTRACTOR or by 
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AUTHORITY.  Refer to Special Conditions for additional requirements.  

ARTICLE 48. INSPECTION OF SITE 

CONTRACTOR acknowledges that it has investigated and satisfied itself as to the conditions 

affecting the work including, but not restricted to, those bearing upon transportation, disposal, handling 

and storage of materials, availability of labor, water, electric power and roads and uncertainties of 

weather, river stages, tides or similar physical conditions at the site, the conformation and conditions of 

the ground, the character of equipment and facilities needed preliminary to and during prosecution of the 

work.  CONTRACTOR further acknowledges that it has satisfied itself as to the character, quality and 

quantity of surface and subsurface materials or obstacles to be encountered insofar as this information 

is reasonably ascertainable from an inspection of the site, including all exploratory work done by 

AUTHORITY, as well as from information presented by the drawings and specifications made a part of 

this Agreement.  Any failure by CONTRACTOR to acquaint itself with the available information will not 

relieve it from responsibility for the difficulty or cost of successfully performing the work.  AUTHORITY 

assumes no responsibility for any conclusions or interpretations made by CONTRACTOR on the basis 

of the information made available by AUTHORITY. 

ARTICLE 49. DIFFERING SITE CONDITIONS 

A. CONTRACTOR shall immediately, and before such conditions are disturbed, notify 

AUTHORITY in writing of:  (1) subsurface or latent physical conditions at the site which differ materially 

from those indicated in this Agreement, or (2) unknown physical conditions at the site, of an unusual 

nature, which differ materially from those ordinarily encountered and generally recognized as inherent in 

work of the character provided for in this Agreement.  AUTHORITY will investigate the conditions within 

three business days of receipt of notification, and if it finds that such conditions do materially so differ and 

cause an increase or decrease in CONTRACTOR's cost of, or the time required for, performance of any 

part of the work under this Agreement, whether or not changed as a result of such conditions, an equitable 

adjustment shall be made and the Agreement modified in writing accordingly. 

/ 
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B. No claim of CONTRACTOR under this Article shall be allowed unless CONTRACTOR has 

given the written notice required above; no claim by CONTRACTOR for an equitable adjustment 

hereunder shall be allowed if asserted after final payment under this Agreement.  

ARTICLE 50. SEISMIC SAFETY REQUIREMENTS 

CONTRACTOR agrees that the Work performed under this Agreement will be accomplished in 

accordance with the standards for Seismic Safety required in DOT’s Seismic Safety Regulations 49 CFR 

Part 41 and will certify compliance to the extent required by the regulation for such work.  CONTRACTOR 

shall ensure that all work performed under this Agreement including work performed by a subcontractor 

is in compliance with the standards required by the Seismic Safety Regulations and the certification of 

compliance issued on the project. 

ARTICLE 51. RECYCLED PRODUCTS 

CONTRACTOR shall comply with all the requirements of Section 6002 of the Resource 

Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA), as amended (42 U.S.C. Section 6962), including but not limited 

to the regulatory provisions of 40 CFR Part 247, and Executive Order 12873, as they apply to the 

procurement of the items designated in subpart B of 40 CFR Part 247.  CONTRACTOR agrees to include 

this requirement in all of its subcontracts. 

ARTICLE 52. ENERGY CONSERVATION REQUIREMENTS 

CONTRACTOR shall comply with mandatory standards and policies relating to energy efficiency, 

which are contained in the state energy conservation plan issued in compliance with the Energy Policy 

Conservation Act. 

ARTICLE 53. CLEAN AIR 

CONTRACTOR shall comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations issued pursuant 

to the Clean Air Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. Sections 7401 et seq. CONTRACTOR shall report each 

violation to AUTHORITY, who will in turn, report each violation as required to assure notification to FTA 

and the appropriate EPA Regional Office.  CONTRACTOR agrees to include this requirement in each 
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subcontract exceeding $100,000. 

ARTICLE 54. CLEAN WATER  

CONTRACTOR shall comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations issued pursuant 

to the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as amended, 33 U.S.C. Sections 1251 et seq.as amended.  

CONTRACTOR shall report each violation to AUTHORITY and understands and agrees that 

AUTHORITY who will in turn, report each violation as required to assure notification to FTA and 

appropriate EPA Regional Office.  CONTRACTOR agrees to include this requirement in each subcontract 

exceeding $100,000. 

ARTICLE 55. OPERATIONS AND STORAGE AREAS 

A. All operations of CONTRACTOR (including storage of materials and equipment) on 

AUTHORITY owned premises shall be confined to areas authorized or approved by AUTHORITY.  

CONTRACTOR shall hold AUTHORITY and its officers and agents free and harmless from liability of any 

nature occasioned by CONTRACTOR's operations. 

B. Temporary building (storage sheds, shops, offices, etc.) may be erected by CONTRACTOR 

with the written consent of AUTHORITY and the City of Santa Ana or Garden Grove (City), and shall be 

built with labor and materials furnished by CONTRACTOR without expense to AUTHORITY.  Such 

temporary buildings and utilities shall remain the property of CONTRACTOR and shall be removed by 

CONTRACTOR at its expense upon the completion of the work.  With the written consent of AUTHORITY 

and City, such buildings and utilities may be abandoned and need not be removed. 

C. CONTRACTOR shall, under regulations prescribed by AUTHORITY, use only established 

roadways or construct and use such temporary roadways as may be authorized by AUTHORITY.  Where 

materials are transported in the prosecution of work, vehicles shall not be loaded beyond the loading 

capacity recommended by the manufacturer of the vehicle or prescribed by any federal, state or local law 

or regulation.  When it is necessary to cross curbing or sidewalks, protection against damage shall be 

provided by CONTRACTOR and any damaged roads, curbing or sidewalks shall be repaired by, or at 

the expense of, CONTRACTOR. 
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ARTICLE 56. BUY AMERICA 

A. If the Agreement exceeds $150,000, CONTRACTOR shall comply with the Buy America 

requirements of 49 U.S.C. Section 5323(j) and 49 CFR Part 661, which provide that Federal funds may 

not be obligated unless all steel, iron, and manufactured products used in FTA funded projects are 

produced in the United States, unless a waiver has been granted by FTA or the product is subject to a 

general waiver. CONTRACTOR shall ensure that all subcontractors, at any tier, comply with the Buy 

America requirements “Buy America” requirements. 

ARTICLE 57. PROTECTION OF VEGETATION, UTILITIES, IMPROVEMENTS 

A. CONTRACTOR shall preserve and protect all existing vegetation such as trees, shrubs and 

grass on or adjacent to the site of work which is not to be removed and which does not unreasonably 

interfere with the construction work.  Care will be taken in removing trees authorized for removal to avoid 

damage to vegetation to remain in place.  Any limbs or branches of trees broken during such operations 

or by the careless operation of equipment, or by workmen, shall be trimmed with a clean cut and painted 

with an approved tree pruning compound as directed by AUTHORITY. 

B. CONTRACTOR shall protect from damage all existing improvements or utilities at or near the 

site of the work, the location of which is made known to it, and will repair or restore any damage to such 

facilities resulting from failure to comply with the requirements of this Agreement or the failure to exercise 

reasonable care in the performance of the work.  If CONTRACTOR fails or refuses to repair any such 

damage promptly, AUTHORITY may have the necessary work performed and charge the cost to 

CONTRACTOR. 

ARTICLE 58. CLEANING UP 

A. CONTRACTOR shall at all times keep the construction area, including storage areas used by 

it, free from accumulations of waste material or rubbish, and prior to completion of the work remove any 

rubbish from AUTHORITY owned premises and all tools, scaffolding, equipment and materials not the 

property of AUTHORITY.  Upon completion of the construction, CONTRACTOR shall leave the work and 
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premises in a clean, neat and workmanlike condition satisfactory to AUTHORITY. 

B. After completion of all work on the project, and before making application for acceptance of 

the work, CONTRACTOR shall clean the construction site, including all areas under the control of 

AUTHORITY, that have been used by CONTRACTOR in connection with the work on the project and 

remove all debris, surplus material and equipment, and all temporary construction or facilities of whatever 

nature, unless otherwise approved by AUTHORITY.  Final acceptance of the work by AUTHORITY will 

be withheld until CONTRACTOR has satisfactorily complied with the foregoing requirements for final 

cleanup of the project site. 

C. Full compensation for conforming to the provisions in this Article, not otherwise provided for, 

shall be considered as included in price of this Agreement and no additional compensation will be allowed 

therefore. 

ARTICLE 59. USE AND POSSESSION TO COMPLETION 

AUTHORITY shall have the right to take possession of or use any completed or partially 

completed part of the work.  Prior to such possession or use, AUTHORITY shall furnish CONTRACTOR 

an itemized list of work remaining to be performed or corrected on such portions of the project as are to 

be possessed or used by AUTHORITY, provided that failure to list any item of work shall not relieve 

CONTRACTOR of responsibility for compliance with the terms of this Agreement.  Such possession or 

use shall not be deemed an acceptance of any work under this Agreement.  While AUTHORITY has such 

possession or use, CONTRACTOR shall be relieved of the responsibility for the loss or damage to the 

work resulting from AUTHORITY's possession or use.  If such prior possession or use by AUTHORITY 

delays the progress of the work or causes additional expense to CONTRACTOR, an equitable adjustment 

in the Agreement price or the time of completion will be made and the Agreement shall be modified in 

writing accordingly. 

ARTICLE 60. PROHIBITED INTERESTS 

A. CONTRACTOR covenants that, for the term of this Agreement, no director, officer or 

employee of AUTHORITY, during his/her tenure in office or for one (1) year thereafter, shall have any 
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interest, direct or indirect, in this Agreement or the proceeds thereof. 

B. No member of or delegates to the Congress of the United States shall have any interest, direct 

or indirect, in this Agreement or the benefits thereof. 

ARTICLE 61. CONTRACTOR PURCHASED EQUIPMENT 

A. If during the course of this Agreement, additional equipment is required, which will be paid for 

by AUTHORITY, CONTRACTOR must request prior written authorization from AUTHORITY’s project 

manager before making any purchase. As part of this purchase request, CONTRACTOR shall provide a 

justification for the necessity of the equipment or supply and submit copies of three (3) competitive 

quotations. If competitive quotations are not obtained, CONTRACTOR must provide the justification for 

the sole source. 

B. CONTRACTOR shall maintain an inventory record for each piece of equipment purchased 

that will be paid for by AUTHORITY. The inventory record shall include the date acquired, total cost, serial 

number, model identification, and any other information or description necessary to identify said 

equipment or supply. A copy of the inventory record shall be submitted to AUTHORITY upon request. 

C. At the expiration or termination of this Agreement, CONTRACTOR may keep the equipment 

and credit AUTHORITY in an amount equal to its fair market value. Fair market value shall be determined, 

at CONTRACTOR’s expense, on the basis of an independent appraisal. CONTRACTOR may sell the 

equipment at the best price obtainable and credit AUTHORITY in an amount equal to the sales price. If 

the equipment is to be sold, then the terms and conditions of the sale must be approved in advance by 

AUTHORITY’s project manager. 

D. Any subcontractor agreement entered into as a result of this Agreement shall contain all 

provisions of this clause. 

ARTICLE 62. DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION GUIDELINES 

CONTRACTOR shall not do business with a subcontractor or other participant who is debarred, 

suspended or otherwise disqualified.  CONTRACTOR shall comply with 2 CFR Part 180, as adopted and 

supplemented by 2 CFR Part 1200. CONTRACTOR shall include the requirements in any lower tier 
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covered transaction it enters into.  

ARTICLE 63. HEALTH AND SAFETY SPECIFICATIONS 

CONTRACTOR shall comply with all requirements set forth in Exhibit H, Level 3 Safety 

Specifications. 

ARTICLE 64. LOBBYING 

CONTRACTOR shall comply with the lobbying requirements of 31 U.S.C. Section 1352 and the 

applicable regulations under 49 CFR Parts 19 and 20.  If this Agreement exceeds $100,000, 

CONTRACTOR shall file both the “Certification of Restrictions on Lobbying” and the “Disclosure of 

Lobbying Activities.”  CONTRACTOR shall also require each subcontractor to certify to CONTRACTOR 

that subcontractor will not and has not used Federal appropriated funds to pay any person or organization 

for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of Congress, 

officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection with obtaining 

any Federal contract, grant or any other award covered by 31 U.S.C. Section 1352.  CONTRACTOR 

shall also require any subcontractor to disclose to CONTRACTOR the name of any registrant under the 

Lobbying Disclosure Act of 1995 who has made lobbying contacts on its behalf with non-Federal funds 

with respect to that Federal contract, grant or award covered by 31 U.S.C. Section 1352. 

ARTICLE 65. ADA ACCESS 

Plans for facility construction and/or facility alterations that are described in the scope of work 

detailed under this contract have been designed with the intent of ensuring, to the maximum extent 

feasible, that the facility, or alterations thereof, shall be accessible to persons with disabilities including 

individuals who use mobility aids. The CONTRACTOR agrees to make each modification detailed in 

the project plans in a manner that assures that the area constructed or alterations to any area within 

the facility is readily accessible to and usable by individuals with disabilities, including individuals who 

use wheelchairs. Full compliance with the provisions of 49 CFR Part 37 is the intent of the facility 

owner and every aspect of this project, pursuant to this contract, shall be construed as being consistent 

with this intent and compliant with Subpart C – Transportation Facilities with particular reference to 
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Subsection 37.43 of FTA’s regulations pursuant to the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (ADA). 

If any aspect of the plans or specifications for this project appear to be inconsistent with Subsection 

37.9 Standards for accessible transportation facilities or any guidance issued by the Access Board, it 

is essential that the CONTRACTOR notify the project manager designated by AUTHORITY about any 

such concern as soon as practicable. 

ARTICLE 66. TRANSPORTATION OF EQUIPMENT, MATERIALS OR COMMODITIES BY 

OCEAN VESSEL  

A. CONTRACTOR shall utilize privately owned United States-flag commercial vessels to ship at 

least 50% of the gross tonnage (computed separately for dry bulk carriers, dry cargo liners and tankers) 

involved, whenever shipping any equipment, materials or commodities pursuant to this section, to the 

extent such vessels are available at fair and reasonable rates for United States-flag commercial vessels. 

B. CONTRACTOR shall furnish within thirty (30) days following the date of loading for shipments 

originating within the United States, or within forty (40) calendar days following the date of loading for 

shipping originating outside the United States, a legible copy of a rated, “on-board” commercial ocean 

bill-of lading in English for each shipment of cargo described in paragraph A of this Article to AUTHORITY 

(through the prime CONTRACTOR in the case of subcontractor bills-of-lading) and to the Division of 

National Cargo, Office of Market Development, Maritime Administration, Washington, DC 20590, marked 

with appropriate identification of the project. 

ARTICLE 67. FLY AMERICA REQUIREMENTS 

CONTRACTOR agrees to comply with 49 U.S.C. 40118 (the “Fly America” Act) in accordance 

with the General Services Administration’s regulations at 41 CFR Part 301-10, which provide that 

recipients and subrecipient of Federal funds and their contractors are required to use U.S. Flag air carriers 

for U.S. Government-financed international air travel and transportation of their personal effects or 

property, to the extent such service is available, unless travel by foreign air carrier is a matter of necessity, 

as defined by the Fly America Act.  CONTRACTOR shall submit, if a foreign air carrier was used, an 

appropriate certification or memorandum adequately explaining why service by a U.S. flag air carrier was 
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not available or why it was necessary to use a foreign air carrier and shall, in any event, provide a 

certificate of compliance with the Fly America requirements.  CONTRACTOR agrees to include the 

requirements of this section in all subcontracts that may involve international air transportation. 

ARTICLE 68. SEAT BELT USE 

CONTRACTOR is encouraged to adopt and promote on-the-job use of seat belts, and to 

include this provision in its subcontracts at all tiers, in accordance with Executive Order No. 13043, 

“Increasing seat Belt Use in the United States,” 04-16-1997, 23 U.S.C. Section 402 note. 

ARTICLE 69. OPTIONS 

The AUTHORITY may require the numbered line items, identified in the Schedule of Quantity and 

Prices as optional items, at the price(s) stated in the Schedule. The AUTHORITY may exercise the 

optional item(s) by written notice to the CONTRACTOR within one year of the effective date of the 

Agreement. 

ARTICLE 70. FORCE MAJEURE 

Either party shall be excused from performing its obligations under this Agreement during the time 

and to the extent that it is prevented from performing by an unforeseeable cause beyond its control, 

including but not limited to: any incidence of fire, flood; acts of God; commandeering of material, products, 

plants or facilities by the federal, state or local government; national fuel shortage; or a material act or 

omission by the other party; when satisfactory evidence of such cause is presented to the other party, 

and provided further that such nonperformance is unforeseeable, beyond the control and is not due to 

the fault or negligence of the party not performing. 

This Agreement shall be made effective upon execution by both parties. 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement No. C- 7-1904 to be 

executed on the date first above written. 

  ORANGE COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 

By  ________________________________  By  ________________________________  

    Darrell Johnson 
   
      License No: 

 Chief Executive Officer  

 

 APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 By  ________________________________  

  James M. Donich 
  General Counsel 

 

 APPROVED: 

 By  ________________________________  

  James G. Beil, PE 
  Executive Director, Capital Programs 
 

Date  ______________________________  
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GENERAL CONDITIONS  EXHIBIT A
 

Orange County Transportation Authority Page 37 of 80
 

rules, regulations, standards and orders of any public, quasi-public, or other authority relating to the safety of 
persons and their protection against injury, specifically including, but in no event limited to, the Federal 
Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970 and the California Code of Regulations (CCR) Title 8 Standards, 
as amended, and all rules and regulations now or hereafter in effect pursuant to said Act; and CONTRACTOR 
shall provide, or cause to be provided, each worker on the Project Site the proper safety equipment for the duties 
performed by that worker and will not permit any worker on the Project Site who fails or refuses to use the same. 
The AUTHORITY shall have the right, but not the obligation, to order CONTRACTOR to send a worker off the 
Project Site for the day or to discharge a worker for his or her failure to comply with safety practices. 
 
37.6    The CONTRACTOR shall, throughout the performance of the Work, maintain adequate and continuous 
protection of all Work and temporary facilities against loss or damage from whatever cause. The CONTRACTOR 
shall protect the property of the AUTHORITY and third parties from loss or damage from whatever cause arising 
out of the performance of Work and shall comply with the requirements of the AUTHORITY, its insurance 
carriers and with all applicable laws, codes, rules and regulations with respect to the prevention of loss or 
damage to property as a result of fire or other hazards to: 
 

• Employees on the Work and other persons who may be affected thereby; 
 

• The Work and materials and equipment to be incorporated therein, whether in storage on or off the 
Site, under care, custody or control of the CONTRACTOR or the CONTRACTOR’s Subcontractors or 
Sub-subcontractors; and 

 

• Other property at the Site or adjacent thereto, such as trees, shrubs, lawns, walks, pavements, 
roadways, structures and utilities not designated for removal, relocation or replacement in the 
course of construction. 

 

• Solvents, oils and any other substance, which may be harmful to plant life, shall be disposed of in 
containers and removed from the Site. At completion of the Work, any contaminated soil shall be 
removed and replaced with soil of equal quality prior to contamination by the CONTRACTOR at no 
increase in the Contract Price. 

 
37.7   The AUTHORITY may, make periodic patrols of the Project Site as a part of its normal security and 
safety program. The CONTRACTOR shall not be relieved of its aforesaid responsibilities and the AUTHORITY 
shall not assume same, nor shall it be deemed to have assumed, any responsibility otherwise imposed upon the 
CONTRACTOR, as a result of safety patrols by the AUTHORITY. 
 
The AUTHORITY may audit the CONTRACTOR’s safety program for health, safety and environmental 
compliance at various intervals of the project, at the sole discretion of the AUTHORITY. Elements may include 
but, are not limited to; OSHA injury & illness records and logs, Job Safety Analysis and safety plans, equipment 
operator licenses and training records, incident reports, meeting minutes, engineered plans, safety meeting 
records, crane and rigging plans, equipment inspection records, qualifications of and interviews with key 
CONTRACTOR management personnel, and similar information. The CONTRACTOR shall support and 
cooperate with these audits at no additional compensation or schedule impacts with this contract. 
 
37.8   The CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for the payment of all fines levied against the AUTHORITY for 
safety violations arising from or related to activities over which CONTRACTOR has responsibility under Contract 
Documents. 
 
37.9    The CONTRACTOR shall give notice in writing, at least forty-eight (48) hours14 calendar days 
before breaking ground in any subsegment, to all persons having interests on or near the Site, Public Utility 
Companies, owners of property having structures or improvements in proximity to the Site of the Work, 
Superintendents, Inspectors, or those otherwise in charge of property, streets, water pipes, gas pipes, sewer 
pipes, telephone cables, electric cables, railroads or otherwise who may be affected by the CONTRACTOR’s 
operation, in order that they may remove any obstruction for which they are responsible and have a 
representative on Site to see that their property is properly protectedthe ENGINEER. Such notice does not 
relieve the CONTRACTOR of responsibility for any damages, claims, 
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